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Our purpose

We aim to enhance the quality of life and wellbeing for all Western Australians 
through the funding and support we provide to our beneficiaries and by running 
our lottery business with excellence and integrity.

Our values

Lotterywest is an organisation committed to serving the community  
of Western Australia with excellence and integrity. 

In enacting these values, we recognise the diversity of our stakeholders and  
strive for an approach which balances their different needs and expectations.

Four core values underpin all that we do:

Rewarding

We seek to ensure that the experience of all those with 
whom we come into contact – players, grant seekers, 
business partners and the community as a whole, will be 
a valued and rewarding one and that all will be treated 
with courtesy and respect. 

Inspiring

We motivate, encourage and inspire ourselves and others 
to achieve greater things for the benefit of the community 
of Western Australia. 

Trusted

We are honest, reliable and trustworthy. We conduct  
ourselves professionally with the highest standards of  
integrity and excellence in all our business operations and  
in our relationships with all our stakeholders. 

Engaging

We actively seek relationships with all our stakeholders  
based on principles of mutual respect and strive to 
enhance the achievement of their goals and ours.

Our vision
Building a better Western Australia together.

About Lotterywest

Wanslea restoration embraces 
history and community

“The successful conservation and 
refurbishment of the Wanslea heritage 
and co-location of Cancer Wellness Centre 
member organisations provides greater 
opportunities for leveraging collaboration 
amongst leading cancer support 
organisations in WA to enhance the 
services provided to people with cancer, 
their families, carers and communities.”

Two significant Lotterywest Grants helped a heritage-listed 
landmark rediscover its former glory and embrace a new future 
as a community facility. Grants of $6.5 million to the National 
Trust of WA and a $1.6 million grant to the Cancer Wellness 
Centre saw historic Wanslea House in Cottesloe extensively 
conserved and refurbished to house four cancer support 
member organisations. 

Professor Tony Brennan, President of the Cancer Wellness Centre, 
said the resulting facility, which was recognised at the 2015 
State Heritage Awards, had enormous benefits for the Centre’s 
member organisations:



2      Lotterywest 2015 Annual Report

Total sales

$826.3 million

Prizes allocated to winners 

$463.4 million

Highlights 2014/15

$3.9m $1.4m$12.7m

$96.8m$123.4m $64.7m $179.1m$344.3m



A total of $282.9 million was allocated to the  
Western Australian community 
$121.6 million to the State’s health services and hospitals 
$15.2 million to Sport and Recreation
$15.2 million to Culture and the Arts
$130.8 million approved in Lotterywest direct grants, including
• $7.6 million to The University of Western Australia for the Perth 
International Arts Festival (including a grant for $250K towards the 
staging of The Giants)
• $7.3 million to ScreenWest for investment in the Western 
Australian screen industry
• $115.9 million to not-for-profit organisations and Local 
Government Authorities
1113 grants approved to 949 different not-for-profit organisations.
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Our games
Total sales of $826.3 million 
Increase of 3.7% on last financial year

Total annual sales per adult of $404.49  
(people over the age of 16)

Our distribution channels Our beneficiaries
Retail outlets – 95% of total sales

Play Online service – 5% of total sales

500 retail outlets selling all products – 33 sell only 
Scratch’n’Win products 

$64.3 million paid in commission to retailers

$253,000 in additional reward payments to retailers 
through ‘Lotteryworks Program’ (incentive program for 
achieving standards and sales targets).

$7
97

Annual Lottery Sales 2011-15

$3
76

$4
22

$4
24

$3
97

$2
71

$2
39

$2
57

$2
74
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Chairman’s Summary

I’m proud to present the 
Annual Report with business 
results at record levels at 
Lotterywest.

We have achieved new highs in both lottery sales and return to the 
Western Australian community. This is a strong performance in a 
challenging economic climate.

Our retailers are the front line ambassadors for Lotterywest. We 
appreciate their continued hard work and share this year’s success 
with them.

The past twelve months have seen increasing demands on 
community services; we are pleased we have provided support 
through our grants program to many important projects and  
not-for-profit organisations. Our statutory support delivered $122m to 
health, $15m to sports and $15m to arts. Our direct grants program 
delivered $131m to help build stronger communities and services 
around the State. Collectively the impact of Lotterywest Grants makes 
a real difference to the lives of all West Australians. We are privileged 
to work in partnership with hundreds of organisations which make  
a difference.

Lotterywest has continued to implement its Strategic Plan (2014-
18). This guides the organisation in its delivery of our products and 
services, our distribution approach, communications and branding 
and building the capacity of our people. This report summarises the 
outcomes in detail. 

Change has been significant at Lotterywest. We farewelled long 
serving CEO Jan Stewart in December 2014 and welcomed new CEO 
Paul Andrew in February 2015. Paul has spent his first few months 
leading the team into a new era whilst building an understanding 
of the business. He has been focused on future challenges which 
include implementing our Retail Transformation Program.

I wish to acknowledge outgoing CEO Jan Stewart. Jan’s contribution to 
Lotterywest has rightly been acknowledged by many. After 22 years as 
CEO, her positive impact on the organisation and broader community 
has been significant. On behalf of the Board and staff, I thank Jan for 
her enormously valuable contribution and wish her well in her future.

I also acknowledge the work of outgoing Board Member Ms Shelia 
Hood who stood down in January 2015. Sheila was a very valued 
member of the Board; I thank her for her contribution. I welcome Ms 
Miriam Borthwick who joined the Board in April 2015. Miriam brings 
skills in strategic communications to complement our Board.

I extend sincere thanks to the Premier as our Minister for his support 
and leadership.

Finally, this is my final term as Chairman as I have recently been 
offered an opportunity to represent Western Australia as Agent 
General in the United Kingdom. It’s an honour to be offered such a 
position but I will miss leading such an important Western Australian 
organisation. Holding the position of Chairman since 2010 has been a 
very rewarding experience. The model we have in Western Australia 
of raising proceeds though our games and then distributing those 
proceeds for the benefit of our community is unique and should be 
safe guarded.

 I wish Lotterywest well into the future and thank my fellow Board 
members and the Lotterywest staff for their hard work and dedication 
to this very special organisation.

John Atkins 
Chairman

John Atkins 
Chairman



Lotterywest 2015 Annual Report      5
Friends of Kings Park with Richard Simpson (BGPA Chairman), Bob Bunney (President Friends of Kings Park), John Atkins (Lotterywest Chairman) and the Hon. Albert Jacob, 
Minister for the Environment.

Retailer Profile
The Lucky Lottery Centre, Booragoon 

“I couldn’t believe when it happened but it was 
such a fantastic feeling to know I had chosen the 
right numbers. I was just thrilled. So many of our 
customers were very excited and since the big 
win, we have had a lot of new customers, many 
asking about my syndicates.”   

In May, The Lucky Lottery Centre in Booragoon and  
Reeds Lottery Centre in Fremantle made ten lucky Western 
Australians each $3 million richer. The ten winners had 
bought shares in a ‘retailer group syndicate’ which was 
set up at the Booragoon store, with winning shares sold 
by both retailers. Soon-Chiang Yong from The Lucky Lottery 
Centre was the one responsible for choosing the winning 
numbers on the ticket, which delivered the $30 million  
OZ Lotto prize.
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CEO’s Foreword

It has been a record-breaking 
year at Lotterywest with sales 
reaching $826 million, an 
increase of 3.7% from last 
financial year. Support to the 
WA community through our 
statutory allocation and direct 
grants reached $283 million.

Achieving strong results is critical at a time where the need for our 
grant support is increasing and many community organisations are 
experiencing higher demand. With recent shifts in funding models 
for the not-for-profit sector, our grant support is key to delivering 
important services to people in need.

We were pleased to support many significant community events this 
year including the RSL’s Centenary of Anzac. This involved over 80 
local branches staging commemorative events around WA. We also 
supported the arrival of the Giants who took over the city in February 
as part of the Perth International Arts Festival. In total, Lotterywest 
supported 949 community organisations and made 1113 direct grants.

Lotterywest has a number of key projects that have been our focus for 
the past twelve months and which will continue into the new financial 
year, in particular our Retail Transformation Program (RTP).

RTP will deliver an improved in-store experience for our players and 
position our business and our retailers’ businesses for success over 
the next decade. The improvements will include a new retail shop fit 
design and modern technology, including new retail terminals and 
digital point of sale screens. Players will have more choice in how they 
play, engage and interact with us and our lottery games in-store and 
via online and mobile.

Over the past twelve months the Lotterywest team has been preparing 
to introduce a new lottery game. ‘Set for Life’ was launched in 
September 2015 and offers an annuity style prize with the top prize of 
$20,000 a month for 20 years.  This is the first new national Lotto styled 
game we have launched in nearly twenty years. We are confident ‘Set 
for Life’ will attract a new generation of players.

To ensure we are prepared for the challenges ahead with changing 
retail patterns and the impacts of technology, we have started 
an effectiveness review of the organisation. We have appointed 
Blackpoint Consulting to work with our Board and Leadership Team. 
We aim to ensure we have the skills in the right areas of our business 
to meet the future needs of our customers, grant recipients and the 
community. Our focus is on how we best engage and serve them 
through our games and our grant making. 

Since joining Lotterywest in February, I’ve appreciated the warm 
welcome from many colleagues and customers. It’s a great privilege 
to lead such a highly regarded West Australian organisation.  
Along with the team at Lotterywest, I am focused on the opportunities 
that lie ahead.

I’d like to thank our Chairman John Atkins who departs from his role 
at Lotterywest in August. John has been an outstanding Chairman 
and I appreciate the knowledge he has shared with me during our six 
month tenure together. I also extend my thanks to the Board for the 
knowledge and experience they bring to Lotterywest.

On behalf of the organisation, I acknowledge past CEO Jan Stewart 
who shares this year’s record result. During her 22 years as CEO of 
Lotterywest, Jan made a significant contribution and built a highly 
respected organisation.

Finally, we express our appreciation to the Premier as our responsible 
Minister. We are fortunate to have him oversee Lotterywest.

Paul Andrew 
CEO

Paul Andrew 
CEO
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Clowning around to lift 
kids spirits

“The Clown Doctors program in Princess Margaret 
Hospital has become an integral part of the 
hospital community. We deliver a special kind 
of medicine that assists a sick child’s emotional 
healing and empowerment.”.

Clown Doctors do the ‘clown rounds’ four days a week 
at Princess Margaret Hospital, dosing their patients with 
entertainment, fun and laughter.

Clown Doctors are highly skilled professional performers 
who deliver ‘humour therapy interventions’ for children in 
hospital, helping to distract them, reduce anxiety and  
uplift spirits. 

Lotterywest has supported the WA Clown Doctor program 
with over $200,000 in grants so it can continue its valuable 
work, which touches the lives of over 10,000 kids each year.

Melinda Farrell, CEO from The Humour Foundation, spoke 
about the importance of the program:

Captain Starlights, Paul Andrew, Jayne Graham and the Hon. John McGrath MLA at Starlight Foundation
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Saturday Lotto 

$344.3m
Monday &  
Wednesday Lotto 

$64.7m

Powerball 

$179.1m

Other Games 

$18.0m

Scratch’n’Win 

$96.8m

Other income 

$24.5m

OZ Lotto 

$123.4m

Prizes 

$463.4m
Retailers Commission 

$64.3m
Hospitals 

$121.6m

Arts 

$15.2m
Direct Grants 

$130.8m

Operational Expenses 

$62.1m

Sports 

$15.2m

2014/15  
Where the 

money came 
from 

2014/15  
Where the 

money  
went

Geraldton family win  
on Scratchie they almost  
gave away 

“I almost gave it to my son. I’m so glad I 
ended up giving him a different ticket!” 
said the woman.

Geraldton locals scooped up a $100,000 Top Prize on their 
$10 Word Play Scratch’n’Win ticket in June. The regular 
players, who bought their winning ticket from Jungle News 
and Lotto in Geraldton, said they nearly gave the ticket  
as a gift to their son.
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Organisational Structure

Board of Commissioners
John Atkins (Chairman)

Miriam Borthwick
Stephen Carre
Andrea Hall

Maria Harries
Gary Trinder

Chief Executive Officer
Paul Andrew

Grants & Community 
Development

General Manager
Jacquie Thomson

Business 
Operations

General Manager
Maree Brown

Executive & 
Corporate        

Communications

Corporate 
Services

General Manager (CFO)
Pascoe Rechichi

Strategy & Planning

General Manager
Lorraine Driscoll

Information 
Services

General Manager (CIO)
Don Wharton

Business 
Development

General Manager
Alec James

Grants Customer &  
Financial Services

Grants Management & 
Development

Grants Strategy,  
Governance &  
Engagement

Product Marketing

Customer Services

Retail Distribution & 
Operations

Retailer Relationships & 
Development

Gaming & Business  
Systems

Human Resource  
Services

Financial Services

Business Services

Business Intelligence

Organisational  
Development

ERP Business System

IS Planning & Projects

IS Services

New Games &  
Products

Relationship  
with BLOC
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Corporate Structure – Board of Management

L-R: Dr Maria Harries, Mr Garry Trinder, Mr John Atkins, Ms Miriam Borthwick,  

Mr Stephen Carre, Mr Paul Andrew, Ms Andrea Hall.
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Ms Miriam Borthwick

Ms Miriam Borthwick joined the 
Lotterywest board in March 2015. 
She is an experienced journalist, 
strategic communications and 
media relations advisor with 
more than 25 years working 
in the media, government and 
corporate sectors.

Ms Borthwick provides clients in 
the public and private sectors 
with strategic and tactical 
communications advice, 
including crisis management 
advice. She has worked as 
a communications specialist 
at board, executive and 
management levels in a variety 
of organisations in different 
fields. While she has specialised 
in the energy sector, she has also 
worked in health delivery, urban 
planning, Indigenous affairs  
and education.

Ms Borthwick was WA's first 
female state politics reporter 
for ABC TV News. She was an 
award winning senior reporter 
for 'The 7.30 Report' and a 
political panellist on ABC Radio.

Ms Borthwick is currently 
President of the Board  
of the Spina Bifida and 
Hydrocephalus Association  
of WA.

Dr Maria Harries

Dr Maria Harries was appointed to 
the Board in June 2011. Dr Harries 
runs her own consulting business 
as well as holding the positions 
of Associate Professor and Senior 
Honorary Research Fellow at The 
University of Western Australia, 
where she was employed for 
over twenty years. She is also 
an Adjunct Professor at Curtin 
University, engaged in research 
supervision and development.

Dr Harries gained her original 
degrees in psychology and 
politics from The University of 
Tasmania, and social work from 
The University of Western Australia. 
She then went on to complete a 
Masters in Social Administration 
from Flinders University and a 
PhD from Murdoch University. Dr 
Harries has built up a 40 year 
career in human services, in 
Western Australia, Interstate and 
overseas. During this time she 
has developed a reputation as 
a leader in a diversity of areas 
including mental health, child and 
family welfare, ethics, research, 
public policy, management and 
governance.

She has chaired or has been 
a non-executive director on a 
variety of local and national NFP 
boards and continues to do 
so. In acknowledgment of her 
contribution to the Australian 
community, she was awarded an 
Order of Australia (AM) in 2004.

Mr John Atkins 
Chairman

Mr John Atkins is the Chairman 
of the Board and was appointed 
in March 2010.

Mr Atkins has a long history of 
community involvement with 
previous board appointments on 
the Fremantle Hospital Board, 
Princess Margaret Hospital 
Foundation, Metropolitan Health 
Services Board, Foodbank, Lions 
Eye Institute and Asialink.

Formerly the Chairman of 
ANZ – Western Australia, John 
brings a strong background in 
commercial law and business to 
the Lotterywest Board.

Mr Atkins holds other 
appointments with Australian 
Finance Group Ltd, BWP Ltd and 
Committee for Perth Ltd.

Mr Atkins will retire from the 
board on 31 August to take up 
the position of Agent General  
in London.

Mr Garry Trinder

Mr Garry Trinder was appointed 
to the Board in January 2012. 
Before retirement he was CIO at 
Edith Cowan University. 

Mr Trinder has more than 
45 years’ experience in 
the information technology 
industry in both private and 
government sectors. In 2007 he 
was awarded the prestigious 
WA Information Technology 
and Telecommunications 
Award which recognised his 
outstanding contribution to 
the State's ICT industry. He is 
also a Fellow, Honorary Life 
Member and Past President of 
the Australian Computer Society 
(ACS).

Before his role at Edith Cowan 
University, Mr Trinder held a 
range of senior consultancy and 
management roles for groups 
including MercyCare Group, BHP 
Iron Ore and Arthur Young.

Mr Trinder was also elected to 
the City of Subiaco Council as 
a Councillor in October 2011 
representing the North Ward.  
His term is for four years.

Ms Andrea Hall

Ms Andrea Hall was appointed 
to the Board in March 2012. Ms 
Hall is a Fellow of the Institute 
of Chartered Accountant and a 
former partner within KPMG's 
Risk Advisory Services division. 
She has more than 20 years 
of experience in finance, risk 
management, internal and 
external audit, corporate 
governance and advisory 
services.

During her tenure at KPMG, she 
worked closely with many large 
organisations in the mining, 
health, transport, insurance, and 
not-for-profit sectors as well as 
with government infrastructure 
agencies. Ms Hall was the 
2011 Chair of the WA Council 
for the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants where she was an 
elected member for 7 years.

Ms Hall is currently a Senate 
member of Murdoch University 
and Chairs their Audit and Risk 
Committee, a board member 
of Panorama Health Network 
and Black Swan Health.  She 
sits on the Risk and Compliance 
Committee for Telethon 
Kids Institute.  She provides 
Governance and risk consulting 
services and consults to Derwent 
Executive.

Mr Stephen Carre

Mr Stephen Carre joined 
the Board in December 
2013. He brings a wealth of 
experience as a successful 
small business owner of his 
multi-award winning IGA store 
in Swanbourne. He also has 
interests in food and distribution 
as the Managing Director of 
Farm to Table which supports 
famers to distribute their 
products to independent retailers 
and supermarkets.

He has a strong background 
in business improvement, 
developed during his 30 year 
career in banking and small 
business. Mr Carre has held 
senior roles at Bankwest and 
worked nationally with Westpac, 
NAB and IAG. He is a CPA and 
has a business degree and MBA.

Mr Carre has also worked with 
numerous community based 
organisations including the 
homeless, disadvantaged and 
the elderly.
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Corporate Structure – Leadership Team 

Paul Andrew 
CEO

Mr Paul Andrew joined Lotterywest in 
February 2015. He is responsible for the 
organisation’s day to day operations 
and the growth and development 
of Lotterywest through business and 
strategic frameworks. 

Paul has over 30 years work experience 
within government and the not-for-profit 
sector. In his most recent role, Paul 
was the Chief Executive Officer of Surf 
Life Saving Western Australia (SLSWA) 
for nine and a half years. During his 
tenure with SLSWA, Paul navigated 
the organisation through a period of 
significant operational, membership and 
financial growth and stability.

Prior to this role, Paul held the position 
of Director, Corporate Services at St 
John of God Health Care Murdoch and 
Manager, Employee and Community 
Relations at the Catholic Education Office 
in WA.

Holding a Bachelor of Business in 
Human Resource Management and 
Industrial Relations, Paul has extensive 
experience in leadership, strategic 
planning, business growth and 
development. 

Paul has a strong community focus. 
He remains an active surf lifesaver and 
a former President of the City of Perth 
Surf Life Saving Club. Paul was the 
former Board Chair of Our Lady of Good 
Counsel Catholic School and former 
Deputy Chair of the Western Australian 
Sports Federation.

L-R: Ms Lorraine Driscoll, Mr Don Wharton, Mr Alec James, Ms Maree Brown,  

Mr Paul Andrew, Ms Jacquie Thomson, Mr Pascoe Rechichi.
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Ms Maree Brown 
General Manager, Business 
Operations

Ms Maree Brown is responsible 
for leading our lottery operations, 
including game management 
and product marketing and 
communications, management 
and development of the retail 
network, services to players, and 
gaming system management 
and development. Maree took 
up her current role in 2006, 
having managed our Retail 
Distribution and Operations 
section since 2003.  She has 
a Bachelor of Arts from The 
University of Western Australia. 

Ms Lorraine Driscoll 
General Manager, Strategy and 
Planning

Ms Lorraine Driscoll is 
responsible for driving business 
growth and the strategic 
direction of Lotterywest. Her 
key responsibilities include 
corporate and business 
planning, leading business 
intelligence and insights, 
reporting on organisational 
performance, leading 
organisational development and 
the management of business 
information systems. 

Lorraine is a member of 
the Chartered Institute of 
Management Accountants, a 
Certified Global Management 
Accountant and an Associate 
Member of the Australian 
Institute of Company Directors. 
Her previous role at Lotterywest 
was as the Chief Financial Officer 
and before moving to Australia, 
she was the Financial Controller 
of the Body Shop (Ireland).

Lorraine is currently a Board 
Member of Visibility, previously 
Association for the Blind. She 
was the Asia Pacific Lottery 
Association Secretary and 
Treasurer from 2000 to 2007.

Mr Alec James 
General Manager, Business 
Development

Mr Alec James is responsible 
for leading the investigation, 
development and 
implementation of business 
initiatives and new opportunities 
for the organisation. During 
the 20 years he has been with 
Lotterywest, Alec has played 
a key role in many national 
and state lottery marketing 
initiatives. He has been involved 
in managing the Australian 
national Lotto games as well as 
the introduction of various new 
lottery products and services. 

Alec has a Bachelor of Business 
with a major in Accounting, is a 
Certified Practicing Accountant 
and has completed the UWA 
Advanced Management 
Program.

Before he joined Lotterywest in 
1995 as Director of Sales and 
Marketing, Alec held various 
senior executive positions within 
the Financial Services industry.  
He has also been a member 
of the Governing Council of 
leading Western Australian 
private school, Wesley College, 
for nine years and has previously 
served on the Board of the West 
Australian Hockey Association.

Mr Pascoe Rechichi 
General Manager, Corporate 
Services and Chief Financial 
Officer

Mr Pascoe Rechichi is 
responsible for financial, 
human resources, investments, 
buildings, procurement, risk, 
legal and governance services.  

His qualifications include FCPA, 
GAICD with Masters Degrees in 
Management, Accounting and 
Strategic Procurement, a Post 
Graduate Diploma in Taxation 
and Bachelor of Business 
(Accounting and Finance). 

Pascoe’s past work positions 
include Department of 
Treasury and Finance as 
General Manager of Projects 
Management Office, Executive 
Manager Finance Services and 
Chief Finance Officer.  His key 
experience and skills include 
leading the Corporate Systems 
Reform Agenda. This included 
design and management, 
services for Finance and Human 
Resource Services Supply Chain, 
Finance and Procurement 
Management and delivering 
Corporate Services.

Ms Jacquie Thomson 
General Manager, Grants  
and Community Development

Ms Jacquie Thomson is 
responsible for ensuring the 
effective management of 
Lotterywest’s direct grants 
program and support and advice 
to the West Australian not-for-
profit sector.

She has a Bachelor of Arts (Social 
Sciences) from the Western 
Australian Institute of Technology 
(now Curtin University) and 
a Graduate Certificate in 
Management from Deakin 
University. 

Jacquie has worked in 
community development for 
more than 25 years. Before 
joining Lotterywest in 1994, she 
worked in the not-for-profit sector 
in the areas of domestic violence, 
youth accommodation, mental 
health and as a community 
development practitioner. After 
undertaking a variety of grants 
assessment, management, 
policy development and strategic 
planning roles for Lotterywest, 
Jacquie took up her current role 
in 2003. 

Mr Don Wharton 
General Manager, Information 
Services and Chief Information 
Officer

Mr Don Wharton leads the 
planning and frameworks 
to bring about alignment 
between technology investment 
and business objectives at 
Lotterywest. His qualifications 
include Doctor of Philosophy 
(Cambridge University, Master 
of Science (London School 
of Economics), Bachelor of 
Technology (Brunel University).

Don’s past work positions 
include Chief Information Officer 
for NSW Railways (RailCorp), 
Sydney Water Corporation and 
BHP Engineering. He also was 
General Manager of Scandic 
International and Commercial 
Director for venture capital group 
SciRaD.

Don’s key skills include business 
technology strategist, technology 
interpreter, change agent and 
technology integrator. He has 
diverse business experience 
in business planning, financial 
control, business development 
and project management.

L-R: Ms Lorraine Driscoll, Mr Don Wharton, Mr Alec James, Ms Maree Brown,  

Mr Paul Andrew, Ms Jacquie Thomson, Mr Pascoe Rechichi.
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Alignment to Government Goals

Agency Performance Management Framework

The State Government’s broad, high level goals are supported at an agency level by specific outcomes.  
The following table shows the alignment between the Government goals and Lotterywest’s strategic objectives, key performance indicators, measures and results. 

Government Goal

Greater focus on achieving results in key 
service delivery areas for the benefit of 
all Western Australians.

Responsibly managing the State’s 
finances through the efficient 
and effective delivery of services, 
encouraging economic activity and 
reducing regulatory burdens on the 
private sector.

Ensuring that economic activity 
is managed in a socially and 
environmentally responsible manner  
for the long-term benefit of the State.

Greater focus on service delivery, 
infrastructure investment and  
economic development to improve  
the overall quality of life in remote  
and regional areas.

Building strategic infrastructure that 
will create jobs and underpin Western 
Australia’s long-term economic 
development.

Key Performance Indicator

Total returns to beneficiaries per capita.

Direct grants / sales ratio.

Operating expenses as % of sales. 

Sales per adult.

‘Play Responsibly’ program offered 
in line with World Lottery Association 
Responsible Gaming Framework.

% representation of  Community Service 
Outlets within our distribution network.
Play online participation.

No of visits to remote and regional 
areas. 

No of full service Lotterywest stores. 
% of procurement contracts with WA 
based supplier organisations. 

Objectives

Support the community of Western 
Australia through our grants program.

To efficiently administer the lottery  
in Western Australia.

To provide a responsible lottery  
service for Western Australia. 

To ensure that our products and  
services are accessible to all people 
living in our State. 

Increase awareness of grants  
program in remote and regional  
areas.

To maintain a strong state wide  
retail network.

Develop relationships and  
partnerships with WA suppliers.

Measures

Grants administration, evaluation and 
distribution.

Provision of Lotto and Scratch’n’Win 
products to the public.

Accreditation process through World  
Lottery Association.

Annual distribution planning. 

Raising awareness of Play Online. 

Establishing operational structure to 
increase understanding remote and 
regional areas’ needs and requirements. 

Annual distribution planning 
Retail Transformation Program

Results

$110.28

15.8%

5.7%

$404.49

17% of distribution network are 
designated Community Service 
Outlets.

35% increase in Play Online 
registration from previous year.

48 visits to regional and remote 
centre by Grants and Community 
Development

500 full service Lotterywest stores

85% of procurement contracts 
with WA based supplier 
organisations
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Strategic Framework

This diagram describes the key elements of our business model and provides the 
framework to achieve our business goals. The structure of this Annual Report focuses on 
these components of our business model.

Retailer Profile
Fiona Stanley News & Gifts, Murdoch

“It feels good to work for Lotterywest and 
to know that my lottery sales are helping to 
make a positive deference in the community. 
Even though we haven’t been opened long, 
we already have customers who visit us 
regularly. It’s especially fulfilling when you 
see those people who are doing it tough 
have a win and know they are receiving a 
bit of financial relief. It’s still early days and 
we haven’t struck Division 1 Lotto luck yet, 
but we’re hoping a big win is just around 
the corner. Maybe our good luck charm, a 
Japanese Cat which represents prosperity, 
will bring some luck.” 

Lotterywest welcomed Darrell and Maria Chin, owners of Fiona 
Stanley News and Gifts, to the retail network in January 2015. 
When asked why they decided to become Lotterywest retailers, 
they said the main reason was the valuable role Lotterywest 
played in the WA community.
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Core strategy 

•    Develop an enhanced portfolio  
of products that appeals to 
existing and new players. 

Games
To achieve sales growth Lotterywest seeks to continually improve 
existing products and to introduce new games which can responsibly 
grow our overall portfolio.

The majority of our games are managed in partnership with the 
Australian Lotteries Bloc which provides a research function and a 
clear view of the Australian market. The Bloc oversees new game 
design, price rises and game mechanic changes to ensure the 
portfolio of products offered remains attractive to local players.

Saturday Lotto
Saturday Lotto lifted participation with average draw sales increasing 
by 4.1% from the previous financial year. There were seven Superdraw 
events throughout the year and one $30 million New Year Megadraw. 
These events provide valuable opportunities and make up 32.2% of 
annual sales and whilst attracting new and infrequent players to the 
game. An incremental price rise was applied to Saturday Lotto in  
July 2014. 

Sixty two West Australians won Saturday Lotto Division 1 sharing in a 
combined total of $67.7 million.

Overall, Saturday Lotto sales contributed 41.7% of overall sales. 
In partnership with the Australian Lotto Bloc, Lotterywest has 
commissioned market research. Our aim is to better understand how 
to continue to make our heritage game more attractive to players  
into the future.

Monday and Wednesday Lotto
Monday and Wednesday Lotto has performed strongly since the game 
changes in October 2013. This change delivered a Division 1 prize of 
$1 million guaranteed for up to four winners per game. Monday and 
Wednesday Lotto accounted for 7.8% of overall sales.

Wednesday Lotto has benefitted from Double Win Days with three 
events in 2014/15. The structure for Double Win Days changed to 
offer double prizes for Divisions 2 to 6 which rewarded loyal players 
and attracted new customers. Fourteen Western Australians won the 
guaranteed $1 million Monday and Wednesday Lotto Division 1 prize 
sharing in a combined $15 million.

OZ Lotto
OZ Lotto was 16.4% down against last financial year due to the 
relatively low level of jackpotting. The overall prize level on offer was 
20.6% less than the previous financial year. 

OZ Lotto reached a $40 million jackpot this year. Despite low level 
jackpotting OZ Lotto boasted four Division 1 winners who claimed 
collectively $52.5 million. OZ Lotto accounted for 14.9% of overall sales. 

Powerball
Powerball lived up to its reputation of being more exciting than ever 
and fulfilling the ‘One Powerball’ dream. Two Western Australians who 
won top prizes this year totalling $19.6 million. A number of significant 
jackpot rolls culminated in a $70M Powerball jackpot peak in August 
2014. This jackpot roll alone raised $16.5 million for the community. 
Powerball was 26.1% ahead of budget and accounted for 21.7% of 
overall sales.

A new game - Set for Life
In August 2015, the Australian Lotto Bloc launched a new game 
nationally. ‘Set for Life’ is an annuity style game offering $20,000 per 
month for 20 years. If won, the top prize is guaranteed for up to four 
winners per game. It is anticipated this game will engage a new 
generation of players and offer the first national daily draw game. 
Set for Life is the first new national lottery game launched in 20 years.  

It was the first time a truly national launch was held with all assets 
developed nationally including: logo, campaign material, digital 
assets, PR activity and more.

Instant Lotteries - Scratch’n’Win
Scratch’n’Win offered instant tickets in the price points from $1-$20 and 
contributed 11.7% to overall sales. The focus in 2014/15 was analysing 
the key game performance over the past four years to optimise 
portfolio sales. The outcomes of this analysis will inform planning for 
the coming period including the following key initiatives: 

•  Planogram that responds to player motivation/game style.
•  Improved prize structures so players experience more  

meaningful wins.
•  All new Word Play to reconnect with players – a clear progression  

in game grids, prize keys through the $3, $5 and $10 price points 
with an improved design.

Agency Performance – Products and Services
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Highlights in 2014/15 include:

• $1 and $20 price points exceeded budget.

• $3 Word Play continued to dominate in sales.

•  $5 Space Invaders licensed product, sales performed well  
and gained good social exposure with retailers participating  
in retail theatre.

•  $20 Gold Rush sales performed well with players coming back to  
it repeatedly as it was their ‘lucky game’.

•  $20 Lucky Game Book had nine games in one book – players 
found value for money. 

Combo Packs
New Combo Packs were launched in July 2014. The packs offer players 
an easy and convenient way to buy a ticket in every game. This has led 
to an increase in sales for our second tier games – Super66, Soccer 
Pools and Cash 3 and has encouraged players to try all our games 
within the portfolio. It also supported retailers to cross sell games. 
Combo Packs have contributed 0.8% to overall sales.

Other products –  
Cash 3, Soccer Pools and Super66
Lotterywest’s other games contributed 2.2% to overall sales. Cash 3 is 
a Western Australian based game with fixed odds of play. Soccer Pools 
is the only sports based product in our portfolio based on the results of 
international soccer games. Super66 is a fun add-on to Lotto games. 
Income from sales of these products increased 16% from the previous 
financial year based, in part, on their inclusion in Combo Packs. 

Players
In 2014/15 the annual sales per capita (people over the age of 16)  
was $404.49. This was an increase of 1.8% from the previous year 
based on record sales.

NE
W

Play Responsibly  
gamblinghelponline.org.au  1800 858 858

PACKS

The easy way to play your 
favourite games

5
GAMES

5
GAMES

2
GAMES

3
GAMES

4
GAMES

7
DRAWS

2
GAMES

1
GAME

$20

7
GAMES

7
DRAWS

5
GAMES

6
GAMES

6
GAMES

5
GAMES

2
GAMES

2
GAMES

$30

12
GAMES

11
GAMES

11
GAMES

7
GAMES

7
DRAWS

5
GAMES

3
GAMES

10
GAMES

$50

2
SYSTEM 7

3
SYSTEM 7

2
SYSTEM 8

6
SYSTEM 7

3
SYSTEM 7

1
SYSTEM 7

3
GAMES

$100
Systems



18      Lotterywest 2015 Annual Report

Player’s Card
In 2014/15, 8,864 players registered for a Player’s Card. This was 
a decrease of 16.9% from the previous financial year. This service 
enables our players to register all tickets purchased against their 
personal Player’s Card when buying from a retailer. 

The player is protected in the case of the loss of a ticket or if they 
choose not to claim the prize in person (or forget) the prize will still be 
paid in full. 

The decrease, in part, can be attributed to an increase in players 
registering to Play Online and engaging with the Lotterywest App. 
Aligned with the Retail Transformation Program, Lotterywest is 
reviewing its Player’s Card service to make a seamless offering 
between our online and offline services. Player’s Card holders will 
receive further information in the coming year.

Syndicates
Syndicates provide a way to make playing more affordable and 
share the experience of winning with other players. In 2014/15 overall 
syndicate sales accounted for 4.1% of overall sales, an increase of 
2.6% from the previous financial year.

The profile of s yndicates was boosted by the $30 million  
OZ Lotto Syndicate win in May 2015 where 10 winners shared 
the Division 1 prize.

Lotterywest offers three different models of syndicates. Syndicates can 
be organised by retailers for groups of customers, known as ‘Group 
Syndicates’. An individual retailer can offer their own customers 
‘Retailer Syndicates’. 

All syndicates offered by retailers are now managed through 
Lotterywest terminals. Each player receives a live ticket for their share 
of the syndicate.

Lotterywest also has the authority to offer ‘Network Syndicates’;  
shares in these syndicates can be sold by any retailer throughout  
the network. This means that the risk of carrying unsold shares is 
borne by Lotterywest, not the retailer as is the case with retailer 
generated syndicates. 

This is particularly helpful for smaller retailers and allows a greater 
range of syndicates to be offered to players of different ticket types 
across all games. 

Agency Performance – Products and Services

Family syndicate thank second 
ticket and birthday numbers 

“I just kept circling the numbers on the  
winning ticket and then I did a little dance.  
It was so surreal. We can travel in style 
now and upgrade to first class,” one family 
member said.

A lucky Perth family syndicate who collected a $1.5 million 
prize in November had been playing the same numbers, 
which were based on birthdays, since Lotto started. They’d 
bought their winning ticket from Nextra Express Ellenbrook.
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Product Results 2011-15
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Agency Performance – Products and Services

Core strategy 

•    Deliver an effective and creative 
direct grants program.

Grants

Listening to customers
The Social Value Analysis Project (SVAP), completed in 2013, has 
continued to inform Lotterywest’s grant making practice and provided 
focus on areas for improvement.

One of the key recommendations was for improved grant turnaround 
times. We aim to manage most applications within a four month 
timeframe. Some applications are turned around more quickly than 
this and others can take longer. This happens when they require 
further developmental work or if important information isn’t provided 
with the original application. This year, grants were considered and 
approvals made on a fortnightly basis, improving the service  
for customers. 

Customer feedback about grant turnaround times was also a driver 
for our review of whether annual grant rounds (with an advertised 
open and close date) were still needed to help manage demand in 
some grant areas.  This included grants for Emergency Relief, Cultural 
Heritage, Interpretation of Cultural Heritage, Regional Performing Arts 
and Trails. We have changed our approach so applicants can now 
apply for these grants at any time throughout the year and choose 
a time that suits them. Grant recommendations are also made for 
these grants throughout the year, rather than once a year. 

Another recommendation was for improved communications of 
our grant opportunities, examples of grants we support and the 
benefit they bring to the community. As a result, we have improved 
information on the grant section of the Lotterywest website and 
increasingly used social media to share information about our grants 
and the link back to playing Lotterywest Games. 

We have also started a project this year to simplify our grant 
application forms and to review the supporting technology. 

We aim to provide a better customer experience and to adopt 
technology that can be managed more effectively in-house by the 
Grants team.

Critical to the effectiveness of the Grants team’s work is its 
commitment to listening to the experiences, challenges and 
aspirations of grant applicants. Our team have extensive experience 
in working in and with the not-for-profit sector. Having a deep 
understanding of not-for-profit organisations and the context for grant 
applications enables the Grants team to have a flexible and nuanced 
approach in meeting applicants’ needs.

Meeting demand
In recent years, Lotterywest has experienced a significant increase 
in demand for grant support both in terms of the number of actual 
applications and the amount of support requested. In response, the 
Grants team now routinely works with applicants, before applications 
are submitted, to help them plan and prioritise their business’ or 
organisation’s activities. Where possible we have assisted applicants 
to leverage partnerships or have recommended resources be shared 
with other organisations. Lotterywest has also sought support from 
other sources or has assisted applicants to assess whether they can 
make a greater contribution themselves.  

We also made a concerted effort to finalise the number of 
applications that were before us but had not been completed, for 
various reasons. Some applications were old and outdated; these 
were withdrawn. We encouraged these applicants to reapply if 
they still needed support. This more efficient demand management 
approach has now been incorporated into business as usual and the 
demand for our grants is now more manageable. 

While demand management has been a focus over the last couple 
of years, applicants should feel assured that Lotterywest is open 
for business. Organisations should actively pursue relevant grant 
opportunities with us. Our Grants team will guide applicants and 
work to help them successfully apply.

We are conscious of the pressures facing the not-for-profit sector 
and continue to work closely with a broad range of small to large 
organisations.  We offer advice about ways we can best support and 
add value to them to ensure they can best respond to the needs of 
the communities they serve.

Gathering Carrolup Stories

“As well as providing an important 
resource for building cultural and historical 
knowledge, it will reconnect the paintings 
to the artists and their families. 

“The importance and urgency of this 
project lies in the gathering of these stories 
as the individuals who hold these stories 
and experiences are ageing and few 
remain.”

The Lotterywest supported project, ‘Gathering Carrolup Stories’ 
involves recording stories of the child artists who lived at the 
Carrolup Native School and Settlement in Western Australia’s 
Great Southern region in the 1940s.

The children’s artworks were created as part of a teaching 
program. This was developed to ease the suffering of 
Aboriginal children forcibly removed from their families in 
accordance with the Government’s policy of assimilation in the 
late 1940s.

Curtin Vice-Chancellor Professor Deborah Terry said the project 
enabled a better understanding of this significant part of the 
State’s story:
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Grant making approach
A workshop was in held in December 2014 to review our grant 
making approach. The Lotterywest Board and the senior grants 
team focused on the principles and ‘ways of working’ which form 
the foundation for our direct grants program and community 
development activity.

This workshop affirmed Lotterywest’s approach to grant making  
aims to be: 
•  flexible – customers’ needs are at the centre of our grant making 

approach;
•  responsive – we react as positively and promptly as possible to 

our customers’ needs;
•  complementary – we combine with other funding sources and 

resources for the benefit of applicants and partners, and
•  developmental – if needed we work with grant applicants to help 

develop their plans and link them with others working in similar 
areas for mutual benefit. 

Our ‘ways of working’ to deliver on these principles is by:
•  building and maintaining relationships with our customers, 

stakeholders and others we work with;
• ensuring that our grant making is discretionary;
• working with others to increase the impact of the grant ;
• encouraging others to participate in community projects;
• looking for gaps and opportunities, and 
• encouraging learning and ongoing development.

This year we have reviewed and refined some grant areas to 
ensure they remain relevant including Information Communication 
Technology Grants, Building Grants and those previously provided 
through a Grant Round. This is part of a continuous review cycle 
that seeks to ensure our grant approach reflects our grant making 
principles and ‘ways of working’. Our grants website explains our 
current approach for these and other grant opportunity areas.

Sector impacts and developments
We continue to monitor sector impacts. These include tightened 
economic conditions, changes in the nature of and approach to 
funding by State and Commonwealth agencies and sustainability and 
viability challenges for not-for-profit organisations. In addition, we 
observe the growing complexity in demand for social services.

We also explore with interest developments which include:
• collective impact as a service delivery model
• co-design as a way of reshaping services
• growing interest in social enterprises
• crowdfunding
• new ways of organising resources such as the sharing economy
•  opportunities offered by the shift from physical to digital 

environments.

In all of these we explore ways we may add value and address 
the challenges as a grant maker and supporting community 
development.

 

Book Hub for Broome

“Our new expanded shop and enhanced 
workspaces for authors and illustrators 
will strengthen Magabala Books’ 
accessibility and local profile. We now 
have a better venue for public events 
and community engagement.  Our 
new façade is a bright and proud entry 
statement to Broome.”

Named after a bush banana that disperses spectacular 
parasol-shaped seeds, Magabala Books is Australia's oldest 
independent Indigenous publishing house. It is dedicated 
to spreading the seeds of Indigenous culture through the 
sharing of stories.

A Lotterywest Grant helped transform its Broome premises 
into a cultural hub.  Spaces were reconfigured to feature an 
on-site working space for authors and illustrators and an 
outdoor space for community engagement programs.

CEO Anna Moulton shared what the new space will bring to 
the organisation:
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Grant Stories

Perth International  
Arts Festival

“With more than 1.7 million 
attendances, the 2015 Perth 
International Arts Festival attracted 
its biggest ever audience and 
made a Giant impact on Western 
Australia,” Julian Donaldson, 
General Manager.

The 2015 Perth Festival promised to be an 
exploration of the epic and the intimate, and from 
the phenomenal Giants in the streets of Perth to the 
most delicate Madame Butterfly, it enjoyed critical 
acclaim. Lotterywest provided grants of $7.6 million 
to The University of Western Australia for the Festival, 
this included an additional $250,000 towards the 
staging of 'The Giants'. 

With more than 1.7 million attendances and the 
presentation of the largest cultural event in Western 
Australia’s history, the Festival and the arrival of The 
Giants took Perth city on an astonishing journey.

This year’s Festival was the final for Jonathan 
Holloway, Artistic Director 2012–15, in Perth. It 
attracted its biggest ever audience, and made a 
giant impact on Western Australia.

The Lotteries Commission 
Act specifies an amount up 
to 5% of net subscriptions 
should be given for the 
support of the Perth 
International Arts Festival 
and for the support of 
the Western Australian 
commercial screen industry.
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ScreenWest

“It was a year of continued 
quality productions in 
documentary and drama, 
financed with significant funding 
support from Lotterywest, 
attracting critical and commercial 
success.” Ian Booth, Chief 
Executive.

It was a strong production year for ScreenWest with 
$7.3 million allocated from Lotterywest in 2014/15 to 
support the Western Australian screen industry.

WA-made family film Paper Planes delighted 
audiences, taking $9.6 million at the box office and 
screening at film festivals around the world.

Award winning WA television productions that 
screened include Australia’s first musical documentary 
Prison Songs (SBS) and documentary series The War 
That Changed Us, part of the ABC’s ANZAC Centenary 
Commemorations.

During the year, 38 productions supported by 
ScreenWest were filmed. ScreenWest invested $5.2 
million in these projects, which leveraged production 
with a total value of $42 million.  



24      Lotterywest 2015 Annual Report

Statutory Grants

The Lotteries Commission  
Act directs how revenue raised 
for beneficiaries should be 
distributed.

Using a formula based on ‘net subscriptions’ 
(i.e. sales less prizes paid) the Act specifies 
that 40% should go to the State Pool Account 
on behalf of the Department for Health for 
the support of the State's hospitals. 

A further 5% is directed to the Sports Lottery 
Account and the same amount to the Arts 
Lottery Account. The Minister responsible for 
each of these respective portfolios distributes 
these funds to various organisations.

Health and Hospitals
WA Health is dedicated to ensuring the well-being of Western 
Australia’s ever-increasing population.

The demands on the health system continue to grow with more than 
one million emergency department visits, more than 80,000 elective 
surgery cases and nearly 35,000 babies delivered each year.

History was made in October 2014 with the opening of Fiona Stanley 
Hospital – the first new public hospital in the metropolitan area for 
more than 50 years. In April 2015, the new Busselton Health Campus 
was unveiled.

Lotterywest is proud to support this important work by providing WA 
Health with 40% of the net proceeds from its games, which this year 
was $122.6 million.

“History was made in October 2014 with the  
opening of Fiona Stanley Hospital – the first new  
public hospital in the metropolitan area for more  
than 50 years”. 

Department of Health.

Arts and Culture
Image credit: Trixie and Monkey perform in The West Australian 
Spiegeltent

The Department of Culture and the Arts managed an allocation of 
$15 million through 42 arts and cultural organisations from major 
performing arts companies to smaller arts and cultural organisations. 
The Arts Lottery Account funds enabled the planning of arts and 
cultural activities across the State including:
•  Walls from Perth to the Pilbara becoming canvas’ for over 45 artists 

as part of FORM’s Public 2014 project.
•  Yirra Yaakin publishing Sharing New Stories for its 21st Birthday 

and touring workshops to students throughout the North West and 
Kalgoorlie-Boulder.

•  WritingWA with the State Library of Western Australia challenging 
and inspiring people with new concepts at the inaugural Disrupted 
Festival of Ideas. 

“Culture and arts tell our stories, our history  
and our future and there is a role for everyone to  
play to ensure we encourage living in a  
thriving society.” 

Duncan Ord, Director General, Department of Culture and the Arts.

Image credit: Trixie and Monkey perform in The West Australian Spiegeltent  
FRINGE WORLD Festival 2014 Photo by Jarrad Seng



Sport and Recreation
NAIDOC Netball Carnival at the State Netball Centre
The Department of Sport and Recreation’s mission is to encourage 
participation in sport and active recreation at all levels. This year 
$15.2 million from the Sports Lotteries Account supported a range of 
programs and organisations around WA.

More than 5000 local sporting clubs were supported through  
$7.6 million in funding to 87 State Sporting Associations and 17 peak 
bodies. These ranged from football and netball through to flying disc 
and Outdoors WA.

Significant funding also went towards the following:
• creating active regional communities
• integrity in sport programs
• supporting industry representative organisations,
• WA Disabled Sports Association
• 41 Club Development Officers who deliver practical advice and 
programs to over 3400 community organisations. 

“Sport and recreation is about more than winning.  
It creates better educational, mental and physical 
health outcomes and builds social capital.  
This means our whole community wins.” 

Ron Alexander, Director General,  
Department of Sport and Recreation.

West Australian Institute of Sport
WAIS javelin thrower Kim Mickle was named WAIS Athlete of the Year 
at the prestigious WAIS Annual Dinner. 

WAIS managed an allocation of $4,878,390 in 2014/15 to assist 
WA’s peak high performance athletes through funds provided to the 
Department of Sport and Recreation.

WAIS moved into its new High Performance Service Centre in Mt 
Claremont in April 2015. The facility provided WA’s high performance 
athletes with the best in sport science and service support.
The count down to the 2016 Rio Olympic and Paralympic Games is 
on, and WAIS is continuing to provide training and service support to 
elite athletes hoping to wear the green and gold in Brazil. 

“Thirteen West Australians returned home as 
Commonwealth gold medal champions following  
the 2014 Glasgow Commonwealth Games.”  

Steve Lawrence, Executive Director, WAIS.

The Reuben family, owners of Reuben’s News and Collie 
Newsagency, have been Lotterywest retailers for almost 45 
years, making them one of the network’s longest standing. 
Over the years they have seen countless happy customers 
and have sold more than 20 Division 1 Lotto and top prize 
Scratch’n’Win tickets. Peter said the best part of the business 
were the people.

“The people here are wonderful, they  
are like family. We love them coming in 
and they enjoy visiting us. It’s always a 
great feeling when you sell a Division 1 
Lotto winner and see the positive impact  
it has on their lives. Of course what’s 
always been worthwhile is that we are 
also helping to make a difference in  
the community.”  

Retailer Profile
Reuben’s News & Collie Newsagency 
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Agency Performance Distribution – Products

Core Strategy
•   Determine ‘best’ retail 

opportunity for an area. 

•    Actively manage retail 
network for optimum 
performance. 

•    Grow digital channel and 
presence to meet our 
customers’ expectations. 

Product Distribution
Lotterywest products are sold through two channels – the retail 
distribution network and through ‘Play Online’, our Internet sales 
portal. This year, the online offering has expanded to include a 
Lotterywest App.

The retail distribution network is comprised of 500 outlets.  
These consist mainly of independent small businesses including 
newsagencies, specialised kiosks and pharmacies and in some 
regional areas, general stories and supermarkets selling the full  
range of Lotterywest products. An additional 33 outlets sell only  
Scratch’n’Win products. 

Location type Full service Scratch’n’Win Total
Metropolitan 343 24 367
Country 73 9 82
Community Service Outlet 84 0 84

The retail distribution network is undergoing significant change and 
there are continued reports of challenging economic conditions faced 
by small business owners. The retail distribution network contributes 
$784.6m or 95% to sales.

The past year’s network trends shows an increase in voluntary outlet 
terminations and new outlets, however the net effect is (-1) full service 
outlets to year end. 

Lotterywest establishes a limited number of new outlets are 
established each year; it takes into consideration areas of population 
growth and changes in consumer behaviour. Our annual Retail 
Distribution Plan invites expressions of interest for those wanting to 
establish an outlet in identified locations. 

Relocation of stores reduced by over 70%, however we expect to see 
an increase next year as a result of many retail projects completing 
during 2016. 

Distribution Activity 2014/15 2013/14
New Outlets 6 4
Change of Ownership 51 50
 •  Full service Lottery Outlets 48 44
Relocations 4 14
Voluntary Outlet Terminations 13 9
 •  Full Service Lottery Outlets 7 4

Percentage Comparison of outlets by business environment   

Commercial Environment Full service Scratch’n’Win Total
Neighbourhood Shopping Centre 225 2 227
Regional Shopping Centre 69 0 69
Stand Alone 49 15 64
Strip Shop 157 16 173
Total 500 33 533

Primary Business Type

Primary Business Type Retailer Offline Grand Total
Convenience Store 6 2 8
Delicatessen 5 12 17
Kiosk 42 1 43
Newsagency 391 15 406
Pharmacy 16 0 16
Supermarket 40 3 43
Total 500 33 533

Supporting retailers
To support the retail distribution network, Lotterywest offers support 
through training and incentive programs. The goal is to increase sales 
and improve standards of customer service, business skills and in-
store presentation. 

Training Course No. of attendees
Manage a Lottery Outlet  141
Work in Lottery Outlet 295
Total attendees 436
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Our incentive program ‘Lotteryworks’, paid $253,000 to retailers as 
part of a continuing series of programs. The primary focus was on 
increasing sales for Saturday Lotto.

Lotterywest is making a significant investment into our retail network 
through the Retail Transformation Program (RTP) described below. RTP 
will deliver an improved in-store experience for players and position 
Lotterywest retailers’ businesses for success over the next decade. 

Connecting with retailers
Lotterywest hosted six retailer business meetings between 
September and November 2014 in order to share business results 
and engage the network in significant business projects. Members 
of the Lotterywest team travelled to the Great Southern (Albany), 
Eastern Goldfields (Kalgoorlie), South West (Bunbury), Mid North West 
(Geraldton) and hosted two meetings in metropolitan Perth. 

Play Online
Our online channel now delivers 5.1% of annual sales and has 
103,415 registered players. This is an increase of 18.6% from the 
previous year.

In 2014/15, Play Online generated over $41.8 million and was up  
30% on the previous financial year. With the addition of the 
Lotterywest App this year, players have a range of options to play 
online and in-store at their convenience. In order to remain relevant, 
Lotterywest will continue to evolve its online offering to compliment 
the retail transformation and achieve an omni-channel experience  
for customers. 

A new App
In May 2015, a new Lotterywest App launched and achieved a 4 1/2 
star rating within two months (App Store). Our research confirmed 
mobile usage for play is on the rise with 66% of players using their 
mobile and tablets versus desktop to access the Lotterywest website. 

The positive take up and feedback of the App confirms this is a 
service our players are seeking. In less than seven weeks, sales 
through the App have reached $285,000 which is 0.28% of the overall 
sales and 4.7% of online sales.

Distribution strategy looking forward
Lotterywest has commenced research to ascertain future retail 
opportunities to responsibly grow sales and attract new players.
While we do not have any immediate plans to significantly increase 
our network, Lotterywest needs to consider changes to the retail 
environment, customer expectations and technology so that our 
business remains relevant in the future.

This research will provide us with relevant information about our 
existing retail network. This will help optimise the performance 
of each individual retailer and support a more customised retail 
management approach. 

Transforming Retail 
Lotterywest’s key business project for the past and coming year is the 
Retail Transformation Program (RTP). We have an ageing retail design 
and lottery technology heading towards the end of its expected life. 
Coupled with this, retail has changed and the way customers make 
choices about what, when and how they buy, continues to evolve.

RTP is critical to our business success over the next 10 years and 
will provide a platform for growth for Lotterywest and our retailers. 
It comprises a number of inter-related projects and will result in a 
smart new retail design and modern technology. The improvements 
will ensure we remain relevant and grow the support and loyalty of 
existing and new players. 

The introduction of new retail technology, which includes self-serve 
purchase opportunities in some stores, is a major feature of RTP. 
Following an extensive period of consultation, engagement and 
market research, the new retail design concept and technology is 
going through the final stages of planning. 

Early in 2016 we will be piloting the new retail design in concept 
stores in select locations. The entire retail network will take two and 
three years to change over to the new retail design. 

The roll out of the new technology and a new player registration 
service is scheduled to occur later in 2016.   

Lotterywest App

Retail Transformation Program
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Agency Performance Distribution – Grants

Core Strategy
•   Ensure the effective 

distribution of our grants. 

•   Grow digital channel  
and presence to meet our 
customer’s expectations. 

Relationships with communities
The connection and the relationships we have with our grants 
customers are of primary importance – and the foundation of our 
grant making approach. In a state as vast and diverse as WA, this 
means that our Grants and Community Development team need 
to travel extensively to work with our customers in their place, and 
to understand the context in which they are delivering services and 
undertaking their activities.

This year the Grants teams have focused on having more of a 
presence in the regional areas.  In the South West and Great  
Southern we have visited Albany, Busselton, Augusta, Margaret River, 
Bunbury, Harvey, Collie, Capel, Manjimup, Nannup and Bridgetown.  
Significant projects supported include the Collie Skate Park, and in 
Albany, the Town Square redevelopment and the Commemorative 
Concert held on the 100th anniversary of the departure of the first 
convoy to Gallipoli.

Around the Wheatbelt and Goldfields regions we visited Merredin, 
Kellerberrin, Narrogin, Wagin, Dalwallinu, Jurien Bay, Cervantes, 
Moora, Dandaragan, Kalgoorlie, Esperance and Ravensthorpe. In 
partnership with Department of Sport and Recreation, Healthway and 
Office of Multicultural Interests, we presented at funding information 
sessions which were well attended by the local communities. 
Team members were pleased to see planning and developmental 
work finalise in a grant to support a much needed multi-purpose 
community centre in Leonora.

In the Peel region we have continued with the bi-monthly grants 
information sessions in Mandurah in partnership with the City, also 
visiting Boddington.

Midwest visits have included Geraldton, Mingenew, Perenjori, 
Morawa, Three Springs, Carnamah, Coorow, Mt Magnet and Mt 
Gibson, Cue and Meekatharra. A highlight of working in this area 
was to see a grant approved to support the Midwest Aboriginal 
Organisations Alliance, comprising of 15 Aboriginal focused 
organisations. This is a collaborative two year project addressing 
Aboriginal health and wellbeing in the Midwest.

Kimberley and Pilbara travel is always extensive given the distance 
between communities, complexity of need and demand for our team 
to partner on various projects.  

We have travelled to Broome, Derby, Port Hedland, Kununurra, 
Wyndham, Kalumburru, Fitzroy, Yiylili, Djugerari, Muludja, Halls Creek 
and Joy Springs.

We continue to partner with the Pilbara Development Commission 
and BHP on various projects and regional infrastructure development. 
Key projects include the Ranger Base at Parnngurr. This project 
supports the Martu Rangers that operate throughout the Great Sandy 
Desert and along the Canning Stock Route. We are also helping with 
construction and refurbishment of the youth centre facility which is part 
of the Lawson Street Learning and Development Precinct in the Town of 
Port Hedland.

The metropolitan area has seen grant seminars in Melville and 
Kwinana which were well attended by a range of not-for-profit 
organisations. We regularly engage with local government 
authorities and peak organisations to talk about the support for 
community initiatives and to encourage partnering and other forms of 
collaborations.

Grant Managers Joni Sercombe and Michelle Beer getting their green thumbs on 
at the opening of the Lotterywest supported Murray Districts Aboriginal Association 
Community Centre which runs health programs plus cultural and land management 
activities.
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Learnings from working in communities
We work within a relationship model and value ‘face to face’ contact 
with our customers.  We have learned that it is important to be flexible 
and make sure the timing of our visits will work for communities.  
We also strive to extend the amount of contact with our customers, 
particularly in the regions we know are experiencing challenges 
or significant change. This connection helps us to understand the 
landscape and informs our grant making and customer service 
approaches.  It also builds on our existing relationships and connects 
us with new stakeholders within these communities.

This year some of our regional visits have included working with 
customers on payment and acquittal challenges through our grants 
customer engagement program. This program provides important 
learnings and understanding of customer needs and responds to the 

challenges that exist for many of our regional and remote customers, 
including accessing equipment and services. 

This significantly contributes to our business improvement work, 
including how we provide our services. Additionally we have started 
to streamline and simplify our grant application forms to improve our 
customers’ digital experience of our application process. Another 
focus for the coming year will be exploring ways we communicate 
with our customers in a digital environment.  

We have always encouraged our customers to call or meet with 
us directly so they know there are people with a strong knowledge 
base that are available to talk to. But we also need to broaden our 
approach to encompass relevant digital options that our customers 
can use in order to work more actively in that channel.

The Shire of Leonora - proudly 
preserving WA heritage

“The Shire of Leonora takes great pride 
in making a valuable contribution to the 
preservation of the heritage in its care”, said 
Shire of Leonora Shire President Councillor 
Peter Craig.

The Shire of Leonora is home to a number of Western 
Australian heritage icons which Lotterywest Grants will help  
to conserve.

Original miners’ cottages, Major’s Boarding House, Burglar 
Bill’s, the Shift Boss’ House, Unnamed Camp and the 
Function House will be made watertight and secure. The 
Sons of Gwalia timber incline headframe designed in 1898, 
the last remaining in Australia will be conserved. A report 
determining the scope of work will be written on the Barnes’ 
Federal Theatre, built in 1901 as a venue for community and 
social activities.

Grant Manager Faye Baxter on the hunt for Rakali near Pinjarra. (Grant to WWF Australia).
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Agency Performance – Communication and Branding

Core Strategy

•    Target communications 
balancing existing and new 
communication channels.

•    Continue to build upon our  
heritage as a provider of 
lottery products and an 
integral part of the WA 
community.

Making a difference 
Lotterywest has a unique ‘community focused’ brand with 80% of 
Western Australians acknowledging Lotterywest as a significant 
contributor to community life (Brand Health Study 2013). The marketing 
of our games and engaging West Australians to play responsibly is 
the key to delivering community benefit.

Our community positioning of ‘You play. You give.’ reinforces the link 
between playing and giving and is evidenced in our community 
stories. These feature eleven organisations from around the State 
demonstrate the impact Lotterywest Grants have on their community 
and beneficiaries. 

To acknowledge the significance of the centenary of Anzac 
commemorations, Lotterywest in partnership with the RSL developed 
‘The Bond’ campaign. This supported the RSL to engage a new 
generation of membership. It aimed to connect those who had served 
in various theatres of war and peacekeeping efforts. Over the duration 
of the campaign, three stories were shared and a website invited 
stories from the public. Mrs Anne Leach, Anzac centenarian, kindly 
agreed to feature in the final piece sharing her story as a Red Cross 
nurse in WW2.

The link between playing and giving is also reinforced through a range 
of community signage. This is positioned to demonstrate Lotterywest 
support for significant community infrastructure projects.

Selling the dream
The dream of winning a big prize is the motivation behind the 
marketing of our lottery games. Our portfolio of nine Lotto style games 
and Scratch’n’Win products appeal to a range of customers and offer 
a mix of play styles and prize levels. 

The marketing strategy focuses on a customer centric approach 
offering play options through our network of Lotterywest retailers and 
our Internet channel, Play Online and App. 

We aim to give our customers more choice in how they play 
Lotterywest Games and to transition seamlessly between online  
and retail. 

How do you play?
Customer feedback drove an education program which built five ‘ways 
to play’ videos designed to educate players on different play methods. 
Themes included Play Online, Playslips, Slikpiks, Syndicates and 
Systems. Two additional videos were created to launch the Lotterywest 
App and Set for Life.

A ‘ways to play’ landing page was created on the Lotterywest  
website. It used digital banners in line with the animation style of  
the videos, directing players and potential players to learn more about 
our games. 

Customer shift to digital
Understanding our players’ buying behaviour is important in 
optimising our marketing expenditure. The significant shift to digital 
and social engagement has seen our marketing and communication 
make a considerable shift online. It is now more social in approach. 
Key activities include:

Anzac 'The Bond', featuring Mrs Anne Leach.
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Always on
The ‘Always On’ remarketing and prospecting digital activity continued 
from the previous year with strong conversion rates driving purchase. 
It also achieved high impression rates to prompt in-store purchases. 
Always On has evolved into a platform that allows for cost effective 
message creation, and real time targeting with a focus on specific 
player behaviours.

Automation
The importance of relevant, timely and automated communications to 
our players is important to drive player engagement. Work has started 
on email automation which allows for trigger based marketing in a 
manner that puts our players first. 

We will talk to them when they want to hear, how they want to hear 
and about what they want to know. The work on automation will 
encompass multiple contact channels including email, SMS and  
social media.

Engaging online players
Our Play Online channel continues to grow, with research showing 
that many also continue to play in-store. Competitions in social 
media and on the Lotterywest website engage our online players to 
participate in different games. 

The launch of the Lotterywest App has increased our presence,  
and will likely see younger, digitally focussed players buying and 
engaging online.

Social channels
In March 2014, the Lotterywest Games and Lotterywest Grants 
Facebook pages were launched to accompany Lotterywest’s Twitter 
and You Tube channels. By the end of the financial year, Lotterywest 
Games reached over 21,000 Facebook followers, and Grants over 
9,000. As an important engagement tool, we have increased our 
adverting investment in this channel. 

We pay close attention to advertising return on investment in order 
to monitor our performance. The channel has built a two way 
engagement with our customers and a unique platform to position 
our brand and products. This includes evidencing our winners and 
reinforcing the community impact of our grant making. Perth couple thank 

broken lawn mower for 
$5 million win
A married couple from Perth's northern suburbs thanked  
a broken lawn mower for their $5 million OZ Lotto windfall  
in February. 

The couple scooped the entire $5 million 
Division 1 Prize Pool after buying their ticket 
from Padbury News and Post. It was a last 
minute decision by the couple on the day of 
the draw to buy their winning ticket, which 
cost them only $7.20.

"How to play" videos launched.
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Our People 
Lotterywest has an establishment of 220 staff. In the past year,  
23 staff members left the organisation and 33 started.

• 4% of staff members are aged under 26 years. 
• 75% are aged 26 to 54 years. 
• 21% are aged over 55 years. 
• The average age of staff is 43.4 years.   
•  55% are of staff members are women and 45% are men:  

the same as the previous year.

Recruitment and Induction
The Recruitment and Induction initiative enhanced our ability to 
respond to change. It ensures we have the right people with the  
right skills to achieve our strategic objectives. 

A number of project initiatives were implemented in 2014/15:
•  38 Managers were trained in the recruitment and selection 

process.    
•  An online recruitment system (Recruitment Advertising 

Management System) was implemented to streamline the  
end-to-end recruitment process.

•  7 staff attended the revised corporate induction program which 
emphasises key messages and expectations for new staff.  
The new program was launched in June and the program will 
frequently to induct new staff.   

Employee Assistance Program
A panel of suppliers provide access to a range of employee  
assistance services to support staff well-being. The providers are 
Anglicare, Centrecare Corporate, Martinovich Psychological  
Services and Optum. 

The services include confidential, professional counselling on work-
related or personal problems, specialist advice for managers and 
critical incident or trauma response services for retailers, their staff  
and families.

Developing our people

Connecting Learning to Work 
We have implemented an organisational wide approach to learning 
based on the 70:20:10 model. This model supports the view that 
learning and development is most effective when it is a blend of on the 
job experience/ exposure (70% / 20%) and traditional training (10%).

Manager Forums and Training
The forums across our Senior Manager and Manager groups focused 
on embedding core coaching skills and leading change. A focus has 
been to support managers to build autonomy, mastery and purpose in 
their teams. Satisfaction rates with the forums have rated consistently 
in the top quartile. 

Learning and Development 
We continue to achieve efficiencies by greater alignment of 
development to strategic objectives by providing targeted tailored 
training programs delivered in house. These include Accountable 
and Ethical Decision Making (AEDM) training for 14 new staff and a 
shortened refresher program— attended by 57 staff. All this ensures 
our staff hold the highest ethical and professional standards. 94% of 
employees have now completed this type of training. 

Agency Performance – Capacity

Core Strategy

•    Build our resilience and 
ability to respond quickly 
to change. Ensure we use 
our resources and systems 
to achieve our identified 
business strategies.

Lotterywest team members Jose and Chad.
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Other programs have focused on improving contract  
management (64 attendees), written communication (59  
attendees) and email mastery.

Inter-agency Mentoring Program 
Launched this year, this provides opportunities for staff to foster  
their personal and professional development by pairing up with  
either a mentor or a mentee from one of five other government 
agencies. 7% of the Lotterywest team participated in the mentoring 
program this year.

Performance Development
 Individual Development Plans are aligned to Lotterywest’s  
strategic and operational priorities. Staff can formally seek 
development through a range of opportunities using the  
70:20:10 model of learning. 

This results in a more efficient use of resources and reduced costs;  
it will provide clear planning outcomes for our staff.

Wellness Program 
We continue to provide a range of initiatives to promote healthy 
wellbeing in our workplace. We have seen an increase in the take up 
of blood pressure monitoring and healthy heart checks of 32% and 
30% respectively. 

Staff Reward and Recognition 
This recognises our staff for their achievements at work based on our 
values. Through this we continue to build staff engagement and a 
sense of personal responsibility in creating a positive workplace. A 
total of 24 staff members were nominated for a RITE Award over the 
year and four overall winners were selected.

“The big wins were all people were talking 
about for a while. Our customers still say we 
can do it again soon. I think getting to know 
our customers and building friendships with 
them is a really nice part of the job. It makes 
it even better when you see them have a 
win. It’s the good staff that make it to, you 
can’t do it all yourself, we work as a team 
and we have lots of fun too.”

It was a case of double Lotto luck when Padbury News and 
Post sold two high value Division 1 Lotto tickets over the 
year. It started with a $16.6 million Powerball win in October 
and then a $5 million OZ Lotto win only four months later in 
February. Joe Kempster from the store said there was a lot of 
excitement after the initial win, but when it happened again, 
customers were over joyed.

Retailer Profile
Padbury News and Post

Lotterywest team members Craig, Chad, Tanya and Peter.
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Corporate Social Responsibility 
The way in which we operate our business and the impact it has in 
the community, is as important as the results we achieve. 
Lotterywest is a government organisation bound under the Public 
Sector Management Act and by the ethics and standards of the public 
sector in Western Australia.

The following programs define our commitment to ensuring we 
operate our business with integrity and responsibility. 

Responsible Gaming
Lotterywest’s commitment to responsible gaming ensures the 
responsible promotion and management of our games. We have 
committed to the World Lottery Association’s Responsible Gaming 
Framework embedding ten key principles of awareness and best 
practice across our organisation. The principles include:

• focusing on research
• an employee program
• a retailer program
• game design measures
• appropriate controls in online gaming channels
•  highlighting responsible play in advertising and marketing 

communications
• educating players on responsible play
• ensuring treatment referral is available
• engaging key stakeholders
• reporting and measuring outcomes.

Lotterywest is also a member of the Western Australian Problem 
Gambling Support Service Committee. Chaired by Department of 
Racing, Gaming and Liquor, other members include Crown, Crown, 
TAB and Department of Communities.  

The Committee supports the annual Responsible Gambling 
Awareness Week campaign hosted in October and an annual 
program of community awareness. The Committee also oversees the 
provision of gambling support services around WA. As part of these 
support services, Lotterywest provides core funding to Centrecare for 
a state-wide gambling support service.

Reconciliation Action Plan
Lotterywest’s Reconciliation Action Plan was reviewed in 2014/15. 
Working with Reconciliation WA, we have developed a suite of 
activities that demonstrate our commitment to supporting Aboriginal 
culture and the education of our staff and stakeholders. Activities 
include staging NAIDOC Week events, an Aboriginal traineeship 
program and a guest speaker program. Two Aboriginal Noongar 
trainees graduated from Public Sector Commission’s program and 
in 2015/16, we will welcome another trainee to Lotterywest. We are 
proud to fly the Aboriginal flag at our head office and acknowledge 
Aboriginal people as the traditional owners of our land at formal 
Lotterywest events and staff meetings.

Environment and Energy Plan
Lotterywest aims to minimise our environmental footprint. 
Achievements in the past year include a continued LED Lighting 
replacement program. This has continued to significantly reduce our 
power consumption. The implementation of our Electronic Document 
Records Management System (E-Dreams) will see an ongoing decline 
in paper usage.

Corporate Social Responsibility

DADAA: Touch and 
Create App

“The project will be shared with other 
individuals and organisations on an 
ongoing basis, to further support people 
with high needs in using technology.”

The Touch and Create App is part of a larger Digital Inclusion 
program by Disability in the Arts, Disadvantage in the Arts WA 
(DADAA). (Repetition?) It provides an interactive tool for artists 
with a disability to create art and share their work online.

A $239,527 Lotterywest grant towards project costs helped 
DADAA undertake digital technology training for people  
with high support needs. This created the opportunity for  
self-expression through arts participation, social and 
recreational activities.

Simone Flavelle, Manager of DADAA’s Digital Inclusion 
program, said that the funding has helped to broaden DADAA’s 
reach “The Lotterywest grant has enabled us to introduce 38 
artists with a disability to digital technology,” she said.

NAIDOC celebrations at Lotterywest.
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Lotterywest is facing a number of challenges which are international 
trends within the industry. These also provide new opportunities. 

These challenges include:
•  A rapid increase in competition in regards to consumers 

attention – traditional advertising channels no longer achieve the 
same cut through as they used to. Coupled with the increasing 
entertainment offer (mainly through digital channels) this poses a 
challenge for Lotterywest to keep remaining relevant to its  
potential players.

•  A decline in player participation – partially due to reduced 
pedestrian traffic at traditional retail channels.

•  Changing trends in retail including the increasing contribution of 
the internet to retail sales and the high smartphone adoption.

•  New technological trends such as Near Field Communication 
transforming the shopping experience

•  New technological development in the lottery industry such as new 
generation of gaming systems, gaming terminals and other digital 
sale equipment such as touch screens and self-serve units.

•  Significant changes in the not-for-profit sector and increased 
need for financial and other developmental forms of support. 
These changes are being driven by a multitude of factors. These 
include the growth of the sector, increased demands for its 
services, changes in the way it is  funded by State and Federal 
Governments, and the need identified by the sector to build its 
overall capacity to respond to the changed environment in which 
organisations are operating.

Significant Issues Impacting Agency

Retailer Profile 
Princess Road News & Lotto in Balga

“We love selling Lotto. It’s always great to 
see the reaction of our customers when 
they’ve had a win, small or large. What’s 
also great about Lotto is the money 
that goes back to the community. Even 
my family enjoy the benefits of this; we 
especially love visiting all the playgrounds 
and play areas supported by Lotterywest 
at Kings Park.”

Lotto luck first struck Princess Road News and Lotto in Balga 
with the store selling WA’s first Division 1 Lotto ticket for the 
financial year. The winning OZ Lotto ticket was worth an 
incredible $10 million. Kim Nguyen said he and his family 
had owned the store for about 10 years and while they had 
sold four Division 1 Lotto tickets over that time, the $10 million 
winner was their biggest.

Lotterywest team members Jaye, Chantel, Andrea, Kerry and Alisha.
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Ministerial directives  
The Lotteries Commission Act 1990 gives the Minister the power to 
direct Lotterywest with respect to its functions and powers (other than 
those associated with the grant making responsibility). No Ministerial 
directives were received during the financial year.

Information statement
Lotterywest publishes an Information Statement on its website in 
accordance with Section 94 of the Freedom of Information Act (FOI) 
1992. It is Lotterywest’s policy to provide as much information as 
possible to the public within the bounds of commercial requirements. 

Publications available to the public 
The following publications, relating to the activities of Lotterywest, are 
available to the public from Lotterywest’s head office at 74 Walters 
Drive, Osborne Park: 

•  2014-18 Strategic Plan 
•  Lotterywest Information Statement 
•  Player Guide Brochures 

Lotterywest maintains a website www.lotterywest.wa.gov.au. This 
offers information on our organisation, game results and grants.

Recordkeeping plan 
Lotterywest has an approved Recordkeeping Plan that will be 
reviewed in 2016. Lotterywest conducts Records Awareness training 
for all new staff employed for longer than three months through an 
on-line package. 

As part of the induction process, the Corporate Information team 
ensures new staff are aware of their Lotterywest Recordkeeping Plan 
responsibilities and records compliance requirements.

Governance disclosures 

Conflict of interest 
There were no declared conflicts of interests in existing or  
proposed contracts by any Board members, senior officers, firms  
of which a Board member or senior officer is a member or entities  
in which a Board member or senior officer has a substantial  
financial interest. 

Directors and Officers Liability Insurance
An insurance policy indemnifies Board Members and directors (as 
defined in Part 3 of the Statutory Corporations (Liability of Directors) Act 
1996) against liability under Section 13 and 14 of that Act. The 2014/15 
premium was $16,776. Each Board member contributed $167.

Enabling Legislation
The Lotteries Commission (trading as Lotterywest) operates under the 
Lotteries Commission Act 1990 (the Act) and its subsidiary legislation: 

•  Lotteries Commission (Designated Authorities) Regulations 1998
•  Lotteries Commission Regulations 1991
•  Lotteries Commission (Cash 3) Rules 1998 (WA)
•  Lotteries Commission (Designated Authorities) Regulations  
 1998 (WA)
•  Lotteries Commission (Instant Lottery) Rules 1996 (WA)
•  Lotteries Commission (Internet Entries) Rules 2010
•  Lotteries Commission (Monday and Wednesday Lotto) Rules 2006
•  Lotteries Commission (OZ Lotto) Rules 1995 (WA)
•  Lotteries Commission (Powerball Lotto) Rules 1996 (WA)
•  Lotteries Commission (Saturday Lotto) Rules 1996 (WA)
•  Lotteries Commission (Soccer Pools) Rules 1996 (WA)
•  Lotteries Commission (Super 66) Rules 1996 (WA)

Lotterywest’s functions under the Act are:

• to conduct lotteries; and
• to perform any other function vested in it by the Act. 

These other functions are primarily concerned with administering 
grants. The Act prescribes that the proceeds of its lotteries are 
distributed to:

•  WA health and sport agencies and arts bodies (ScreenWest and 
the Perth International Arts Festival); and 

•  Lotterywest’s direct grants program, which allows Local 
Government Authorities and not-for-profit community groups 
to make application for grants for benevolent and charitable 
purposes. The Act requires the Board to make recommendations 
to the Minister for approval prior to grants being distributed. 

Disclosures and Legal Compliance

Skating in Freo

“The project is a great example of  
what good planning, extensive community 
consultation and a lot of passion can achieve 
for the community and is now  
one of the most popular outdoor spaces  
in Fremantle,” said Fremantle Mayor  
Dr Brad Pettitt.

Ranked as the number one skate spot Australia-wide before  
it had even officially opened in 2014, the Esplanade Youth Plaza 
in Fremantle is an innovative and dynamic inner-city hub for 
young people and families.

The Plaza was supported with a $600,000 Lotterywest Grant 
towards construction costs. It caters for skateboarding, BMX 
and scooter riding and features Western Australia’s first outdoor 
‘parkour’ park, as well as a stage, seating and viewing areas. 
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Key legislation impacting on Lotterywest’s activities

•  Auditor General Act 2006
•  Competition and Consumer Act 2010 (Cwth)
•  Competition Policy Reform Act 1996
•  Copyright Act 1968 (Cwth)
•  Corporation Act 2001 (Cwth)
•  Corruption and Crime Commission Act 2003
•  Disability Services Act 1993
•  Electronic Transactions Act 1999 (Cwth)
•  Electronic Transactions Act 2011 
•  Equal Opportunity Act 1984 (other than Part IX)
•  Equal Opportunity Act 1984 (Part IX only)
•  Financial Management Act 2006
•  Freedom of Information Act 1992
•  Gaming and Betting (Contracts and Securities) Act 1985
•   Gaming and Wagering Commission (Continuing Lotteries Levy)  

Act 2000
•  Industrial Relations Act 1979
•  Interactive Gambling Act 2001 (Cwth)
•  Minimum Conditions of Employment Act 1993
•  Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984 
•  Patents Act 1990 (Cwth)
•  Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003
•  Public Sector Management Act 1994
•  Retail Trading Hours Act 1987
•  Salaries and Allowances Act 1975
•  Spam Act 2003 (Cwth)
•  State Records Act 2000
•  State Supply Commission Act 1991
•  Statutory Corporations (Liability of Directors) Act 1996
•  Superannuation Act 2005 (Cwth)
•  Trade Marks Act 1995 (Cwth)
•  Unclaimed Money Act 1990 (WA)
•  Workers Compensation and Injury Management Act 1981 (Cwth)

Board and committee remuneration 

Position  Name  Salary Superannuation Period of  Gross/actual remuneration    
    membership  2014-2015 financial year 
Chair John Atkins $62,475 $5,935 12 months $68,410
Member Sheila Hood $18,221 $1,731 7 months $19,952
Member Garry Trinder $31,236 $2,967 12 months $34,203
Member Maria Harries $31,236 $2,967 12 months $34,203
Member Andrea Hall $31,236 $2,967 12 months $34,203
Member Stephen Carre $31,236 $2,967 12 months $34,203
Member Miriam Borthwick $7,809 $742 3 months $8,551
Total:      $233,725

Other legal requirements
Expenditure on advertising, market research, polling and direct mail 

Advertising agencies $ 3,568,707 Longtail Communications $ 1,136,796 
   Meerkats $ 2,126,263 
   Spirit $ 294,022 
   Adcorp $ 11,626 
Market research agencies $ 462 Painted Dog $ 462 
Polling agencies $ Nil   $ Nil 
Direct mail agencies $ 74,337  ABNote $ 74,337 
Media advertising agencies $ 12,454,515  Carat $ 11,780,257 
   OMD $ 674,258 
            
 Total Expenditure $ 16,098,021   $ 16,098,021 

Public interest disclosures 
One public interest disclosure, within the meaning of the Public  
Interest Disclosure Act 2003, was received in the reporting period.

Freedom of Information
During 2014/15, two Freedom of Information applications were received.  
Small quantities of exempt matter was withheld from one application under  
Schedule 1, Clause 3 (1) of the Freedom of Information Act 1992. Both  
applications required consent from third parties.  
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Disability access and inclusion plan outcomes 
Lotterywest has a Disability Access and Inclusion plan (DAIP)  
(2012-2016) which describes how we will improve the experience  
of people with a disability when they visit, work or communicate  
with us. 

A more detailed operational internal plan, which supports the DAIP,  
is used to measure performance against planned outcomes.

During 2014/15 Lotterywest:
•  Actively ensured its buildings and services were readily  

accessible to people with disabilities;
•  Ensured contractual arrangements were compliant with  

DAIP requirements; and
•  Incorporated accessibility considerations into its Communication 

Style Guide.

The DAIP is available to the public on the Lotterywest website.

Compliance with Public Sector Standards and ethical codes 
Lotterywest has complied with the Public Sector Standards in Human 
Resource Management, the Public Sector Code of Ethics and the 
Lotterywest Code of Conduct as follows:

•  All employees have access to information about the Human 
Resource Management (HRM) Standards, Commissioner’s 
Instructions and Human Resource (HR) policies on the Lotterywest 
intranet.

•  In 2014/15, two breaches of standards claims were lodged against 
the HRM Standards. These were resolved internally and were not 
referred to the Public Sector Commission for their review.

•  Checklists are used for each of the HRM Standards and 
Commissioner’s Instructions in administering the HR function and 
reviewing all transactions.

•  Although all transactions dealing with the Standards are 
individually reviewed against the checklists, particular attention is 
given to reviewing recruitment decisions for compliance with the 
Employment Standard and Filling a Public Sector Vacancy.

Public Sector Code of Ethics and Lotterywest Code  
of Conduct
The Public Sector Code of Ethics and Lotterywest Code of Conduct are 
given to all new staff with their employment contract. The documents 
are also available to staff on the Lotterywest intranet.

In 2014/15, Lotterywest delivered accountable and ethical decision 
making courses to approximately 80 staff (the balance of staff that 
needed to attend after the course was reviewed and delivered in 
2013/14).

Confidentiality Agreements and National Police Clearances are 
required of all staff and contractors. This helps manage the level of risk 
associated with working in an organisation which holds commercially 
sensitive information.

Occupational Safety, Health and Injury Management
Occupational health and safety and injury management policies and 
systems are in place. This is in accordance with the requirements 
of the Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984 and Workers’ 
Compensation and Injury Management Act 1981. 

Operational plans include goals to address risk and improve health 
and safety in the workplace. The OSH Committee is the formal 
mechanism for consultation and reporting between management  
and staff. 

In 2014/15, the structure and objectives of the OSH Committee were 
reviewed. Four new OSH representatives were appointed. 

In 2015, Lotterywest implemented a successful trial of standing desks 
to improve employee health and wellbeing. Trial participants reported 
higher levels of energy and concentration. The standing desks are 
now available to all staff and have been taken up by 25% of staff.  

An injury management system is in place in accordance with the 
Workers’ Compensation and Injury Management Act 1981. The 
HR team consults with the employee, their manager and medical 
practitioners on the development of an injury management plan. This 
process has been successful in helping several employees return to 
work after significant illness or injury.

RSL: The Centenary of Anzac

“This year was special. There were massive 
increases in crowds all around WA. 
Lotterywest support meant we could deliver 
a quality experience for people. Having that 
quality is so important - it makes people feel 
connected.”

The Centenary of Anzac Day in WA saw a groundswell of 
community participation at RSL commemorative services 
in more than 100 metropolitan and regional communities. 
Commemorations in the City ran smoothly with the assistance 
of over 340 volunteers. Lotterywest supported all this with 
supported with a record grant of $1.5 million to the RSL. 

The Hon. Graham Edwards AM, RSL WA State Branch President 
said RSLWA took pride in its relationship with Lotterywest and 
the support provided for Anzac Day services:

Disclosures and Legal Compliance
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Occupational Safety, Health and Injury Management Results

Measure Actual Results Target
 2013/14 2014/15 
Number of fatalities 0 0 0
Lost time injury and/or  
disease incidence rate 1.5 2 0 or 10% reduction
Lost time injury and/or  
disease severity rate 33.3% 25.0% 0 or 10% reduction
Percentage of injured  75% 75% 80% or more to 
workers returned within   return within 26  
26 weeks    weeks
Percentage of managers  70% 70% 80% or more to 
trained in OSH and injury   be trained  
management     

Risk and audit

Risk Framework
Lotterywest has adopted the principles of the Australian/New  
Zealand Risk Management Standard AS/NZS ISO 31000:2009 for  
its business operations.

Strategic and operational risk assessments were conducted in the 
reporting period and controls and treatment action plans put in place 
where appropriate. The strategic risk register was reviewed and tabled 
at the Audit and Risk Management Committee’s quarterly meetings. 

Information Security Framework
Lotterywest is certified under the World Lottery Association (WLA) 
Security Certification Standard. ISO 2700: Information Security 
Management forms part of the WLA security standard. WLA 
certification fosters continuous improvement of our business, systems 
and key processes and is vital in driving professionalism and security 
across the organisation.

Audit and Risk Management Committee
The Chair of the Audit and Risk Management Committee is Andrea 
Hall (Board member). Other committee members are John Atkins 
(Board Chairman) and Stephen Carre (Board member).
 
Internal Audit
Lotterywest’s Internal Auditor is Ernst & Young. Lotterywest’s Internal 
Audit Charter and the Internal Audit and Risk Management Committee 
Charter provide the framework for the internal audit function.

Building skills and 
ambition with bikes

“It is great to see our programs improve 
school attendance and reduce recidivism 
amongst juvenile offenders.”

Dismantle uses bike mechanic programs to engage and 
mentor at-risk youth. Using the bike activities as the 'hook', 
Dismantle works to realise the ambitions of young people who 
are disengaged from mainstream education.

A Lotterywest grant of $36,932 towards a van has helped 
Dismantle with transport and logistics, resulting in more 
bicycle rescue and repair programs being delivered for  
young people.

Pat Ryan, CEO of Dismantle said “Lotterywest grant support 
means we can function as a professional program. Having the 
van means our reach extends to regional and remote areas, 
so our capacity to support at-risk youth in WA has grown an 
incredible amount.”
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Certification of Performance Indicators

We hereby certify that the key performance indicators are based on proper records, are relevant and 
appropriate for assisting users to assess the Lotteries Commission’s performance, and fairly represent the 
performance of the Lotteries Commission for the financial year ended 30 June 2015.

JOHN ATKINS 
Chairman   
Accountable Authority
19 August 2015 

ANDREA HALL
Commissioner
Accountable Authority  
19 August 2015
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Key Performance Indicator Tables

Outcome Statement

Lotteries are conducted with the proceeds returned to the community of Western Australia

 

Services

1. Sale of lottery products to the public of Western Australia
2. The provision of grants and other distributions to the community of Western Australia

Effectiveness Indicators Actual  Budget Actual Actual  Actual Actual  
   2014/15  2014/15  2013/14  2012/13 2011/12 2010/11

1.  Sales per Adult  $404.49 $425.33 $397.11 $424.19 $421.75 $375.71

2.  Total Allocation to Beneficiaries per Capita $110.28 $113.15 $107.61 $112.77 $109.84 $104.86

3.  Total Allocation to Beneficiaries as a % of Sales 34.2% 33.4% 34.0% 33.4% 33.9% 35.2%

Efficiency Indicators Actual  Budget Actual Actual  Actual Actual  
   2014/15  2014/15  2013/14  2012/13 2011/12 2010/11

4.  Lottery Expenses as a % of Sales*  5.7% 5.9% 5.7% 5.5% 5.6% 6.4%

5.  Grants Operations Expenses as a % of Direct Grants Approved 11.7% 11.8% 12.0% 11.2% 10.7% 5.3%

Base Data Actual  Budget Actual Actual  Actual Actual  
   2014/15  2014/15  2013/14  2012/13 2011/12 2010/11

a. Total Population (million) 2.5654 2.4796 2.5206 2.4327 2.3522 2.2920

b. Adult Population (million) 2.0429 1.9749 2.0070 1.9349 1.8084 1.8188

c.  Total Sales (million) $826.35 $840.00 $796.99 $820.76 $762.68 $683.34

d. Total Allocated to Beneficiaries  $282.90 $280.56 $271.23 $274.34 $258.36 $240.34

e. Total Approved Direct Grants $130.85 $126.00 $124.46 $123.31 $117.89 $114.07

f.  Total Lottery Expenses** (million) $589.76 $602.33 $569.66 $584.18 $544.77 $489.19

g.  Lotteries Operations Expenses (million) $46.72 $49.96 $45.21 $45.28 $42.84 $43.71

h.  Grants Operations Expenses (million) $15.32 $14.92 $14.93 $13.76 $12.60 $6.06

Notes: 

*  Lottery Expenses include all administrative costs (excluding cost of sales) associated with selling of lottery products.    

**   Total Lottery Expenses include the cost of sales (including prizes and the commission paid) and all operational costs associated with selling of lottery products and administering the grants funding.     

  For the purpose of these Indicators, the Goods and Services Tax has been excluded from expense calculations; and beneficiaries refers to the allocation prescribed in the Lotteries Commission Act 1990 to the State Pool Account, the Sports Lotteries Account,  

the Arts Lotteries Account and to eligible organisations of “approved purposes”.       
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Notes to Key Performance Indicator Tables

Effectiveness Indicators

1.  This measure shows the effectiveness of Lotterywest in penetrating the players’ market that is considered 
to be the adult population in Western Australia. The lower than expected results is a consequence of 
lower than planned sales, predominantly resulting from the delay in a new national game (Set for Life) 
and a higher than expected growth in population. The increase from last year’s result is mainly due to 
higher sales performance. 

  Note: Adult population refers to the number of Western Australians of 16 years and over who are 
permitted by the Lotteries Commission Act (1990) to purchase lottery products.

2.  This measure relates to Lotterywest’s grant funding function which is to provide funding and support to 
the community of Western Australia. The delay in the new “Set for Life” national game has resulted in 
lower than anticipated sales for the year against budget and there has been a higher than expected 
growth in population. However, Lotterywest’s decision to utilise cash reserves to supplement the Direct 
Grants program has led to higher total allocations made to beneficiaries.

3.  This measure shows the effectiveness of Lotterywest in converting sales revenue to community grants. 
Lotterywest approved 34.2% of gross sales revenue as grants for the Western Australian community, 
which was above the planned allocation. Although the grants allocation was slightly above budget, the 
lower than budgeted sales figures has increased the allocation as a percentage of sales.  This ratio has 
remained relatively consistent with last year due to higher sales resulting in increased statutory grants 
allocations, coupled with an increase in Direct Grants funded from cash reserves.

Efficiency Indicators

4.  This indicator shows the efficiency of Lotterywest in generating sales revenue. The annual performance 
ratio of 5.7% is favourable to budget as a consequence of the delays in marketing of the new national 
game (Set for Life) and the operational costs associated with delays in implementing capital programs. 
This ratio has remained consistent with last year’s result.

5.  This measure shows the ratio of expenditure associated with the grants distribution to direct grants. The 
result for 2014/15 financial year of 11.7% is consistent with planned outcomes. The reduction from last 
year is the result of higher direct grants being approved from relatively stable operating cost.

Base Data

(a)/(b)   Lotterywest uses population figures sourced from the Australian Bureau of Statistics (ABS) in 
calculating its performance indicators.

   The total population of Western Australia is used for Community Grants indicators as all Western 
Australians benefit from the community funding grants program. 

   The adult population figures are used for Lottery Product indicators, as only adults (aged 16 years and 
over) are permitted to purchase lottery products in Western Australia.

(c)   Total annual gross sales for the financial year 2014/15.

(d)    Total of all statutory and direct grants funding for 2014/15, including those funds allocated but not 
taken up.

(e)   Total of direct grants funding for 2014/15, excluding those funds allocated but not taken up. 

(f)    These figures reflect total Lottery Expenses including cost of sales - prizes $463.4 million, retailers’ 
commission $64.3 million and operational expenses $62.0 million (excluding GST). 

(g)    These figures show the total operational costs in operating the lotteries business (excluding Grants 
operations expenses).

(h)   These figures reflect the total costs in undertaking the Direct Grants funding administration and 
distribution function (excluding Lotteries operations expenses).
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The accompanying financial statements of the Lotteries Commission have been prepared in compliance 
with the provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006 from proper accounts and records to present 
fairly the financial transactions for the financial year ended 30 June 2015 and the financial position as at  
30 June 2015.

At the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances which would render the particulars  
included in the financial statements misleading or inaccurate.

PASCOE RECHICHI 
Chief Finance Officer  
19 August 2015

JOHN ATKINS 
Chairman   
Accountable Authority
19 August 2015 

ANDREA HALL
Commissioner
Accountable Authority  
19 August 2015

Financial Statements Certification of Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2015
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     Note 2015 2014
      $000 $000

INCOME   
Revenue   
 Sales of Goods 3 826,344  796,991
 Interest Revenue  10,963  12,365
 Other Revenue 4 13,489  14,486

Total Income  850,796  823,842  
   
    
EXPENSES    
 Cost of Sales 3  560,730  541,797
 Lotteries Operations 5 46,742  45,213
 Grants and Community Development Operations 6 15,319 14,927
 Returns to Beneficiaries  7 278,060  268,763

Total Expenses  900,851 870,700
    
Loss before Grants from State Government  (50,055) (46,858)
Grants from State Government 8 33,031  32,273

Loss for the Period  (17,024) (14,585) 
   
    
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items not reclassified subsequently to profit and loss   
 
 Changes in Asset Revaluation Surplus 19 — (708)

Total Other Comprehensive Income  — (708)

Total Comprehensive Loss for the Period  (17,024) (15,293)

See also Note 27 ‘Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service’.
The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
 

     Note 2015 2014
      $000 $000

ASSETS   
Current Assets   
 Cash and Cash Equivalents 20 14,845  8,311
 Inventories  842  859
 Receivables 9 11,166  13,898
 Held to Maturity Financial Assets 10 70,202  183,710
 Non Current Assets Classified as Held for Sale 11 1,614  1,900
 Other Current Assets 12 393  —

Total Current Assets  99,062  208,678

Non Current Assets    
 Held to Maturity Financial Assets 10 158,300  77,062
 Property, Plant and Equipment 13 21,576  21,620
 Intangibles 14 17,166  18,049

Total Non Current Assets  197,042  116,731 

Total Assets   296,104 325,409
   
LIABILITIES   
Current Liabilities   
 Payables  16 168,186  182,489
 Provisions 17 31,026  29,288
 Sales in Advance 18 5,061  4,822

Total Current Liabilities  204,273  216,599

Non Current Liabilities    
 Payables  16 250  300
 Provisions 17 1,256  1,161

Total Non Current Liabilities  1,506  1,461

Total Liabilities  205,779 218,060

NET ASSETS   90,325  107,349 

EQUITY    
 Asset Revaluation Reserve 19 9,162 9,162
 Retained Earnings 19 81,163  98,187

Total Equity   90,325  107,349 

The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
 

Statement of Comprehensive Income For the year ended 30 June 2015 Statement of Financial Position As at 30 June 2015
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     Note Asset  Retained Total 
      Revaluation  Earnings  Equity
      $000 $000 $000

Balance at 1 July 2013  9,870 112,772 122,642

Loss for the period 19 — (14,585) (14,585)
Other comprehensive income  (708) — (708)

Total comprehensive loss for the period  (708) (14,585) (15,293)
    
Balance at 30 June 2014  9,162 98,187 107,349
     

Balance at 1 July 2014  9,162 98,187 107,349

Loss for the period 19 — (17,024) (17,024)

Total comprehensive loss for the period  — (17,024) (17,024)
    
Balance at 30 June 2015  9,162 81,163  90,325 

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

 

     Note 2015 2014
      $000 $000

Cash Flows from Operating Activities   

Receipts   
 Sale of Goods  834,079  803,417
 Interest Received  11,400  12,863
 GST Receipts on Sales  459  447
Payments    
 Prizes and Retailers’ Commissions  (517,830) (507,215)
 Employee Benefits  (22,415) (19,777)
 Suppliers and Services  (33,123) (35,490)
 Direct Grants  (140,778) (120,153)
 GST Payments on Purchases  (23,942) (21,577)
 GST Payments to Taxation Authority  (10,050) (11,045)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 20 97,800  101,470
    
Cash Flows from Investing Activities   
 
 Purchase of Non Current Assets  (4,030) (3,318)
 Proceeds from Maturing Investments  32,270  788

Net Cash (used in) Investing Activities  28,240  (2,530)
    
Cash Flows (to)/from State Government   
 
 GST Reimbursements  32,906  32,643
 Statutory Payments to Beneficiaries  (152,412) (149,599)

Net Cash (Provided to) State Government  (119,506) (116,956)

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents  6,534  (18,016) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period  8,311  26,327 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period 20 14,845 8,311

The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
 

Statement of Changes in Equity For the year ended 30 June 2015 Statement of Cash Flows For the year ended 30 June 2015
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1. Australian Accounting Standards

 Lotterywest’s financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2015 have been prepared in accordance 
with Australian Accounting Standards. The term “Australian Accounting Standards” includes Standards 
and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB).

Lotterywest has adopted any applicable new and revised Australian Accounting Standards from their 
operative dates.

Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard

Lotterywest has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards effective for annual reporting 
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014 that impacted on Lotterywest.
 
• AASB 12 – Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities

 This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes disclosure requirements in AASB 127 Consolidated 
and Separate Financial Statements, AASB 128 Investments in Associates and AASB 131 Interests in Joint 
Ventures. Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred for not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-10.

 Lotterywest has a beneficial interest in various land and buildings within the community which are held 
via Deeds of Trust. These assets, secured under caveat, do not vest to Lotterywest unless a specified event 
occurs as per the requirements set out in the Trust Deed. Currently, Lotterywest does not recognise the 
assets unless a specified event has occurred and title is transferred.

• AASB 1055 – Budgetary Reporting

 This standard specifies budgetary disclosure requirements for the whole of government, General 
Government Sector (GGS) and not-for-profit entities within the GGS of each government. 
 AASB 2013-1 removes the requirements relating to the disclosure of budgetary information from AASB 1049 
(without substantive amendment). All budgetary reporting requirements applicable to public sector entities 
are now located in AASB 1055. 

This Standard requires specific budgetary disclosures in the general purpose financial statements of not-
for-profit entities within the General Government Sector. There is no impact, as Lotterywest is not part of the 
General Government Sector. 

 In compliance with Treasury Instruction 945P, Lotterywest has disclosed additional budgetary information 
and explanations of major variances between actual and budgeted amounts in Note 31.

•  AASB 2012-3 – Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Offsetting Financial Assets and 
Financial Liabilities

 AASB 2012-3 adds application guidance to AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Presentation to address 
inconsistencies identified in applying some of the offsetting criteria of AASB 132, including clarifying the 
meaning of "currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off" and that some gross settlement systems 
may be considered equivalent to net settlement.

There is no financial impact.

•  AASB 2013-3 – Amendments to AASB 136 – Recoverable Amount Disclosures for  
Non-Financial Assets

 AASB 2013-3 amends the disclosure requirements in AASB 136 Impairment of Assets. The amendments 
include the requirement to disclose additional information about the fair value measurement when the 
recoverable amount of impaired assets is based on fair value less costs of disposal. 

 Lotterywest has impaired an asset in the Non-Current Asset Classified as Held for Sale based on the fair 
value less costs of disposal as disclosed in Note 11.

•  AASB 2013-9 – Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Conceptual Framework, 
Materiality and Financial Instruments

 Part B of this omnibus Standard makes amendments to other Standards arising from the deletion of 
reference to AASB 1031 in other Standards for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014. Other Parts of 
this Standard become operative in later periods.

 Part B of this Amendment removes references to AASB 1031 in other Standards, and thus there is no 
impact on Lotterywest.

Early adoption of Standards 

Lotterywest cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by 
Treasurer’s Instruction 1101 Application of Australian Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements.  
No Standards and Interpretations that have been issued or amended but are not yet effective have 
been early adopted by Lotterywest for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2015. Consequently, 
Lotterywest has not applied the following Australian Accounting Standards that have been issued but are 
not yet effective. Where applicable, Lotterywest plans to apply these Australian Accounting Standards from 
their application date:

Future Impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet effective

•     AASB 9 – Financial Instrument
 (operative for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018) 

AASB 9 includes requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets. It was further 
amended by AASB 2010-7 to reflect amendments to the accounting for financial liabilities.

 These requirements improve and simplify the approach for classification and measurement of financial 
assets compared with the requirements of AASB 139. The main changes are described below.
► 
–  Financial assets that are debt instruments will be classified based on (1) the objective of the entity's  

business model for managing the financial assets; (2) the characteristics of the contractual cash flows.
► 

Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2015
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–  Allows an irrevocable election on initial recognition to present gains and losses on investments in 
equity instruments that are not held for trading in other comprehensive income. Dividends in respect 
of these investments that are a return on investment can be recognised in profit or loss and there is no 
impairment or recycling on disposal of the instrument.

► 
–  Financial assets can be designated and measured at fair value through profit or loss at initial 

recognition if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency 
that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities, or recognising the gains and losses on them, on 
different bases.

► 
–  Where the fair value option is used for financial liabilities the change in fair value is to be accounted for 

as follows:
► 
–  The change attributable to changes in credit risk are presented in other comprehensive income (OCI)
► 
–  The remaining change is presented in profit or loss
  If this approach creates or enlarges an accounting mismatch in the profit or loss, the effect of the 

changes in credit risk are also presented in profit or loss.

Consequential amendments were also made to other standards as a result of AASB 9, introduced by 
AASB 2009-11 and superseded by AASB 2010-7 and 2010-10.

 The AASB issued a revised version of AASB 9 (AASB 2013-9) during December 2013. The revised standard 
incorporates three primary changes:

► –  New hedge accounting requirements including changes to hedge effectiveness testing, treatment of 
hedging costs, risk components that can be hedged and disclosures; 

► 
–  Entities may elect to apply only the accounting for gains and losses from own credit risk without 

applying the other requirements of AASB 9 at the same time; and
► 
–  In February 2014, the IASB tentatively decided that the mandatory effective date for AASB 9 will be 1 

January 2018 by AASB 2014-1.

– Lotterywest does not expect a material financial impact when the Standard is first applied. 

• AASB 14 – Regulatory deferral accounts 
 (operative for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 Jan 2016) 

 AASB 14 permits first-time adopters to continue to account for amounts related to rate regulation in 
accordance with their previous GAAP when they adopt Australian Accounting Standards. However, to 
enhance comparability with entities that already apply Australian Accounting Standards and do not 
recognise such amounts, AASB 14 requires that the effect of rate regulation must be presented separately 
from other items. An entity that is not a first-time adopter of Australian Accounting Standards will not be 
able to apply AASB 14. 

AASB 2014-1 Part D makes amendments to AASB 1 First-time Adoption of Australian Accounting Standards, 
which arise from the issuance of AASB 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts in June 2014.

Not applicable as Lotterywest already applies Australian Accounting Standards.

•  AASB 2014-4 – Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation 
(Amendments to AASB 116 and AASB 138)

 (operative for reporting periods beginning on 1 Jan 2016) 

 AASB 116 and AASB 138 both establish the principle for the basis of depreciation and amortisation as 
being the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits of an asset. 

The IASB has clarified that the use of revenue-based methods to calculate the depreciation of an asset 
is not appropriate because revenue generated by an activity that includes the use of an asset generally 
reflects factors other than the consumption of the economic benefits embodied in the asset.

The amendment also clarified that revenue is generally presumed to be an inappropriate basis for 
measuring the consumption of the economic benefits embodied in an intangible asset. This presumption, 
however, can be rebutted in certain limited circumstances.

 Lotterywest does not use a revenue-based method to calculate the depreciation of assets, and thus this 
amendment will have no impact on Lotterywest.

• AASB 15 – Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
 (operative for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 Jan 2017) 

 In May 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which replaces IAS 11 
Construction Contracts, IAS 18 Revenue and related Interpretations (IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes, 
IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate, IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers and 
SIC-31 Revenue—Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services). 

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity recognises revenue to depict the transfer of promised gor 
services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled 
in exchange for those goods or services. An entity recognises revenue in accordance with that core 
principle by applying the following steps:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
Step 3: Determine the transaction price
Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation
 
Early application of this standard is permitted.

 AASB 2014-5 incorporates the consequential amendments to a number Australian Accounting Standards 
(including Interpretations) arising from the issuance of AASB 15.

Lotterywest has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.
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•  AASB 2015-2 – Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosure Initiative: 
Amendments to AASB 101

 (operative for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 Jan 2016) 
  
 The Standard makes amendments to AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements arising from the 
IASB’s Disclosure Initiative project. The amendments are designed to further encourage companies to 
apply professional judgment in determining what information to disclose in the financial statements. 
For example, the amendments make clear that materiality applies to the whole of financial statements 
and that the inclusion of immaterial information can inhibit the usefulness of financial disclosures. The 
amendments also clarify that companies should use professional judgment in determining where and in 
what order information is presented in the financial disclosures.

 This Amendment clarifies when materiality and professional judgement should be applied in determining 
what information to disclose in the financial statements, and thus will have no impact on Lotterywest.

•  AASB 2015-3 – Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Withdrawal of 
AASB 1031 Materiality 

 (operative for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2015) 

 The Standard completes the AASB’s project to remove Australian guidance on materiality from Australian 
Accounting Standards.

 This Amendment removes references to AASB 1031 in other Standards, and thus there is no impact on 
Lotterywest.

 •  AASB 2015-6 – Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Extending Related Party 
Disclosures to Not-for-Profit Public Sector Entities

 (operative for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2016) 

 This Standard extends the scope of AASB 124 to include not-for-profit public sector entities. The key impact 
of the amendments is to specify consistent related party disclosure requirements for the Australian 
Government, State Governments, local councils and other not-for-profit public sector entities.

 Comparative disclosures are not required in the first year of application of the amendments.
Lotterywest does not expect a material financial impact when the Standard is first applied.

This Amendment will require Lotterywest to disclose related party information in its financial statements. 

There is no financial impact on Lotterywest.

•  AASB 2015-7 – Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Fair Value Disclosures of  
Not-for-Profit Public Sector Entities

 (operative for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2016) 

 This standard relieves not-for-profit sector entities from making certain specified disclosures about the 
fair value measurement of assets within the scope of AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment which are 
primarily held for their current service potential rather than to generate future net cash inflows.

The relief is temporary pending the outcome of related current Board projects, including the review of the 
Reduced Disclosure Regime (Tier 2), Australian Reporting Framework, and Conceptual Framework.

Lotterywest has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a)  General Statement

 Lotterywest is a Statutory Authority and a not-for-profit reporting entity that prepares general purpose 
financial statements in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements 
of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the AASB as applied by the Treasurer’s 
Instructions. Several of these are modified by the Treasurer’s Instructions to vary application, disclosure, 
format and wording.

The Financial Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer’s Instructions are legislative provisions governing 
the preparation of financial statements and take precedence over the Australian Accounting Standards, 
the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the AASB.

Where modification is required and has had a material or significant financial effect upon the reported 
results, details of that modification and the resulting financial effect are disclosed in the notes to the 
financial statements.

(b)  Basis of Preparation and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the historical cost 
convention, except for land, buildings and infrastructure which have been measured at fair value.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements have been consistently 
applied throughout all periods unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest 
thousand dollars ($000).

Long Service Leave
In calculating Lotterywest’s long service leave provision, several estimations and assumptions have been 
made. These include expected future salary rates, salary inflation, discount rates, employee retention rates 
and expected future payments. 

Depreciation of Non Current Assets
In providing depreciation of all non current assets including intangible assets (software application), the 
estimated useful life reflects the consumption of the assets’ future economic benefits. 

Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2015
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(c)   Income Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. Revenue is recognised for 
major business activities as follows:

Sales of goods revenue
Recognised from the sale of tickets when the significant risks and rewards of ownership transfer to the 
purchaser and can be measured reliably.

Sales revenue representing gross sales of all games of Lotto, Cash 3, Soccer Pools and Super 66, is 
recorded as at the date of the respective draw. Sales of instant lottery tickets are recognised when books 
of tickets are activated. 

Grants, donations, gifts or other non reciprocal contributions
Recognised at fair value when Lotterywest obtains control over the assets comprising the contributions, 
usually when cash is received.

Other non reciprocal contributions that are not contributions by owners are recognised at their fair value. 
Contributions of services are only recognised when a fair value can be reliably determined and the 
services would be purchased if not donated.

Interest
Recognised as the interest accrues using the effective interest method.

Gains
Recognised on a net basis. These include gains arising on the disposal of non current assets and some 
revaluation of non current assets.
 

(d) Property, Plant and Equipment

Capitalisation/Expensing of assets
Items of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure costing $5,000 or more are recognised as 
assets and the cost of utilising assets is expensed (depreciated) over their useful lives. Items of property, 
plant and equipment and infrastructure costing less than $5,000 are immediately expensed direct to the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income (other than where they form part of a group of similar items which 
are significant in total).

Initial recognition and measurement
All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost.

For items of property, plant and equipment acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost is the fair value 
at the date of acquisition. This applies to properties reverted back to Lotterywest 

Where a transfer of beneficial ownership in land and/or buildings from a Trust Estate has occurred, at no 
cost or for nominal cost, the fair value is recognised at the date of the reversion.

Subsequent measurement
After recognition as an asset, Lotterywest uses the revaluation model for the measurement of land and 
buildings and the cost model for all other property, plant and equipment. Land and buildings are carried 
at their fair value less accumulated depreciation on buildings and accumulated impairment losses. All 
other items of property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses.

Where market evidence is available, the fair value of land and buildings is determined on the basis of 
current market values determined by reference to recent market transactions.

When buildings are revalued by reference to recent market transactions, the accumulated depreciation 
is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount restated to the revalued 
amount.

Where market evidence is not available, the fair value of land and buildings is determined on the basis 
of existing use. This normally applies where buildings are specialised or where land use is restricted. Fair 
value for existing use buildings is determined by reference to the cost of replacing the remaining future 
economic benefits embodied in the asset, i.e. the depreciated replacement cost. Where the fair value of 
buildings is determined on the depreciated replacement cost basis, the gross carrying amount and the 
accumulated depreciation are restated proportionately. Fair value for restricted use land is determined 
by comparison with market evidence for land with similar approximate utility (high restricted use land) or 
market value of comparable unrestricted land (low restricted use land).

Independent valuations of land and buildings are provided annually by the Western Australian Land 
Information Authority (Valuation Services) and recognised with sufficient regularity to ensure the carrying 
amount does not differ materially from the assets fair value at the end of the reporting period.

The most significant assumptions and judgements in estimating fair value are made in assessing 
whether to apply the existing use basis to assets and in determining estimated economic life. Professional 
judgement by the valuer is required where the evidence does not provide a clear distinction between 
market type assets and existing use assets.

Derecognition
Upon disposal or derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment, any revaluation surplus 
relating to that asset is retained in the asset revaluation reserve.

Depreciation of non current assets
All non current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over their estimated useful 
life consistent with the consumption of their future economic benefits.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is provided on the straight line basis, using rates 
which are reviewed annually. Estimated useful lives for each class of depreciable asset:

Buildings   50 years
Leasehold Improvements 10 years
Equipment and Fittings 5 to 10 years
Computer Equipment 3 to 8 years
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Asset revaluation reserve
The asset revaluation reserve is used to record increments and decrements on the revaluation of non-
current assets as described in Note 13 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’.

Works of Art
Works of art controlled by Lotterywest are classified as property, plant and equipment. These are 
anticipated to have indefinite useful lives. Their service potential has not, in any material sense, been 
consumed during the reporting period and consequently no depreciation has been recognised.

Work in Progress
Costs associated with assets under development for use by Lotterywest are recognised as Work 
in Progress. Once completed, the assets are transferred to the appropriate asset account and are 
depreciated or amortised, as appropriate. No depreciation is provided during construction of assets. 

(e)   Intangibles

Acquisitions of intangible assets and internally generated intangible assets costing $5,000 or more are 
capitalised. The cost of utilising the assets is expensed (amortised) over their useful lives. Costs incurred 
below $5,000 are immediately expensed directly to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. For assets acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost 
is their fair value at the date of acquisition.

The cost model is applied for subsequent measurement requiring the asset to be carried at cost less any 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with a finite useful life is calculated for the period of the expected benefit 
(estimated useful life which is reviewed annually) on the straight line basis. All intangible assets controlled 
by Lotterywest have a finite useful life and zero residual value (i.e. computer software is 5 to 8 years).

Computer software
Software that is an integral part of the related hardware is treated as property, plant and equipment. 
Software that is not an integral part of the related hardware is treated as an intangible asset. Software 
costing less than $5,000 is expensed in the year of acquisition.

Development costs
Development costs incurred for an individual project are carried forward when the future economic 
benefits can reasonably be regarded as assured and the total project costs are likely to exceed $5,000.

(f)   Impairment of Assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are tested for any indication of impairment at each 
reporting date. Where there is an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is estimated. Where 
the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, the asset is written down to the recoverable 
amount and an impairment loss is recognised. Where an asset measured at cost is written down to 
recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. Where a previously revalued 
asset is written down to recoverable amount, the loss is recognised as a revaluation decrement in other 
comprehensive income. 

As Lotterywest is a not-for-profit entity, unless an asset has been identified as a surplus asset, the 
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and depreciated replacement 
cost.

The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset’s depreciation is materially 
understated, where the replacement cost is falling or where there is a significant change in useful life. 

Each relevant class of assets is reviewed annually to verify that the accumulated depreciation/amortisation 
reflects the level of consumption or expiration of the asset’s future economic benefits and to evaluate any 
impairment risk from falling replacement costs.

Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested 
for impairment at the end of each reporting period irrespective of whether there is any indication of 
impairment.

The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus assets is the higher of fair value less costs to sell 
and the present value of future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset. Surplus assets carried 
at fair value have no risk of material impairment where fair value is determined by reference to market 
based evidence. Where fair value is determined by reference to depreciated replacement cost, surplus 
assets are at risk of impairment and the recoverable amount is measured. Surplus assets at cost are 
tested for indications of impairment at the end of each reporting period.

(g)  Non-Current Assets Classified as Held for Sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale are recognised at the lower of carrying amount and 
fair value less costs to sell, and are disclosed separately from other assets in the Statement of Financial 
Position. Assets classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortised.

(h)   Leases

Lotterywest has a number of government operating lease arrangements for motor vehicles, where 
the lessors retain effectively all of the risks and benefits incident to the ownership of the leased asset. 
Lotterywest holds an operating lease for business premises. 

Equal instalments of the lease payments are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income over 
the lease term (i.e. on a straight line basis over the lease term), as this is representative of the pattern of 
benefits to be derived from the leased vehicles and business premises.

(i)   Financial Instruments

In addition to cash and cash equivalents, Lotterywest has three categories of financial instruments:
• Loans and receivables (accounts receivable);
• Held to maturity investments (term deposits, floating rate notes);
•  Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (prizes and other payables, and Returns to 

Beneficiaries).
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Initial recognition and measurement is at fair value which normally equates to the transaction cost or the 
face value. Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is the face value because there is no interest rate 
applicable and subsequent measurement is not required as the effect of discounting is not material.

(j)   Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and 
short-term deposits with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to a known 
amount of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts.

(k)   Inventories

Inventories are valued, on the first-in first-out basis, at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
The inventories comprise instant lotto tickets and other consumables.

(l)  Receivables

Receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less an allowance for any uncollectible 
amounts. The collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis and any receivables identified 
as uncollectible are written-off against the allowance account. The allowance for uncollectible amounts 
(doubtful debts) is raised when there is objective evidence that Lotterywest will not be able to collect the 
debt. The carrying amount of receivables is equivalent to fair value as it is due for settlement within 30 
days. 

(m) Investments and Other Financial Assets

Lotterywest only has investments classified as held to maturity investments. Investments not at fair value 
are initially recognised at cost being the fair value of consideration given, including directly attributable 
transaction costs.

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates are 
classified as held-to-maturity when the intention and ability to hold to maturity is known. Investments 
intended to be held for an undefined period are not included in this classification.

Held to maturity investments are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, 
over the period to maturity. For investments carried at amortised cost, gains and losses are recognised in 
profit and loss when the investments are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation 
process.

Lotterywest assesses at each balance date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or 
group of financial assets is impaired.

(n)  Payables

Payables, including amounts not yet billed, are recognised when Lottterywest becomes obliged to make 
future payments as a result of a purchase of assets or services at the amounts payable. Other than 
payables in respect of prizes and returns to beneficiaries [see 2(o) and 2(p) below], settlement generally 
occurs within 30 days, as a result the carrying amount is considered to be equivalent to fair value.

(o)  Prizes

Division 1 prizes are paid two weeks after the date of the draw, subject to claim. Other prizes are paid 
upon receipt of a valid winning ticket. 

Prize liabilities are recognised by draw for Lotto, Super 66, Cash 3 and Soccer Pools and activation of 
instant lotteries by Retailers.

(p)  Returns to Beneficiaries

Statutory Grants are recognised in accordance with Section 22 of the Act. 

Lotterywest’s direct grants to eligible organisations for approved purposes as specified in the Act are 
recognised when approved by the Minister. Unconditional grants are paid in full within days of the 
Minister’s approval. Conditional grants are paid as and when conditions are fulfilled.

When a grant is not taken up, it is treated as a reduction of the current year’s grant expenditure, 
regardless of when it was approved.

(q)  Provisions

Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing and amount. Lotterywest only recognises a provision where 
there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and when the outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits is probable and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount 
of the obligation.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Prize Reserve Provision
Lotterywest has a prize reserve fund to ensure sufficient funding is available for jackpots and bonus 
draws. The level of prize reserves are administered by the Australian Lotto Bloc following pre-determined 
guidelines.
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Provisions – Employee Benefits

Annual leave and long service leave
Annual leave and long service leave is not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end 
of the reporting period and is therefore considered to be other long-term employee benefits. The annual 
leave and long service leave liability is recognised and measured at the present value of amounts 
expected to be paid when the liabilites are settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the 
time of settlement. Leave liabilities are in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the 
reporting period.

When assessing expected future payments, consideration is given to expected future wage and salary 
levels including non-salary components such as employer superannuation contributions, as well as the 
experience of employee departures and periods of service.

The expected future payments are discounted to present value using market yields at the end of the 
reporting period on national government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible, 
the estimated future cash outflows.

All annual leave and unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as 
Lotterywest does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months 
after the end of the reporting period. 

Sick leave
Liabilities for sick leave are recognised when it is probable that sick leave paid in the future will be greater 
than the entitlement that will accrue in the future. Past history indicates that on average, sick leave taken 
each reporting period is less than the entitlement accrued. This is expected to continue in future periods. 
Accordingly, it is unlikely that existing accumulated entitlements will be used by employees and no liability 
for unused sick leave entitlements is recognised. As sick leave is non-vesting, an expense is recognised in 
the Statement of Comprehensive Income for this leave as it is taken.

Deferred leave
The provision for deferred leave relates to Public Service employees who have entered into an agreement 
to self-fund an additional 12 months leave in the fifth year of the agreement. The provision recognises the 
value of salary set aside for employees to be used in the fifth year. This liability is measured on the same 
basis as annual leave. Deferred leave is reported as a current provision as employees can leave the 
scheme at their discretion at any time.

Purchased leave
The provision for purchased leave relates to Public Service employees who have entered into an 
agreement to self-fund up to an additional 10 weeks leave per calendar year. The provision recognises the 
value of salary forgone by employees and is measured at the undiscounted amounts expected to be paid 
when the liabilities are settled. 

Superannuation
The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) and other fund providers administer public 
sector superannuation arrangements in Western Australia in accordance with legislative requirements. 
Eligibility criteria for membership in particular schemes for public sector employees vary according to 
commencement and implementation dates.

Eligible employees contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefit pension scheme closed to new 
members since 1987, or the Gold State Superannuation Scheme (GSS), a defined benefit lump sum scheme 
closed to new members since 1995.

Employees who commenced employment prior to 16 April 2007 who were not members of either the 
Pension Scheme or the GSS became non contributory members of the West State Superannuation Scheme 
(WSS). Employees who commenced employment on or after 16 April 2007 became members of the GESB 
Super Scheme (GESBS). From 30 March 2012, existing members of the WSS or GESBS and new employees 
can choose their preferred superannuation fund provider. Lotterywest makes concurrent contributions 
to GESB or other fund providers on behalf of employees in compliance with the Commonwealth 
Government’s Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992. Contributions to these accumulation 
schemes extinguish Lotterywest’s liability for superannuation charges in respect of employees who are not 
members of the Pension Scheme or GSS.

The Pension Scheme and the pre-transfer benefit for employees who transferred to the GSS are defined 
benefit schemes. These benefits are wholly unfunded and the liabilities for future payments are provided 
at the end of the reporting period. The liabilities under these schemes have been calculated separately for 
each scheme annually by GESB’s actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The expected future payments are discounted to present value using market yields at the end of the 
reporting period on national government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible, 
the estimated future cash outflows.

The GSS, the WSS, and the GESBS, where the current service superannuation charge is paid by Lotterywest 
to the GESB, are defined contribution schemes. The liabilities for current service superannuation charges 
under the GSS, the WSS, and the GESBS are extinguished by the concurrent payment of employer 
contributions to the GESB.

The GSS Scheme is a defined benefit scheme for the purpose of employees and whole of government 
reporting. However, from Lotterywest’s perspective, apart from the pre-transfer benefits, it is a defined 
contribution plan under AASB 119 Employee Benefits.

Superannuation expense
Superannuation expense is recognised in the profit or loss of the Statement of Comprehensive Income in 
profit or loss for defined contribution plans, including the concurrent payment of employer contributions to 
the GSS scheme, as and when the contributions fall due.

Subject to materiality for defined benefit plans (the Pension Scheme and the pre-transfer component of 
the GSS), changes in the defined benefit obligation may be recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income either in profit or loss, or, other comprehensive income as follows:

• Profit or loss:
 – current service cost;
 – past service cost; and
 – interest cost.

• Other comprehensive income:
 – actuarial gains and losses;
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Provisions – Other

Employment on costs
Employment on-costs, including workers’ compensation insurance and payroll tax, are not employee 
benefits and are recognised separately as liabilities and expenses when the employment to which they 
relate has occurred. Employment on costs are included as part of ‘Other expenses’ and are not included 
as part of Lotterywest’s ‘Employee benefits expenses’. The related liability is included in ‘Employee on costs 
provision’.

(r)   Accrued Salaries

Accrued salaries represent the amount due to staff but unpaid at the end of the financial year, as the end 
of the last pay period for that financial year does not coincide with the end of the financial year. Accrued 
salaries are settled within a fortnight of the end of the financial year. Lotterywest considers the carrying 
amount of the accrued salaries to be equivalent to the fair value.

(s)   Assets and Services Received Free of Charge or for Nominal Cost

Assets and resources received free of charge or for nominal cost that Lotterywest would otherwise 
purchase if not donated, are recognised as income at the fair value of the assets or serivces where they 
can be reliaby measured. A corresponding expense is recognised for services received. Receipts of assets 
are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position.

Assets and services received from other State Government agencies are disclosed separately under 
Income from State Government in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(t)  Goods and Services Tax and Grants from State Government

The Goods and Services Tax (GST) is not applied to the consumption of gambling services. It is however, 
applied to the operators’ margin defined as the subscription less the amount of prizes. Accordingly the 
State Government provides reimbursement to gambling operators (including Lotterywest) for GST paid 
on the operators’ margin. Lotterywest applies the reimbursement to maintain the level of returns to 
beneficiaries.

The GST paid on our operating margin is disclosed as a cost of producing trading profit (see Note 3). 
Treasurers’ Instruction 1102 also requires the reimbursement of the GST to be disclosed as a Grant from the 
State Government rather than offset against the cost to which it applies.

In accordance with GST legislation, GST is now attributed to the full amount of sales in advance. 

(u)  Foreign Currency Translation

Transactions denominated in a foreign currency are translated at the rates in existence at the dates of the 
transactions. Foreign currency receivables and payables at reporting date are translated at exchange 
rates current at reporting date. Exchange gains and losses (if any) are brought to account in determining 
the result for the year.

(v)  Comparative Figures

Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified to be comparable with the figures presented in 
the current financial year.

(w)  Reporting Entity

The reporting entity is the Lotteries Commission (trading as Lotterywest).
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3.  Trading Profit

      2015 2014
      $000 $000

Sales of Goods  826,344  796,991
   
Cost of Sales   
Prizes     (463,387) (446,918)
Commission Paid to Retailers   (64,312) (62,606)
Goods and Services Tax [see Note 2(t)]  (33,031) (32,273)

      (560,730) (541,797)
   
Trading Profit  265,614  255,194

Allocation of prize monies ranges between 56% to 61% of sales, however some individual prizes are 
allocated as high as 70%. The prize allocation for the national games is determined by the Australian 
Lotteries Bloc members participating in the Lotto games except for the gaming products which are run 
directly by Lotterywest.

Retailers are paid a commission for the sale of Lotterywest products. 

4.  Other Revenue
      2015 2014
      $000 $000

Forfeited Prizes           8,565  10,074
Retailers Fees  4,291  4,233
Players Registration Service Fees  80  97
Other Revenue(a)  553  82
      
      13,489  14,486

(a)  Other Revenue includes the first time recognition of Medina trust property as Non Current Assets 
Classified as Held for Sale valued at $0.35 million that vested back to Lotterywest. The property was 
funded through Lotterywest grants, secured by a Deed of Arrangement, which provided shared 
accommodation to a number of community organisations. This property vested to Lotterywest when the 
community organisations no longer required the accommodation.  

5.  Lotteries Operations
        
      2015 2014
      $000 $000

Employee Benefits Expenses  14,347  14,181
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses  2,793  2,828
Telecommunications and Gaming System Expenses  4,954  4,153
Sales, Marketing and Distribution Expense  18,098  16,571
Other Expenses  6,550  7,480
      
      46,742  45,213

6.  Grants Operations
      2015 2014
      $000 $000

Employee Benefits Expenses  8,250  7,943
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses  2,164  2,234
Other Expenses  4,905  4,750
      
      15,319  14,927
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7.  Returns to Beneficiaries

The Lotteries Commission Act prescribes for the following allocations from net subscriptions of all products:

Statutory Allocations
These grants are appropriated to Agency Special Purpose Accounts: 

• 40% to the State Pool Account of the State established under National Health Funding Pool Act 2012 
• 5% to the Arts Lotteries Account 
• 5% to the Sports Lotteries Account 

Direct Grants
The Lotteries Commission Act prescribes a minimum allocation of 12.5% to eligible organisations for 
approved purposes and up to 5% in total for the University of Western Australia for the Festival of Perth and 
ScreenWest for Commercial Film Production. Any remaining surplus (including surplus reserves generated 
from prior periods and unclaimed prizes as they fall due in the reporting period) is available for distribution 
to eligible organisations.

Summary of 2015 Grants Program    
      2015 2014
      $000 $000

State Pool Account (under National Health Funding Pool Act 2012)  121,648  117,415
Arts Lotteries Account  15,206  14,677
Sports Lotteries Account  15,206  14,677
The University of Western Australia (Perth International Arts Festival)  7,338  7,560
ScreenWest (Commercial Film Production)  7,338  7,560
Direct Grants (Net of Grants not taken up)(a)  111,324  106,874

      278,060  268,763

(a) The total of grants not taken up during the financial year was $4.84 million (2014: $2.46 million).

8.  Grants from State Government 
        
      2015 2014
      $000 $000

GST reimbursement for gambling margin [See Note 2(t)]  33,031  32,273

9.  Receivables
        
      2015 2014
      $000 $000

Current   
 Lotterywest Retailers  7,339  10,237
 GST Receivable  2,397  1,770
 Accrued Interest  1,419  1,856
 Other Debtors   11  35
      
      11,166  13,898

10.  Held to Maturity Financial Assets 

Lotterywest’s financial investments are made in accordance with the Financial Management Act 2006 and 
the Trustees Act 1962 (as amended).
      2015 2014
      $000 $000

Current Investments (maturity less than 1 year)   
 Short Term Products  70,202  183,710
    
Non Current Investments (maturity more than 1 year)   
 Floating Rate Instruments  158,300  77,062
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11.  Non Current Assets Classified as Held for Sale

Assets Reclassified as Held for Sale    
      2015 2014
      $000 $000

Land and Building(a)  2,250  1,900
Less write-down from cost to fair value less cost to sell recognised in  
profit or loss(b)  (636) —

      1,614  1,900

(a)  In accordance with AASB 5.38-41, the properties at 26 Seabrook Way, Medina and 180 Marine Terrace, 
Geraldton have been classified as assets held for sale at 30 June 2015. Both properties are under offer 
and are expected to settle within the next three months.

(b)  The Geraldton property was subject to an impairment written-down from $1,900,000 at cost to its fair 
value less cost to sell of $1,264,310.

Information on fair value measurements is provided in Note 15.

12.  Other Current Assets
        
      2015 2014
      $000 $000

Prepayments(a)  393  —

      393  —

(a)  This relates to payments for goods and services that will not be received until 2015/16 financial year.

13.  Property, Plant and Equipment
      2015 2014
      $000 $000

Land at Fair Value(a)   7,715  7,715
   

Buildings at Fair Value(a)  7,815  7,815
Buildings Accumulated Depreciation  (196) —

      7,619  7,815
   

Leasehold Improvements at Cost  1,440  1,440
Less Accumulated Depreciation  (1,200) (1,036)
      
      240  404
   

Equipment and Fittings at Cost  5,966  5,837
Less Accumulated Depreciation  (4,960) (4,715)
      
      1,006  1,122
   
 
Works of Art at Cost  78  78
   
 
Computer Equipment at Cost  15,594  15,420
Less Accumulated Depreciation  (14,807) (14,505)

      787  915

 
Work In Progress at Cost  4,131  3,571

      4,131  3,571

 
Total Net Book Value of Property, Plant and Equipment  21,576  21,620

(a)  All land and buildings were revalued by an independent valuer on 1 July 2014 (Western Australian Land 
Information Authority Valuation Services), however the revaluation adjustment was immaterial and 
therefore was not disclosed in 2014/15 (2014: decrement of $0.71 million).

Information on fair value measurements is provided in Note 15.
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Reconciliations

  
     Land Buildings Leasehold Equipment &  Works of Arts Computer  Work in  Total
       Improvements Fittings  Equipment Progress
2015    $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
        
Carrying Amount at Start of Year 7,715  7,815  404  1,122  78  915  3,571  21,620 
Additions   350  — — 130  — 174  3,492  4,146 
Transfer from Work in Progress — — — — — — — —
Transfer to Non-Current Assets — — — — — — (2,932) (2,932)
Classified as Held for Sale (350) — — — — — — (350)
Revaluation  — — — — — — — —
Derecognition — — — — — — — —
Depreciation  — (196) (164) (246) — (302) — (908)

Carrying Amount at End of Year 7,715  7,619  240  1,006  78  787  4,131  21,576 

  
     Land Buildings Leasehold Equipment &  Works of Arts Computer  Work in  Total
       Improvements Fittings  Equipment Progress
2014    $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
        
Carrying Amount at Start of Year 9,170 8,440 568 910 78 1,114 1,978 22,258
Additions   — — — 189 — 349 2,756 3,294
Transfer from Work in Progress — 732 — 426 — — — 1,158
Transfer to Non-Current Assets — — — — — — (1,158) (1,158)
Classified as Held for Sale (1,200) (700) — — — — — (1,900)
Revaluation  (255) (453) — — — — — (708)
Derecognition — — — — — — (5) (5)
Depreciation  — (204) (164) (403) — (548) — (1,319)

Carrying Amount at End of Year 7,715 7,815 404 1,122 78 915 3,571 21,620
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14.  Intangibles
      2015 2014
      $000 $000

Computer Software  38,819  35,652
Less Accumulated Amortisation  (21,653) (17,603)

      17,166  18,049

Reconciliations

Computer Software    
      2015 2014
      $000 $000

Carrying Amount at Start of Year  18,049  21,773
Additions    234  31
Derecognition  — (12)
Transfer from Work in Progress  2,932  —
Amortisation Expense   (4,049) (3,743)

Carrying Amount at End of Year  17,166  18,049

15. Fair Value Measurements

Assets Measured at Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value At  
        End of Period
2015    $000 $000 $000 $000
    
Non Current Assets Classified as Held for  
Sale (Note 11)  — 1,614  — 1,614 
Land (Note 13) — 7,715  — 7,715 
Building (Note 13) — 7,619  — 7,619 

     — 16,948  — 16,948 

Assets Measured at Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value At  
        End of Period
2014    $000 $000 $000 $000
    
Non Current Assets Classified as Held for  
Sale (Note 11)  — 1,900 — 1,900
Land (Note 13) — 7,715 — 7,715
Building (Note 13) — 7,815 — 7,815

     — 17,430 — 17,430

Valuation techniques to derive Level 2 fair values

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 or 3 during the period.

Level 2 fair values of Non Current Assets Held for Sale, Land and Buildings (Office Accommodation) are 
derived using the market approach. Market evidence of sales prices of comparable land and buildings 
(office accommodation) in close proximity is used to determine price per square metre.

The Geraldton property classified in the Non Current Assets Held for Sale has been written down to fair 
value less cost to sell of $1,264,310. Fair value has been determined by reference to market evidence of 
sales prices of comparable assets.

16.  Payables
      2015 2014
      $000 $000

Current   

Prizes   
 Unclaimed Prizes in Current Year(a)  28,896  29,193

Returns to Beneficiaries   
 State Pool Account (under National Health Funding Pool Act 2012)  292  144
 Arts Lotteries Account  117  367
 Sports Lotteries Account  117  367
 Direct Grants(b)  129,899  144,677
      
      130,425  145,555

Other    
 Trade Creditors  4,036  3,637
 Other Creditors and Accruals  4,829  4,104

      8,865  7,741

      168,186  182,489

Non Current    

Prizes    
 Unclaimed Prizes in Future Years(c)  250  300

Total Payables  168,436  182,789

(a) Lotterywest’s games prizes are payable as a one off lump sum payment which must be claimed within  
 12 months of winning the prize. This payable represents the amount of prizes won but not yet claimed.
(b) This relates to direct grants approved but not yet paid at year end. 
(c) This liability represents a discontinued game where the prize is paid in the form of an annuity.
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17.  Provisions
      2015 2014
      $000 $000

Current   

Employee Benefits Provision   
 Annual Leave(a)  2,024  2,022
 Long Service Leave(b)  3,062  2,982
Other Provisions   
 Employee On Costs(c)  327  322
 Prize Reserve Provision(d)  25,613  23,962
      
      31,026  29,288

Non-Current   
 
Employee Benefits Provision   
 
 Long Service Leave(b)  964  883
 Superannuation Entitlements(e)  230  221

Other Provisions   
 Employee On Costs(c)  62  57

      1,256  1,161

Total Provisions  32,282  30,449

(a)  Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer 
settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period. Assessments indicate that  
actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:

      2015 2014
      $000 $000

Annual Leave   
 Within 12 months   1,235  1,187
 More than 12 months   789  835
      
      2,024  2,022

(b)  Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no unconditional right  
to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period. Assessments indicate 
that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:   
       
     2015 2014

      $000 $000

Long Service Leave   
 Within 12 months   1,303  1,267
 More than 12 months   2,723  2,598
    
      4,026  3,865

(c)  The settlement of annual leave and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment of 
employment on-costs including workers’ compensation insurance. The provision is the present value of 
expected future payments. The associated expense, apart from the unwinding of the discount (finance 
cost), is disclosed in Note 5 and Note 6 (Other Expenses).

(d)  The prize reserve provision is used to guarantee jackpots and bonus draws in the jackpotting lottery 
games and the advertised prizes on the non-jackpotting games. The settlement of the prize reserve 
provision is expected within the next 12 months.

(e)  The liability for superannuation entitlements has been derived from information provided by GESB. 
Lotterywest has no liability or expense under AASB 119 Employee Benefits arising from the pension 
scheme.

 

Pension Scheme

Lotterywest has no liability or defined benefit cost under AASB 119 arising from the Pension Scheme.

Gold State Super (transferred benefits)

Nature of the benefits provided by the Scheme
Some former Pension Scheme members have transferred to Gold State Super. In respect of their 
transferred benefit the members receive a lump sum benefit at retirement, death or invalidity which is 
related to their salary during their employment and indexed during any deferral period after leaving public 
sector employment.

Description of the regulatory framework
The Scheme operates under the State Superanniation Act 2000 (Western Australia) and the State 
Superannuation Regulations 2001 (Western Australia).

Although the scheme is not fomally subject to the Superannuation Industry (Supervision) (SIS) legislation, 
the Western Australian government has undertaken (in a Heads of Government Agreement) to operate the 
scheme in accordance with the spirit of the SIS legislation.
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Pre-transfer Benefit Gold State Superannuation Scheme    
      2015 2014
      $000 $000

Defined Benefit Obligation  230  221

Net Defined Benefit Liability  230  221

Reconciliation of the Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO)

Present Value of defined benefit Obligations at Beginning of the Year  221  222
Interest Cost(a)  8  7
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses Arising from Changes in Demographic Assumptions(a)  
 
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses Arising from Changes in Financial Assumptions(a) 6  (4)
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses Arising from Liability Experience(a)  (5) (4)

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations at End of the Year  230  221
 
(a)  Due to the immaterial effect of actuarial (gains)/losses in the defined benefit obligation, the net 

movements have been recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income – Expenses Lottery 
Operations.

Significant Actuarial Assumptions at the Reporting Date
    
Assumptions to Determine Start of Year DBO  
and Defined Benefit Cost for the Current Year  2015 2014
      % %

 Discount Rate (Active Members)(a)  3.69 3.38
 Expected Salary Increase Rate  5.00 5.00

Assumptions to Determine DBO at the Valuation Date  2015 2014
      % %

 Discount Rate (Active Members)(a)  2.74 3.69
 Expected Salary Increase Rate  4.00 5.00

(a) The discount rate is based on the 10 year Government bond rate as at 29 May 2015.

Funding Arrangements
The employer contributes, as required, to meet the benefits paid.

Expected Contributions
Employer contributions of $30,000 (2014: $26,000) are expected to be paid to the Gold State 
Superannuation Scheme in the subsequent annual reporting period.

Maturity Profile of DBO
The weighted average duration of Lotterywest’s defined benefit obligation is 4.9 years (2014: 5.2 years).

The recognition of the liability consequently has a minor effect on the year end asset position of 
Lotterywest, therefore no sensitivity analysis is relevant.

Movements in Other Provisions   
Movements in each class of provisions during the financial year, other than employees benefits are  
set out below:
      2015 2014
      $000 $000

 Prize Reserve Provision   
 Carrying Amount at Start of Year  23,962  24,698
 Additional Provisions Recognised  42,102  40,231
 Payments made to the Prize Reserve Account(a) and Prizes Paid  (40,451) (40,967)
 
 Carrying Amount at End of Year  25,613  23,962
 
 Employment On-Cost Provision   
 
 Carrying Amount at Start of Year  379  377
 Additional/(Reversals of) Provisions Recognised  140 114
 Payment/Other Sacrifices of Economic Benefit  (130) (112)

 Carrying Amount at End of Year  389  379

(a)  Prize Reserve Accounts are managed and operated by each State and the administration is provided 
by the Bloc.

18.  Sales in Advance
      2015 2014
      $000 $000

Monies received in advance for future draws(a)  5,061  4,822

(a)  This represents tickets sold which relate to games where the draw will occur after the financial year 
and therefore the proceeds have not been recognised as revenue for the period. 
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19.  Equity

The Western Australian Government holds the equity interest in Lotterywest on behalf of the community. 
Equity represents the residual interest in the net assets of Lotterywest. The asset revaluation surplus 
represents that portion of equity resulting from the revaluation of non-current assets.
        
      2015 2014
      $000 $000

Asset Revaluation Reserve(a)   
 Balance at Start of Year  9,162  9,870
 Asset Revaluation (Decrements)/Increments  — (708)
 
 Balance at the end of the period  9,162  9,162

Retained Earnings(b)   
 
 Balance at Start of the Year  98,187  112,772
 Loss for the Period  (17,024) (14,585)

 Balance at the end of the period  81,163  98,187

Total Equity   90,325  107,349

(a)   The asset revaluation reserve records increments/decrements in the fair value of land and buildings. 
Decrements are recognised in this reserve only to the extent that they were previously recognised as 
increments on the same class of asset.

(b)   This represents the retained earnings at the end of the reporting period and details the level of 
accumulated profits from previous years.

 

20. Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows

Reconciliation of Cash
Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to related 
items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:
      2015 2014
      $000 $000

Cash and Cash Equivalents   
 Cash on Hand  8  158
 Cash at Bank  14,837  8,153

Total per Statement of Cash Flows  14,845 8,311

Reconciliation of Profit to Net Cash Flows provided by Operating Activities
      2015 2014
      $000 $000

Profit/(Loss) for the Period  (17,024) (14,585)

Non cash items   
 Depreciation and Amortisation Expense  4,957  5,060
 Loss on Impairment on Assets Held for Resale  636  —
 Loss on Derecognition  — 11
 Lotteries Houses Vested Back to Lotterywest  (350) —
Cash Flows to/(from) Government   
 
 Statutory Grants  152,060 146,769
 GST Recoup Revenue from State Government  (33,031) (32,273)
(Increase)/decrease in assets   
 
 GST Reimbursement Receivable/(Payable)  (627) 467
 Trade Debtors  2,898  2,314
 Other Debtors   24  202
 Prepayments  (393) —
 Inventories  17  (212)
 Accrued Interest  437  498
Increase/(decrease) in liabilities   
 
 Sales in Advance  239  (495)
 Direct Grants  (14,778) 1,841
 Unclaimed Prizes Payable  (347) (2,408)
 Trade Creditors  399  1,215
 Other Creditors and Accruals  725  (5,777)
 Current Provisions  87  (51)
 Non Current Provisions  95  (1)
 Prize Reserve Provision  1,651  (736)
 Grants from State Government  125  (369)
   
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities before Cash Flows  
to State Government (Excluding Investing Activities)  97,800  101,470 
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21.  Depreciation and Amortisation Expense
      2015 2014
            $000 $000

 Depreciation   
 Buildings    196  204
 Leasehold Improvements  164  164
 Equipment and Fittings  246  403
 Computer Equipment  302  548
 
 Total Depreciation  908  1,319
    
 Amortisation   
 Intangible Assets  4,049  3,743
 
 Total Amortisation  4,049  3,743
 
 Total Depreciation and Amortisation  4,957  5,062

22. Assets and Services Received Free of Charge
      2015 2014
      $000 $000

Legal Services provided by the State Solicitor’s Office  29  8

 
23. Remuneration of Auditor

The total fees to the Auditor General for statutory audits are as follows:
      2015 2014
      $000 $000

Auditing the accounts, financial statements and performance indicators 122 121

24. Remuneration of Members of the Accountable Authority and Senior Officers

Remuneration of Members of the Accountable Authority 
The number of Commissioners, whose total of fees, salaries, superannuation, non monetary benefits and 
other benefits received, or due and receivable, for the financial year, fall within the following bands:

            2015 2014
            $000 $000

     $1  –  $10,000(a) 1 —
 $10,001  –  $20,000 1 2
 $30,001  –  $40,000 4 4
 $60,001  –  $70,000 1 1
  
    7 7
   
(a) There was one retirement and one new Commissioner during the 2014/15 financial year.

            2015 2014
            $000 $000

Base remuneration and superannuation  233 219
Other benefits  — 16

Total Remuneration of Members of the Accountable Authority  233 235

Remuneration of Senior Officers 
The number of Senior Officers, other than Members of the Accountable Authority, whose total of fees, 
salaries, superannuation, non monetary benefits and other benefits received, or due and receivable, for 
the financial year, fall within the following bands:

            2015 2014
            $000 $000

 $140,001 – $150,000 1 —
 $150,001 – $160,000 — 1
 $170,001 – $180,000 3 2
 $180,001 – $190,000 — 2
 $190,001 – $200,000 — 1
 $200,001 – $210,000 2 —
 $210,001 – $220,000 2 —
 $250,001 – $260,000  — 1
 $330,001 – $340,000 — 1

    8 8
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      2015 2014
      $000 $000

Base remuneration and superannuation  1,763 1,467
Annual leave and long service leave accruals  (321) (27)
Other benefits(a)  59 220

Total Remuneration of Senior Officers of the Accountable Authority  1,501 1,660

(a)  The amount includes a voluntary severance made to a senior officer during the 2013/14 financial year.
 

25.  Financial Instruments

(a)  Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

Financial instruments held by Lotterywest are cash and cash equivalents, term deposits, floating rate 
notes, floating rate deposits, receivables and payables. Lotterywest has limited exposure to financial risks. 
Lotterywest’s Treasury Investment Policy was revised in 2013 and approved by the Commission. Since 
2013/14 the Lotterywest’s investment portfolio is managed by the Western Australia Treasury Corporation 
within the constraints of the investment policy and the approved service level agreement. The Treasury 
Investment Policy includes strategies on managing the risks identified below. 

Credit Risk
Credit risk arises where there is a possibility that counterparties will default on interest payments or capital 
repayments resulting in financial losses to Lotterywest.

In measuring risk at a counterparty level there are three components which include the probability of 
default by the counterparty (a), the current exposure to the counterparty (b), and the likely recovery ratio on 
defaulted obligations (c).

(a)  Probability of default: Lotterywest will only deal with counterparties that have a minimum credit rating 
issued by Standard and Poors of A- long term and Moody’s of A3 long term, which is above investment 
grade (BBB). 

(b)  Current exposure to counterparties: Lotterywest deals mainly with major financial institutions. The 
average exposure to these counterparties was $319.55 million (2014: $340.79 million). The maximum 
exposure to each counterparty is determined by their credit rating. The higher the credit rating the 
greater the maximum exposure, subject to an upper limit of 30% for an AA rated counterparty.

(c)  Likely recovery ratio on defaulted obligations: Lotterywest does not trade securities, nor are there 
any investments in securities which have embedded derivatives. Consequently Lotterywest does not 
have exposure to market movements in relation to capital repayment. Given the high credit quality of 
investments, the risk of default in relation to interest or capital is very low.

With respect to receivables, customers cannot pay for Lotterywest products on credit. Lotterywest collects 
these monies electronically from its retail network on a weekly basis and monitors the performance of 
retail outlets.  All new retail outlets are requested to provide a bank guarantee equivalent to one week’s 
takings. Consequently there is no material default risk for receivables. There were no bank guarantees 
called upon during this financial year.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk arises when Lotterywest is unable to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. Lotterywest 
is exposed to liquidity risk through its trading in the normal course of its business.

Lotterywest manages liquidity risk by limiting investment terms to have sufficient funds available to meet 
forecasted payment outcomes as and when they fall due.

Market Risk
Lotterywest does not trade in foreign currency and is not materially exposed to other price risks. 
Lotterywest’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates to the whole investment portfolio 
and changes in interest rates which impact on investment income. Lotterywest has no borrowings. 

The primary objective of Lotterywest’s investment portfolio is capital preservation whilst generating an 
appropriate return. Investment in high quality products where all investments are held to maturity and 
all counterparties are above investment grade, ensure a positive return and low risk of capital loss. The 
current investment portfolio only contains term deposits, floating rate notes and floating rate deposits. 

(b)  Categories of Financial Instruments

The carrying amount of each of the following categories of financial assets and financial liabilities at the 
end of the reporting period are as follows:

        
      2015 2014
      $000 $000

Financial Assets  
Cash     14,845  8,311
Loan and Receivables(a)  8,769  12,126
Other Financial Assets Held-to-Maturity  228,502  260,772
  
Financial Liabilities  
Financial Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost  168,436  182,789
  

(a)   The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (statutory 
receivable).
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Financial Instrument Disclosures

Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk and Interest Rate Risk Exposure

The following table details the exposure to liquidity risk and interest rate risk as at the end of the reporting period. Lotterywest`s maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of 
the financial assets as shown on the following table. The table is based on information provided to senior management of Lotterywest and the Commission from sources including Western Australian Treasury Corporation 
(WATC). The contractual maturity amounts in the table are representative of the undiscounted principal and interest receivable or payable amounts. 
Lotterywest holds bank guarantees as collateral for its retailer debtors. 

There are no financial assets that are past due and therefore there is no further ageing analysis for the financial assets.

Lotterywest does not hold any financial assets that had to have their terms renegotiated that would have otherwise resulted in them being past due or impaired.

Maturity Analysis of Financial Assets
     
     Interest Rate Exposure Maturity Dates

     Carrying Weighted  Fixed Variable Non- Nominal Within 2-3 3-4 4-5 More 
     Amount  Average  Interest Interest Interest Amount 1 Year Years Years Years than  
      Interest Rate  Rate Bearing      5 Years 
      Rate
                
2015    $000 % $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Financial Assets           
Cash and Cash Equivalents 14,845  2.50% — 14,845  — 14,885  14,885  — — — —
Loan and Receivables 8,769  — — —  8,769  8,769  8,769 — — — —
Other Financial Assets Held-to-Maturity 228,502  3.49% 75,202  153,300  — 228,800  69,953  27,053  47,144  84,650  —
 
     252,116   75,202  168,145  8,769  252,454  93,607  27,053  47,144  84,650  —
           

     Interest Rate Exposure Maturity Dates

     Carrying Weighted  Fixed Variable Non- Nominal Within 2-3 3-4 4-5 More 
     Amount  Average  Interest Interest Interest Amount 1 Year Years Years Years than  
      Interest Rate  Rate Bearing      5 Years 
      Rate
                
2014    $000 % $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Financial Assets           
Cash and Cash Equivalents 8,311 2.46% — 8,311 — 8,384 8,384 — — — —
Loan and Receivables 12,126 — — — 12,126 12,126 12,126 — — — —
Other Financial Assets Held-to-Maturity 260,772 3.67% 140,921 119,851 — 273,823 183,710 12,787 25,352 51,974 —

     281,209  140,921 128,162 12,126 294,333 204,220 12,787 25,352 51,974 —
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Maturity Analysis of Financial Liabilities

     Interest Rate Exposure Maturity Dates

       Carrying Weighted  Fixed Variable Non- Total Up to3 3-12 1-2  
       Amount  Average  Interest Interest Interest Nominal Months Months Years  
        Interest Rate  Rate Bearing Amount     
        Rate    
                
2015      $000 % $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 

Financial Liabilities         
Financial Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost   168,436   — — — 168,436  168,436  167,660  526 250  
 
       168,436  — — — 168,436  168,436  167,660  526 250  

     Interest Rate Exposure Maturity Dates

       Carrying Weighted  Fixed Variable Non- Total Up to3 3-12 1-2  
       Amount  Average  Interest Interest Interest Nominal Months Months Years  
        Interest Rate  Rate Bearing Amount     
        Rate    
                
2014      $000 % $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 

Financial Liabilities         
Financial Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost   182,789 — — — 182,789 182,789 181,611 878 300
 
       182,789 — — — 182,789 182,789 181,611 878 300
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Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The following table represents a summary of the interest rate sensitivity of Lotterywest’s financial assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period. It is assumed that the change in interest rates if held constant 
throughout the reporting period. The sensitivity analysis provided is a movement of – 0.5% and 0.5%. (2014: -0.5% and 0.5%)

        Carrying -0.5% Change +0.5% Change
      Amount (Loss) Profit 
2015     $000 $000 $000 
      
Financial Assets     
Cash and Cash Equivalents 14,845  (74) 74 
Other Financial Assets Held to Maturity 228,502  (1,143) 1,143 
Loan and Receivables 8,769  — — 
      
Financial Liabilities     
Financial Liabilities Measured at Amortised Costs 168,436  — — 
      
Total Increase/(Decrease)  (1,217) 1,217 

     
        Carrying -0.5% Change +0.5% Change
     Amount (Loss) Profit 
2014     $000 $000 $000 
      
Financial Assets     
Cash and Cash Equivalents 8,311 (42) 42 
Other Financial Assets Held to Maturity 260,772 (1,304) 1,304 
Loan and Receivables 12,126 — — 
      
Financial Liabilities     
Financial Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost 182,789 — — 
      
Total Increase/(Decrease)  (1,346) 1,346 

Fair value

All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the Statement of Financial Position, whether they are carried at cost or fair value, are recognised at amounts that represent a reasonable approximation of fair value unless 
otherwise stated in the specific notes.
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26. Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities

Lotterywest is not aware of any contingent assets or contingent liabilities.

27. Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service

Lotterywest has two services. 
Service 1  – Sale of lottery products to the public of Western Australia; and
Service 2  – The provision of grants and other distributions to the community of Western Australia.

      Service 1 Service 2 Total
     Sale of Lottery Grants and Other  
     Products  Distributions    

     2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
     $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

INCOME      
Sales    826,344  796,991 — — 826,344  796,991
Interest Income 10,963  12,365 — — 10,963  12,365
Other Revenue 13,489  14,486 — — 13,489  14,486

Total Income 850,796  823,842 — — 850,796  823,842
      
EXPENSES      
Cost of Sales  560,730  541,797 — — 560,730  541,797
Lotteries Operations 46,742  45,213 — — 46,742  45,213
Grants Operations — — 15,319  14,927 15,319  14,927

Total Expenses excluding Returns to Beneficiaries 607,472  587,010 15,319  14,927 622,791  601,937
      
Profit/(Loss) before Returns to Beneficiaries  243,324  236,832 (15,319) (14,927) 228,005  221,905
Grants from State Government  33,031  32,273 — — 33,031  32,273
Net Funds Transferred to Grants Service  (276,355) (269,105) 276,355  269,105 — —

Amount Available for Distribution  — — 261,036  254,178 261,036  254,178

Total Returns to Beneficiaries  — — 278,060  268,763 278,060  268,763

Loss for the period  — — (17,024) (14,585) (17,024) (14,585)
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28. Related and Affiliated Bodies 

Section 26 (1) of the Lotteries Commission Act requires details of all grants recipients to be listed separately, 
including grants provided to any affiliated bodies. There were no related and/or affiliated bodies requiring 
disclosure for the year. 

29. Commitments for Expenditure

The commitments below are inclusive of GST where relevant.

Capital Expenditure Commitments
Capital expenditure commitments in relation to information technology capital purchases contracted at the 
reporting date but not recognised in the financial statements as liabilities are payable as follows:

        
      2015 2014
      $000 $000

Within 1 year   8,783  8,037
      
      8,783  8,037

Other Expenditure Commitments
Other expenditure commitments in relation to information technology maintenance, support and various 
inventory items contracted at the reporting date but not recognised in the financial statements as liabilities 
are payable as follows:
        
      2015 2014
      $000 $000

Within 1 year   2,950  5,188
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years  8,019  8,261
      
      10,969  13,449

Lease Commitments 
Commitments in relation to leases contracted at the reporting date but not recognised in the financial 
statements as liabilities are payable (exclusive GST) as follows:
        
      2015 2014
      $000 $000

Non-Cancellable Property Lease Commitments(a)   
 Within 1 year  335  359
 Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years  140  509

      475  868

Non-Cancellable Operating Lease Commitments(b)   
 
 Within 1 year  107  100
 Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years  123  79

      230  179

Total Lease Commitments  705 1,047

(a)  The property lease is a non cancellable lease with an eleven year term commencing from 1 December 
2005, with rent payable monthly in advance. Contingent rent provision within the lease agreement 
requires that the minimum lease payments shall be increased by CPI and market review for every two 
years thereafter.

(b)  These amounts were provided by the Department of Finance and relate to Lotterywest’s motor vehicle 
lease arrangements which operate under the State Fleet Funding Facility contract. Lotterywest’s vehicle 
leases are generally for two or three years. 

30. Events Occurring after the End of the Reporting Period

There has been no event subsequent to the end of the reporting period which would have a material 
effect on Lotterywest’s financial statements at 30 June 2015.
                                                                  

31.  Explanatory Statement

The following tables provide details of significant variations between actual revenues and expenditures for 
the financial year compared with the corresponding items for the preceding year and the corresponding 
items in the budget.

Significant variations are considered to be those where the amount is deemed as being in excess of  
$1 million.

Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2015
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Significant Variations 
Between Actual and Mid-Year Review Estimates of Revenues and Expenditures for 2014/15
    
      2015 2015  Variance 
      Actual   Budget   $000
      $000 $000

Revenue    
 Sales    826,344 840,000 (13,656)
Less: Cost of Sales    
 Prizes    463,387 470,506 (7,119)
 Retailers’ Commission  64,312 66,935 (2,623)
 Goods and Services Tax  33,031 35,880 (2,849)

 Total Cost of Sales  560,730 573,321 (12,591)

Trading Profit  265,614 266,679 (1,065)
     
Other Revenue    
 Interest   10,963 11,000 (37)
 Other    13,489 13,575 (86)

 Total Other Revenue from Lottery Activities  24,452 24,575 (123)
     
Expenses    
 Lotteries Operations  46,742 48,665 (1,923)
 Grants Operations  15,319 16,221 (902)

 Total Expenses from Lottery Activities  62,061 64,886 (2,825)
     
Profit from Lottery Activities  228,005 226,368 1,637
     
Total Returns to Beneficiaries    
 Direct Grants (Net of Grants not taken up)  126,000 126,000 -
 State Pool Account  121,648 123,648 (2,000)
 Sport/Arts Lotteries Accounts  30,412 30,912 (500)
      
Total Returns to Beneficiaries  278,060 280,560 (2,500)
     
 GST Reimbursement for Gambling Margin  33,031 35,880 (2,849)

Net Loss    (17,024) (18,312) 1,288

Sales
Lotterywest’s sales revenue for the 2014/15 financial year were 13.7 million (1.6%) lower than the budget. 
The main reason for this is the delay of Set for Life – a national Lotto game that was planned to be 
introduced to the market early 2015 but was delayed to the third quarter of the year due to delays by the 
Australian Lotteries Bloc member’s in obtaining Government’s approval for the new lotto games in the 
Eastern States.

Cost of Sales
Prize allocation and commission paid to retailers for selling lottery products are directly linked to sales. 
The 1.6% decrease in sales over the budget resulted in a proportionate decrease in prizes and retailers’ 
commission. 

Total Expenses from Lottery Activities
Total expenses from lottery activities for the 2014/15 financial year were $2.8 million (4.4%) below budget. 
The delay in new advertising and rebranding of lotto products as well as delays in capital works resulting 
in lower depreciation were the main reason for the lower than budgeted expenditure.

Total Returns to Beneficiaries
Statutory funding to State Pool Account, Sports and the Arts is distributed according to section 22 of 
Lotteries Commission Act 1990 (as amended) and is directly linked to the level of sales recorded. The total 
annual sales of $826.3 million were 1.6% below budget and resulted in the proportionate decrease in 
funding allocations.

Direct Grants are distributed according to sections 19 and 24 of the Lotteries Commission Act 1990 (as 
amended).  
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Significant Variations 
Actual Revenues and Expenditures for 2014/15 and 2013/14
         
      2015 2014  Variance 
      Actual   Actual   $000
      $000 $000

Revenue    
 Sales    826,344 796,991 29,353
Less: Cost of Sales    
 Prizes    463,387 446,918 16,469
 Retailers’ Commission  64,312 62,606 1,706
 Goods and Services Tax  33,031 32,273 758
 
 Total Cost of Sales  560,730 541,797 18,933

Trading Profit  265,614 255,194 10,420
     
Other Revenue    
 Interest   10,963 12,365 (1,402)
 Forfeited Prizes  8,565 10,074 (1,509)
 Retailer Fees  4,291 4,233 58
 Player Registration Service Fee  80 97 (17)
 Other    553 82 471
 
 Total Other Revenue from Lottery Activities  24,452 26,851 (2,399)
     
Expenses    
 Lotteries Operations  46,742 45,213 1,529
 Grants Operations  15,319 14,927 392

 Total Expenses from Lottery Activities  62,061 60,140 1,921
     
Profit from Lottery Activities  228,005 221,905 6,100
     
Total Returns to Beneficiaries    
 Direct Grants (Net of Grants not taken up)  126,000 121,994 4,006
 State Pool Account  121,648 117,415 4,233
 Sport/Arts Lotteries Accounts  30,412 29,354 1,058

Total Returns to Beneficiaries  278,060 268,763 9,297
     
 GST Reimbursement for Gambling Margin  33,031 32,273 758

Net Loss    (17,024) (14,585) (2,439)

Sales
Lotterywest’s sales revenue for the 2014/15 financial year was $29.4 million (3.7%) higher than last year. 
The high levels of jackpots for Powerball this financial year were the main contributing factors to this year’s 
positive variance. Division 1 offers for Powerball were 9% up on last year. 

Cost of Sales
Prize allocation and commission paid to retailers for selling lottery products are directly linked to sales. The 
3.7% increase in sales over the previous year resulted in a proportionate increase in prizes and retailers’ 
commission. The increase in Play Online sales are adversely impacting the amount paid to retailers in the 
form of commission (sales revenue contributed by players purchasing tickets on-line represented 5% of 
total annual sales in 2014/15).

Interest
Investment Income for the 2014/15 financial year of $10.96 million was 11.3% lower in comparison to last 
year. The lower interest rates were the main contributing factor.

Forfeited Prizes
Under the Lotteries Commission Act 1990 (as amended), players have 12 months to claim a lottery prize. 
If the prize is not claimed within that period, the prize is forfeited. Forfeited prizes are included in the pool 
of funds that become available for distribution to the Western Australian community through Lotterywest's 
direct grants program. The forfeited prizes amount in the 2014/15 financial year totalled $8.6 million, a 
decrease of $1.51 million. The variance is due to greater community awareness of unclaimed prizes.

Total Expenses from Lottery Activities
Operational expenses for the 2014/15 financial year were $1.9 million (3.2%) higher than last year. This is 
attributable to impairment of current asset held for sale ($0.64 million), Enterprise Bargaining Agreement 
pay increase of 2.75% ($0.58 million) and an increase in operational project costs for major capital works 
($0.70 million). 

Total Returns to Beneficiaries
Statutory funding to State Pool Account, Sports and the Arts is distributed according to section 22 of 
Lotteries Commission Act 1990 (as amended) and is directly linked to the level of sales recorded. The 3.7% 
increase in sales in the 2014/15 financial year resulted in the proportionate increase in funding allocations.

Direct Grants are distributed according to sections 19 and 24 of the Lotteries Commission Act 1990 (as 
amended). The increase in funds available to the community in the form of direct grants in the 2014/15 
financial year reflects the impact of the distribution of accumulated reserves (as allowed for by the Lotteries 
Commission Act 1990) in order to meet increasing demand for financial support from charitable and non 
for profit community organisations.
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Operating Budget

In accordance with the Treasurer’s Instruction 953, this statement shows the 2015/16 Budget estimate for 
the Statement of Comprehensive Income. This statement is not subject to audit. The Minister approved the 
budget on 23 March 2015.
         
      2016 2015  Variance 
      Budget   Actual   $000
      $000 $000

Revenue    
 Sales    880,000 826,344 53,656
Less: Cost of Sales    
 Prizes    492,911 463,387 29,524
 Retailers’ Commission  70,122 64,312 5,810
 Goods and Services Tax  36,950 33,031 3,919

 Total Cost of Sales  599,983 560,730 39,253

Trading Profit  280,017 265,614 14,403
     
Other Revenue    
 Interest   11,000 10,963 37
 Forfeited Prizes  8,850 8,565 285
 Retailer Fees  4,863 4,291 572
 Player Registration Service Fee  120 80 40
 Other    60 553 (493)
 
 Total Revenues from Lottery Activities  24,893 24,452 441
     
Expenses    
 Lotteries Operations  52,693 46,742 5,951
 Grants and Community Development Operations  19,231 15,319 3,912

 Total Expenses from Lottery Activities  71,924 62,061 9,863
     
Profit from Lottery Activities  232,986 228,007 4,979
     
Total Returns to Beneficiaries    
 Direct Grants (Net of Grants not taken up)  115,000 126,000 (11,000)
 State Pool Account  129,536 121,648 7,888
 Sport/Arts Lotteries Accounts  32,384 30,412 1,972
       
 Total Returns to Beneficiaries  276,920 278,060 (1,140)
     
 GST Reimbursement for Gambling Margin  36,950 33,031 3,919

Net Loss    (6,984) (17,024) 10,040

NOTES TO THE BUDGET

Lotterywest’s budget for the fiscal year 2015/16 meets the operational and financial objectives for the year 
as well as long term outcomes and strategies documented in the Strategic Development Plan. 

The sales budget of $880 million represents a growth of 6.5% on sales from 2014/15. 

The community funding budget for 2015/16 totals $276.9 million and includes funding to Hospitals of 
$129.5 million, $16.2 million each to Sport and Arts and direct grants $115.0 million. In total, funding to the 
community represents 31.5% of gross sales. 

Lotterywest’s operational expense budget of $71.9 million represents an increase of $9.9 million (15.9%) 
from 2014/15. The increases in costs are as follows:
• Increases in operational project costs related to capital projects of $3.4 million
• Increases in marketing for corporate rebranding and new products/gaming of $3.3 million
• Increases in depreciation of $1.96 million for new assets
• Increases in retailer distribution costs of $1.42 million

Lotterywest has planned for an operating deficit of $6.98 million in 2015/16.
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Comprehensive Income Statement       
     2012 2013  2014 2015 2016 
     Actual   Actual  Actual Actual Budget 
     $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
      
Sales Revenue 762,681 820,761 796,991 826,344 880,000
Less Cost of Sales     
 Prizes   428,162 459,730 446,918 463,387 492,911
 Retailers’ Commission 61,174 65,402 62,606 64,312 70,122
Add Other Revenue     
 Interest  18,146 15,183 12,365 10,963 11,000
 Forfeited Prizes 8,327 9,988 10,074 8,565 8,850
 Retailer Fees 4,029 4,173 4,233 4,291 4,863
 Player Registration Service  150 118 97 80 120
 Other   68 2,965 82 553 60

Net Revenue 304,065 328,056 314,318 323,097 341,860

Less Expenses     
 Operating Expenses 55,437 59,047 60,140 62,061 71,924
 
Profit    248,628 269,009 254,178 261,036 269,936
Less Returns to Beneficiaries 256,977 272,032 268,763 278,060 276,920

Net Profit/(Loss) (8,349) (3,023) (14,585) (17,024) (6,984)

Assets     
 Held to Maturity Financial Assets 258,983 261,560 260,772 228,502 227,922
 Other Current Assets 35,661 44,352 24,968 28,860 22,069
 Non Current Assets 44,204 44,031 39,669 38,742 52,829

 Total Assets 338,848 349,943 325,409 296,104 302,820
 
 Liabilities  214,680 227,301 218,060 205,779 220,767

Net Assets  124,168 122,642 107,349 90,325 82,053

This table is included as a supplement to the Annual Report to provide an overview of the Lotterywest’s performance and expectations. The GST payable on the gambling margin and the grant from State Government (GST 
offset) have not been included in this statement, and do not affect the five year summary on the net profit and net assets position. Returns to Beneficiaries includes Direct Grants which are managed to a level sustainable 
by Lotterywest.

Five Year Summary of Financial Data For the year ended 30 June 2015
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     Requests Approved Amount
     2015  2014 2015  2014 
     No.  No. $000 $000
 
      
Total requests on agenda 1,150 1,220 155,483 145,251
Total approved requests 1,113 1,197 130,847 124,522
Total requests not approved 37 23 2,520 1,514
Total partial requests not approved 391 317 22,115 19,216

Organisations/Approved Grants
         2015     2014  

No. of organisations 949 1,017  
No. of new organisations 86 87  

Grants Agenda Approval Ratio
         2015     2014  

% Approved grants (in full or part) 97% 98%  
% Not supported requests (in full) 3% 2%  

Direct Grants Summary
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Grants made to the WA Community

 A Cappella West Inc  $10,000

 Aboriginal Alcohol and Drug Service (A.A.D.S.) Inc  $6,675

 Aboriginal Alcohol and Drug Service (A.A.D.S.) Inc  $592,137

 Activ Foundation Inc  $50,000

 Adoption Research and Counselling Service Inc  $31,761

 Aged & Community Services Western Australia Inc  $20,000

 Agencies for South West Accommodation Inc  $45,000

 Airport City Community Services Inc  $15,000

 Airport City Community Services Inc  $5,814

 Albany Community Care Centre (WA) Inc  $154,097

 Albany Hospice Inc  $619,770

 Albany Kindergarten Association - Lower King Community Kindergarten  $71,748

 Albany MenShed Inc  $400,000

 Albany Playgroup Inc  $13,094

 Alchera Living Inc - Weeronga Social Club  $5,000

 Alexander Heights Senior Citizens Club Inc  $3,296

 Alzheimer's Australia WA Ltd  $47,500

 Amana Living Inc  $335,475

 Amanda Young Foundation Ltd  $4,440

 Amazons Perth Dragon Boat Club Inc  $12,000

 Anglicare WA Inc  $850,000

 Anglicare WA Inc  $2,100,000

 Apex Club of Perth Inc  $20,000

 Armadale City Concert Band  $3,600

 Arthritis Foundation of WA Inc  $20,615

 Arthritis Foundation of WA Inc  $27,750

 Artrage Inc  $850,000

 Artrage Inc  $1,400,000

 Arts and Culture Goldfields Assocation Inc  $20,000

 Arts Margaret River Inc  $57,500

 Ashbil Community Garden Bridgetown Inc  $15,000

 Association of Red Hatted Groups of Australia Inc  $1,799

 Asthma Foundation of Western Australia Inc  $20,000

 Augusta River Festival Inc  $13,446

 Australasian Institute For Maritime Archaeology Inc  $8,976

 Australasian Society for Intellectual Disability Western Australia Inc  $15,000

 Australia Facetors' Guild WA Branch  $6,100

 Australian African Aid Inc  $48,834

 Australian Arab Association Inc  $5,000

 Australian Army Cadets Association (W.A) Inc  $99,241

 Australian Childhood Foundation  $200,000

 Australian Coastal Society Ltd  $15,000

 Australian Council for Educational Research Ltd  $350,000

 Australian Family Association - WA Branch  $12,006

 Australian Kidney Foundation  $61,006

 Australian Red Cross Society - Western Australian Division  $110,000

 Australian Sailor Pty Ltd  $418,450

 Australian Wildlife Conservancy  $292,000

 Australian Wildlife Conservancy  $210,000

 Australian-Asian Association of Western Australia Inc  $20,000

 Australind and Districts Bridge Club Inc  $3,000

 Australind Senior High School Emergency Services Cadet Unit  $14,754

 Autism West Support Inc  $65,982

 Avon Youth Community and Family Services Inc  $17,700

 AWESOME Arts Australia Ltd  $330,400

 Badimia Land Aboriginal Corporation  $25,300

 Baldivis Church Inc  $10,240

 Baldivis Primary School Parents and Citizens' Association Inc  $15,000

 Ballajura Senior Citizens Association Inc  $3,540

 Bangladesh Australia Association of Western Australia Inc  $10,000

 Baptist Union of Western Australia - Kobeelya Conference Centre  $173,920

 Batavia Coast Miniature Railway Society Inc  $10,000

 Beananging Kwuurt Institute  $40,000

 Beaufort Street Network Inc  $30,000

 Beaufort Street Network Inc  $20,000

 Bedingfeld Park Inc  $125,035

 Belmont Toy Library Inc  $8,345

 Belswan Pinjarra Social Club  $3,598

 Belswan Residents Social Club  $6,595

 Bengali Association of Western Australia Inc  $3,930

 Bertram Community Playgroup  $3,771

 Beverley Playgroup Inc  $3,186

 Bibbulmun Track Foundation Inc  $21,000

 Bicton Men's Shed Inc  $15,000

 Bicycles For Humanity (WA) Inc  $13,318

 Bindoon and Districts Agricultural Society Inc  $17,750

 Bindoon Arts and Crafts Centre Inc  $14,455

 BirdLife Australia Ltd. - BirdLife Western Australia  $255,448

 BirdLife Australia Ltd. - BirdLife Western Australia  $20,000

 Birra-Li Child Care Association Inc  $97,000

 Black Swan State Theatre Company Ltd  $180,105

 Blackwood Basin Group Inc  $31,240

 Blue Gum Early Learning and Child Care Centre Inc  $4,442

 Blue Sky Community Group Inc  $9,250

 Blue Sky Community Group Inc  $15,000

 Boab Festival At Derby  $20,000

 Boddington Community Resource Centre Inc  $7,500

 Bonsai Society of Western Australia Inc  $10,000

 Boyanup Foundation Inc  $30,995

 Boyup Brook Mens Association  $4,410

 Brazilian Association of WA Inc  $5,745

 Bremer Bay Art and Craft Association Inc  $11,163

 Bridge Association of Western Australia  $9,218

 Bridge Organisation Inc  $127,243

 Bridgetown Agricultural Society  $10,502

 Bridgetown Family and Community Centre Inc  $55,059

 Bridgetown Historical Society Inc  $5,102

 Bridging the Gap Inc  $48,146

 Brightwater Care Group Inc  $30,000

 Brightwater Care Group Inc - Oats Street  $185,000

 Bringing Them Home Committee (WA) Inc  $14,000

 Brockman House Inc  $39,810

 Broome Community Information Resource Centre and Learning Exchange  $35,115

 Broome Community Information Resource Centre and Learning Exchange  $23,000

 Broome Regional Aboriginal Medical Service (Aboriginal Corporation)  $90,000

 Broome Senior High School Bush Rangers Cadets  $15,000

 Broome Toy Library Inc  $4,059

 Broome Youth and Families Hub Inc  $95,379

 Browns Road Volunteer Bush Fire Brigade  $10,533

 Bruce Rock Community Resource Centre Inc  $10,763

 Buddha's Light International Association Western Australia Inc  $10,000

 Bullsbrook Playgroup Inc  $2,120

 Bullsbrook Residents and Ratepayers Association Inc  $18,965

 Bunbury Agricultural Society Inc  $20,000

 Bunbury Community Radio Inc  $22,190

 Bunbury Diocesan Trustees - Anglican Parish of Collie  $8,450

 Bunbury Diocesan Trustees - St Marys Community Care (Busselton)  $36,832

 Bunbury Lotteries House Complex Inc  $20,841

 Bunbury Men of Song Inc  $19,550

 Bunbury Multicultural Group Inc  $15,000

 Bunbury Regional Theatre Inc  $85,000

 Bunbury Women's Club  $17,586

 Bundiyarra Aboriginal Community (Aboriginal Corporation)  $241,860

 Burundians Community In Western Australia Inc  $5,150

 Busselton Allsports Inc  $20,000

 Busselton Child Care Centre Inc  $70,000

 Busselton Historical Society  $6,867

 Busselton Volunteer Marine Rescue Group Inc  $90,000

 Calvary Youth Services Mandurah Inc  $4,767
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 Camboon Primary School Parents and Citizens' Association Inc  $5,290

 Camp Quality Ltd  $59,227

 Cancer Council Western Australia Inc  $2,500,000

 Cancer Wellness Centre Inc  $93,790

 Cannery Arts Centre Inc  $9,819

 Canning Agricultural Horticultural and Recreational Society Inc  $10,000

 Canning Mens' Shed Inc  $6,590

 Canning River Regional Park Volunteers Inc  $38,606

 Canoeing Western Australia Inc  $25,000

 Canto Belles  $1,818

 Cape Mountain Bikers Inc  $100,000

 Cape to Cape Catchments Group Inc  $24,832

 Carers Association of Western Australia Inc  $30,000

 Carewest Association of Community Based Children's Services (WA) Inc  $13,955

 Carey Community Baptist Church  $4,319

 Carnarvon Family Support Service Inc  $33,000

 Casson Homes Inc  $172,215

 Catch Music Inc  $298,839

 Catholic Homes Inc  $457,000

 Celebrate Western Australia Inc  $850,000

 Centacare Kimberley Association Inc  $60,500

 Central Agcare Inc  $10,000

 Central Desert Native Title Services Ltd  $76,560

 Central West Men's Shed Cervantes Inc  $14,780

 Centre for Advocacy Support and Education For Refugees Inc  $28,400

 Centrecare Inc  $77,580

 Centrepoint Church Inc  $18,248

 Charity Link Inc  $240,000

 Child Inclusive Learning and Development Australia Inc  $75,000

 Children's Leukaemia and Cancer Research Foundation Inc  $10,000

 Children's Services Support Unit (CSSU) Inc - Bernice McLeod Early Learning Centre  $48,045

 Christian Family Church Inc  $15,000

 Chrysalis Support Services Inc  $15,000

 Chrysalis Support Services Inc  $7,206

 Chrysalis Support Services Inc  $80,833

 Churches of Christ Sport and Recreation Association Inc  $50,000

 Churchlands Senior High School Surf Life Saving Cadets  $6,363

 Citizens Advice Bureau of Western Australia Inc  $13,029

 City of Albany  $650,000

 City of Albany  $450,000

 City of Albany  $63,311

 City of Albany  $150,000

 City of Albany Band Inc  $14,540

 City of Armadale  $23,162

 City of Armadale  $20,000

 City of Armadale  $1,550,000

 City of Armadale  $24,500

 City of Bayswater  $4,918

 City of Bayswater Child Care Centre Assoc Inc - Silverwood Child Care Centre  $80,000

 City of Belmont  $24,617

 City of Belmont  $20,000

 City of Bunbury  $11,995

 City of Bunbury  $10,000

 City of Bunbury  $18,574

 City of Bunbury  $25,000

 City of Bunbury  $71,000

 City of Bunbury - South West Local Government Emergency Management Alliance  $2,875

 City of Bunbury Surf Life Saving Club Inc  $20,000

 City of Busselton  $47,690

 City of Busselton  $71,940

 City of Busselton - Foreshore Youth Precinct Project  $2,100,821

 City of Canning  $19,800

 City of Canning  $760,000

 City of Canning  $20,000

 City of Cockburn  $100,000

 City of Cockburn  $31,500

 City of Fremantle  $32,937

 City of Fremantle  $60,000

 City of Gosnells  $42,195

 City of Gosnells  $20,000

 City of Gosnells  $13,000

 City of Gosnells  $4,000,000

 City of Greater Geraldton - Queens Park Theatre  $70,000

 City of Greater Geraldton  $6,800

 City of Greater Geraldton  $20,000

 City of Joondalup  $25,350

 City of Joondalup  $90,000

 City of Joondalup  $38,000

 City of Joondalup - Mobile Youth Service  $40,000

 City of Kalgoorlie-Boulder - Goldfields Arts Centre  $56,500

 City of Kalgoorlie-Boulder - Karkula Park  $40,000

 City of Karratha  $100,000

 City of Karratha  $1,000,000

 City of Mandurah  $20,000

 City of Mandurah  $2,638

 City of Mandurah Mandurah Southern Districts Volunteer Bushfire Brigade  $2,500

 City of Melville  $8,707

 City of Melville  $11,290

 City of Melville - Willagee Community Centre  $21,117

 City of Melville Citizens Relief Fund  $15,000

 City of Nedlands  $750,000

 City of Nedlands  $19,803

 City of Perth  $315,000

 City of Perth  $150,000

 City of Perth  $500,000

 City of Rockingham  $20,000

 City of Rockingham - Secret Harbour Surf Life Saving Club  $700,000

 City of South Perth  $300,000

 City of South Perth  $1,000,000

 City of South Perth  $20,000

 City of South Perth  $300,000

 City of Stirling  $20,000

 City of Stirling  $20,000

 City of Stirling - Stirling Womens Centre  $12,000

 City of Swan - Bullsbrook Community Centre  $500,000

 City of Wanneroo  $600,000

 City of Wanneroo  $102,000

 City of Wanneroo  $20,000

 City of Wanneroo  $500,000

 City of Wanneroo - Pearsall Hocking Community Centre  $500,000

 City of Wanneroo - Wanneroo Skate Park  $200,000

 Claremont Therapeutic Riding Centre Inc  $1,535

 Clontarf Foundation  $15,310

 Coalition for Asylum Seekers, Refugees and Detainees Inc  $15,000

 Coastal Kids Care Inc  $22,939

 Cockburn Volunteer Sea Search And Rescue Group  $22,771

 Coeliac Society of Western Australia, Inc  $1,200

 Collie Day Care Centre Inc  $7,200

 Collie Gallery Group Inc  $5,000

 Communicare Inc  $137,500

 Community Living Association Inc  $1,795

 Community Living Association Inc  $1,636

 Community Living Association Inc  $6,382

 Community Solutions Inc  $77,444

 ConnectGroups - Support Groups Association WA Inc  $16,530

 ConnectGroups - Support Groups Association WA Inc  $14,182

 Conservation Council of Western Australia  $37,332

 Conservation, Animal Rescue, Research And Education Inc  $51,183

 Constable Care Child Safety Foundation Inc  $950,000
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 Consular Corps of Western Australia Inc  $20,000

 Consumer Credit Legal Service (WA) Inc  $5,000

 Contemporary Dance Company of Western Australia Ltd  $82,849

 Coolbellup Leisure Club Inc  $3,426

 Coolbinia Primary School - River Rangers  $14,872

 Coolgardie Day Celebrations Inc  $15,000

 Co-operation Housing  $11,500

 Cornwell House Community Workshops Inc  $40,000

 Corrigin Historical Society Inc  $6,193

 Cottesloe Ladies' Probus Club Inc  $2,000

 Council on the Ageing (Western Australia) Inc  $50,000

 Council on the Ageing (Western Australia) Inc  $31,000

 Country Music Club of Boyup Brook, WA Inc  $20,000

 Country Women's Association of Western Australia - Brookton Branch  $14,937

 Country Women's Association of Western Australia - Safety Bay  $30,116

 Country Women's Association of Western Australia Inc - Koorda  $13,620

 Cranbrook Tourist and Business Promotion Group  $4,737

 Cranlana Programme Foundation  $9,980

 Creative and Therapy Activities (C.A.T.A) Group Inc  $18,500

 Crosslinks Inc  $117,373

 Crossways Community Services Inc  $60,000

 Cue Community Resource Centre Inc  $1,760

 Cultural Learning Centre Mosaica Inc  $10,155

 Curtin University  $1,500,000

 Curtin University  $3,000

 Curtin University  $130,000

 Curtin University  $30,000

 Curtin University  $25,000

 Cymbidium Orchid Club of Western Australia Inc  $5,322

 DADAA Ltd  $239,527

 Dalyellup Community Garden Inc  $5,171

 Dardanup Bull and Barrel Festival Inc  $14,946

 Darling Range Wildlife Shelter Inc  $75,336

 Darlington Arts Festival Association Inc  $20,000

 Deafness Council Western Australia Inc  $60,000

 Denmark Arts Council  $19,060

 Denmark Arts Council  $19,800

 Denmark Bridge Club Inc  $6,000

 Denmark Community Resource Centre Inc  $99,621

 Denmark Environment Centre Inc  $39,338

 Denmark Machinery Restoration Group Inc  $24,029

 Denmark Riverside Club Inc  $390,659

 Denmark Sea Rescue Group Inc  $39,610

 Derbarl Yerrigan Health Service Inc  $35,750

 Desert Feet Inc  $78,664

 Dismantle Inc  $36,932

 Djarindjin Aboriginal Corporation  $63,688

 Dogs' Refuge Home (WA)  $1,107,754

 Dongara Community Resource Centre Inc  $2,530

 Dongara Community Resource Centre Inc  $2,680

 Donnybrook Apple Festival Inc  $15,000

 Doodlakine Community Committee Inc  $2,750

 Dream Life International Inc  $73,819

 Dungeon Youth Centre Inc  $10,000

 Dunsborough and Districts Progress Association Inc  $10,000

 Duyfken 1606 Replica Foundation Inc  $480,200

 Ear Science Institute Australia Inc  $74,000

 Earthwise Community Association Inc  $30,000

 East Victoria Park Primary School Parents and Citizens' Association Inc  $4,093

 Eastern Metropolitan Regional Council  $53,155

 Eastern Metropolitan Regional Council  $20,000

 Eastern Metropolitan Regional Council  $155,000

 Eastern Region Domestic Violence Services Network Inc  $15,000

 Edith Cowan University - Joondalup Campus  $73,265

 Edmund Rice Camps for Kids (WA) Inc  $53,352

 Edmund Rice Centre, Mirrabooka Inc  $13,172

 El Shaddai Kwinana Christian Fellowship Inc  $18,055

 ELBA Inc  $1,000

 Ellenbrook and Districts Men's Shed Association Inc  $41,681

 Ellenbrook Cultural Foundation Inc  $8,919

 Emama Nguda Aboriginal Corporation  $103,600

 Embroiderers Guild of Western Australia  $7,000

 Empowering People in Communities (EPIC) Inc  $17,514

 Environs Kimberley Inc  $80,678

 Equestrian Western Australia Inc  $12,000

 Esperance Care Services Inc  $25,000

 Esperance Care Services Inc  $630,000

 Esperance Community Arts Inc  $35,785

 Ewin Centre Children Services Inc  $29,771

 Exmouth Community Support Group Inc  $35,000

 Fairholme Disability Support Group Inc  $2,787

 Family History Society of Rockingham and Districts Inc  $6,924

 Fathering Project Ltd  $127,050

 FAWNA Inc  $15,000

 Federation of WA Police & Community Youth Centres Inc - Carnarvon  $60,000

 Feed the Little Children Inc  $15,000

 Feline Control Council of Western Australia Inc  $3,208

 Festival of Busselton Inc  $15,000

 Filipino-Australian Club of Perth Inc  $10,113

 Fishers' With Disabilities Association Inc  $7,030

 Fishing Fleet Festival Association  $7,000

 Foothills Information and Referral Service Inc  $27,500

 Former Leinster Residents Association Inc  $12,000

 Foundation Housing Ltd  $65,000

 Foundation Housing Ltd  $51,371

 Foundation Housing Ltd - Hampton Road  $150,365

 Fremantle Multicultural Centre Inc  $39,750

 Fremantle Volunteer Heritage Guides Association Inc  $17,440

 Frenchman Bay Association Inc  $21,800

 Friends of Bold Park Bushland Inc  $29,500

 Friends of Clontarf Hill and Adjacent Bushland Inc  $13,530

 Friends of Kings Park Inc  $1,317,560

 Friends of Kings Park Inc  $100,000

 Friends of Mandurah Performing Arts Centre Inc  $2,766

 Friends of the Art Gallery of Western Australia Inc  $40,000

 Friends of the Cape to Cape Track Inc  $68,000

 Friends of the Eastern Gates Lookout Inc  $9,516

 Fullness of Life Centre Inc  $3,921

 Gascoyne in May Inc  $15,792

 Gelganyem Ltd  $20,000

 Geographe Bay Tourism Association Inc  $22,782

 Geographe French Australian Festivals Inc  $17,500

 Geraldton City Band Inc  $6,300

 Geraldton Club  $47,485

 Geraldton Gem, Mineral and Lapidary Society Inc  $9,771

 Geraldton Regional Community Education Centre Association Inc - OSCCA  $16,570

 Geraldton Regional Community Education Centre Association Inc - OSCCA  $82,130

 Geraldton Regional Herbarium Group  $14,800

 Geraldton Resource Centre Inc  $80,000

 Geraldton Streetwork Aboriginal Corporation  $22,303

 Girl Guides Western Australia Inc  $104,119

 Girls From Oz Ltd  $77,183

 Giving West  $40,000

 Glen Forrest Community Kindergarten and Family Playgroup Inc  $11,658

 Glyde-In Community Learning Centre Inc  $3,539

 Goldfields Brass Band Inc  $8,000

 Goldfields Individual and Family Support Association Inc  $7,500

 Goldfields Land and Sea Council Aboriginal Corporation - Kalgoorlie  $52,580

 Goldfields Repertory Club Inc  $8,350
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 Goldfields Wildlife Rehabilitators Inc  $15,000

 Gosnells Community Legal Centre Inc  $50,000

 Gosnells Community Legal Centre Inc  $21,355

 Gosnells Community Men's Shed Inc  $50,000

 Grace Care Inc  $4,000

 Grace Christian School Emergency Services Cadets Unit  $15,000

 Gravity Discovery Centre Foundation Inc  $20,000

 Graylands Hospital Volunteer Service Inc  $16,500

 Great Southern Community Housing Association Inc  $24,456

 Green Skills Inc  $95,233

 Green Skills Inc  $19,740

 Greening Australia (WA) - Community Nursery and Training Centre Newman  $151,045

 Gujarati Samaj of Western Australia Inc  $7,500

 Gumala Aboriginal Corporation  $68,508

 Halls Creek Healing Task Force Aboriginal Corporation  $35,673

 Halls Creek Peoples Church Inc - Aged Care Facility  $93,725

 Hampton Lodge 93 WAC  $3,600

 Harvest Lakes Residents' Association Inc  $6,763

 Harvey Art Society and Gallery Inc  $2,950

 Harvey Mainstreet Inc  $20,000

 Harvey Occasional Child Care Centre Inc  $6,848

 Hazel Orme Community Kindergarten Inc  $9,336

 Headwest (Brain Injury Association of WA Inc)  $8,368

 Heart Kids (WA)  $23,072

 Hedland Well Women's Centre Inc  $15,000

 Helena College Junior School Parents And Friends Association Inc  $9,265

 Hellenic Community of Western Australia  $30,000

 Helping Out People Everywhere Inc  $25,000

 Heritage Perth Inc  $25,000

 Hibiscus Society of WA Inc  $1,120

 Hilton Harvest Community Garden Inc  $4,177

 Historical Society of Cockburn  $15,000

 Holocaust Institute of WA Inc  $80,000

 Holyoake Australian Institute for Alcohol and Drug Addiction Resolutions Inc  $5,000

 Home Away from Home Inc  $4,000,000

 Honey Festival Inc  $5,351

 Hopetoun Volunteer Marine Rescue Group Inc  $21,261

 Humour Foundation  $104,421

 Huntington's WA Inc  $35,705

 Huntington's WA Inc  $10,000

 Huntington's WA Inc  $55,824

 Immunisation Alliance of Western Australia Inc  $16,727

 In Town Centre Inc  $10,000

 In Town Centre Inc  $4,000

 Independent Living Centre of Western Australia Inc  $99,435

 Independent Living Centre of Western Australia Inc  $1,390,000

 Indian Society of Western Australia  $10,000

 Indian Society of Western Australia  $20,000

 Injury Control Council of Western Australia Inc  $20,000

 Injury Control Council of Western Australia Inc  $3,000

 Injury Control Council of Western Australia Inc  $72,675

 Investing In Our Youth Inc  $14,680

 Iranians Muslim Association of Western Australia Inc  $4,000

 Ishar Multicultural Women's Health Centre Inc  $60,800

 Italian Club Fremantle Inc  $45,000

 Italo-Australian Welfare & Cultural Centre Inc  $10,000

 Jacaranda Community Centre Inc  $70,000

 Japan Festival Association in Perth Inc  $15,000

 Jarlmadangah Burru Aboriginal Corporation  $54,500

 Jerramungup Occasional Childcare Association Inc  $9,210

 Jewish Care WA Inc  $17,000

 Joondalup Bridge Club Inc  $8,800

 Joondalup Christmas Lunch  $12,651

 Joongari House/Wyndham Family Support Inc  $5,000

 Joseph Banks Estate Retirement Village Residents' Association  $5,916

 Jurien Bay Volunteer Marine Rescue Group Inc  $12,309

 K9 Rescue Group Inc  $20,000

 Kalamunda Men's Shed Inc  $50,900

 Kalbarri Arts and Crafts Group Inc  $2,399

 Kalbarri Development Association Inc  $20,050

 Kalbarri Development Association Inc  $21,260

 Kalbarri District High School Bushranger Cadets  $10,200

 Kalbarri Volunteer Sea Search & Rescue Group Inc  $84,296

 Kalgoorlie Boulder Volunteer Centre Inc  $5,000

 Kalgoorlie-Boulder Community Fair Society  $15,000

 Kalumburu Aboriginal Corporation  $40,000

 Kalyuku Ninti - Puntuku Ngurra Ltd  $430,000

 Karlgarin Progress Association Inc  $2,800

 Karratha Emergency Relief Organisation Inc  $40,000

 Karrinyup Ladies Probus Club Inc  $2,363

 Katanning Agricultural Pastoral and Horticultural Society Inc  $10,975

 Katanning Community Resource Centre Inc  $79,885

 Katharine Susannah Prichard Foundation Inc  $23,815

 Kathleen Day Playgroup  $31,838

 Kayili Artists Aboriginal Corporation  $51,000

 Kerkhoff Carnaby Group Inc  $7,903

 Kewdale Primary School Parents and Citizens' Association Inc  $10,000

 Kids' Camps Inc  $69,900

 Kidsafe Western Australia Inc  $1,169,348

 Kimberley Aboriginal Law and Culture Centre (Aboriginal Corporation)  $20,000

 Kimberley Aboriginal Medical Services Council Inc  $30,000

 Kingsley Community Carols Festival  $9,335

 Kingsley Lakeside Village Social Club  $4,397

 Kingsway Christian College Emergency Services Cadet Unit  $14,500

 Kojonup Gymnastics Club Inc  $7,150

 Kojonup Historical Society Inc  $3,318

 Koorliny Arts Centre Inc  $10,900

 KORA Centre Inc  $10,000

 Kununurra Neighbourhood House Inc  $15,000

 Kurdish Association of Western Australia (KAWA) Inc  $1,800

 Kush Centre for Music Culture and Community Development  $14,212

 Kwinana Early Years Services Inc  $12,000

 L.A.M.P. Inc  $25,868

 Lake Clifton-Herron Progress and Sporting Association Inc  $18,540

 Lake Grace Community Men's Shed Inc  $70,000

 Lake Gwelup Primary School Parents And Citizens' Association Inc  $5,000

 Lake Joondalup Baptist College Inc - Emergency Services Cadet Unit  $10,741

 Lancelin Community Resource Centre Inc  $48,725

 Landcare SJ Inc  $20,000

 Latin American Cultural Association (LACA) Inc  $2,780

 Leading Youth Forward Inc  $39,519

 Learning and Attentional Disorders Society of WA Inc  $26,800

 Leederville Connect Inc  $19,460

 Leeman and Green Head Community Resource Centre Inc  $14,738

 Legacy Fund of Perth Inc  $20,000

 Leschenault Community Nursery Inc  $28,188

 Linkwest Inc  $77,210

 Lions Club of Dalyellup Inc  $4,000

 Lions Club of Falcon Inc  $9,772

 Lions Club of Hyden  $10,701

 Lions Club of Manjimup  $4,181

 Lions Club of Manjimup  $4,000

 Lions Club of Rockingham Inc  $15,000

 Lions Club of Serpentine-Jarrahdale  $13,043

 Lions Club of Stirling  $1,445

 Lions Club of Whitfords  $8,500

 Lions Eye Institute Ltd  $1,926,558

 Live Church Inc  $9,000

 LMS Ministries Ltd  $128,700
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 Lockyer Community Kindergarten Inc  $10,800

 Lombadina Aboriginal Corporation  $20,000

 Lower Kalgan Progress Association Inc  $90,677

 Lucy Saw Centre Association  $27,000

 Maali Northam Aboriginal Circle of Elders Inc  $24,200

 Macedonian Society of Geraldton Inc  $44,258

 Maida Vale Baptist Church Inc  $6,715

 Malayali Association of Perth Inc  $3,417

 Mandurah Arts and Crafts Society Inc  $3,898

 Mandurah Community Gardens Inc  $15,000

 Mandurah Family History Society Inc  $3,375

 Mandurah Island Probus Club Inc  $2,447

 Mandurah Lotteries House Inc  $54,661

 Mandurah Murray Emergency Relief Fund Inc  $65,000

 Mandurah Murray Mayday Inc  $26,970

 Mandurah Performing Arts Inc  $86,000

 Mandurah Performing Arts Inc  $43,740

 Mandurah Water Rescue Group Inc  $15,000

 Manjimup Chamber of Commerce and Industry Inc  $18,800

 Manjimup Repertory Club Inc  $28,750

 Manna Inc  $15,417

 Manning Community Toy Library Inc  $3,367

 Manning Senior Citizens Centre Inc  $10,275

 Margaret River Community Resource Centre Inc - Community Childcare Centre  $198,528

 Margaret River Community Resource Centre Inc  $13,000

 Marjorie Mann Lawley Day Care Centre  $74,500

 Marnin Bowa Dumbara Aboriginal Corporation - Derby Family Healing Centre  $8,000

 Marnin Bowa Dumbara Aboriginal Corporation - Family & Domestic Violence Support & Outreach Service  $44,424

 Marnin Bowa Dumbara Aboriginal Corporation - Family & Domestic Violence Support & Outreach Service  $10,000

 Marninwarntikura Fitzroy Womens Resource Centre (Aboriginal Corporation)  $6,303

 Marnja Jarndu Womens Refuge Inc  $11,000

 Marr Mooditj Training Inc  $88,279

 Masti Bollywood Dance Group  $9,918

 Mature Adults Learning Association Inc  $3,100

 Maurice Zeffert Home Inc  $130,580

 Meerilinga Young Children's Foundation Inc  $30,000

 Mental Health Law Centre (WA) Inc  $44,000

 Mental Illness Fellowship of Western Australian Inc - Lorikeet Centre  $132,812

 MercyCare Ltd  $3,000,000

 Metropolitan Migrant Resource Centre Inc  $35,000

 Mid West Community Living Association Inc  $2,322

 Midland Information, Debt and Legal Advocacy Service Inc  $3,000

 Midland Information, Debt and Legal Advocacy Service Inc  $60,000

 Midland Junction Lotteries House Inc  $22,396

 Miners' Promise Australia Ltd  $2,727

 Mission Australia  $56,835

 Mission for Improvement and Boosting Services To The Community Inc  $8,610

 Mosaic Community Care Inc  $23,500

 Mosman Park EcoFair at St Luke's  $7,311

 Mount La Verna Retirement Village Inc  $3,000

 Mount Lawley Senior High School Bush Ranger Cadets Committee  $14,199

 Mowanjum Aboriginal Corporation  $116,000

 Mt Hawthorn Business And Community Group Inc  $11,000

 Mt Marshall & Districts Agricultural Society Inc  $7,082

 Mukinbudin 1950's Working Farm Shed Inc  $7,800

 Mukinbudin Planning and Development Group Inc  $19,265

 Mullewa District Agriculture Society  $6,000

 Multicultural Services Centre of Western Australia Inc  $342,500

 Multicultural Services Centre of Western Australia Inc  $130,000

 Multiple Sclerosis Society of Western Australia Inc  $41,720

 Mundaring Arts Centre Inc  $24,995

 Murray Music and Drama Club Inc  $15,000

 Murray Toy Library Inc  $9,300

 Muscular Dystrophy Association of Western Australia Inc  $3,532

 Muscular Dystrophy Association of Western Australia Inc  $16,632

 Museums Australia Inc  $35,350

 My Place Foundation Inc  $20,000

 N Class Destroyers Association Western Australian Branch Inc  $15,000

 Nannup Garden Village Inc  $15,000

 Nannup Music Club Inc  $20,000

 Nardine Wimmins Refuge  $20,000

 Narembeen Historical Society Inc  $2,431

 Narrogin Spring Festival Inc  $10,000

 National Disability Services Ltd - National Disability Services WA  $501,032

 National Disability Services Ltd - National Disability Services WA  $504,000

 National Disability Services Ltd - National Disability Services WA                   $2,400,000

 National Seniors Australia Nedlands and Districts Branch Inc  $4,386

 National Trust of Australia (WA)  $350,000

 Nations Church Inc  $15,000

 Native ARC Inc  $32,532

 Naturaliste Volunteer Marine Rescue Inc  $30,000

 Nedlands Bridge Club Inc  $15,000

 Nepali Association of Western Australia (NAWA) Inc  $4,700

 New Life Welfare (WA) Inc  $30,000

 Newman Day Care Centre Inc  $20,000

 Newman Mainstreet Project Inc  $50,000

 Newman Women's Shelter Inc  $15,000

 Newton Moore Senior High School Bush Rangers Cadets  $9,382

 Ngaanyatjarra Media (Aboriginal Corporation)  $948,848

 Ngala Community Services  $6,000

 Ngala Family Services  $500,000

 Nickeltown Flounderers Inc  $11,000

 Ningaloo Whaleshark Festival Inc  $15,000

 Nintirri Centre Inc  $29,800

 Nollamara Autumn Club Inc  $3,477

 North Coast Probus Club Inc  $1,215

 North Perth Business and Community Association Inc  $20,000

 North Yunderup Community Association Inc  $4,419

 North Yunderup Community Association Inc  $10,500

 Northam Heritage Forum Inc  $2,116

 Northam Theatre Group Inc  $15,000

 Northampton Motors & Machinery Restoration Group Inc  $19,477

 Northampton Old School Community Initiative Inc  $29,558

 Northam's Avon Descent Association  $85,000

 Northcliffe Pioneer Museum Inc  $3,410

 Northcliffe Playgroup Inc  $10,599

 Northern Suburbs Community Legal Centre Inc  $16,392

 Nuhra Life Enrichment Centre Inc  $3,236

 Nulsen Haven Association Inc  $3,200,000

 Nyamba Buru Yawuru Ltd  $19,210

 Onslow Volunteer Marine Rescue Group Inc  $24,000

 Open House Perth  $42,500

 Orana House Inc  $8,682

 Orchid Society of Western Australia  $11,230

 Ord Valley Events Inc  $20,000

 Organisation of African Community of Western Australia Inc  $8,636

 Otitis Media Group Inc  $30,000

 Outcare Inc  $53,069

 Palliative Care WA Inc  $44,145

 Palmerston Association Inc  $3,000

 Parkerville Children and Youth Care Inc  $225,000

 Patricia Giles Centre Inc  $11,000

 Patricia Giles Centre Inc  $49,037

 Paupiyala Tjarutja Aboriginal Corporation  $120,029

 Peaceful Bay Progress Association Inc  $13,608

 Pemberton Community Resource Centre Inc  $9,538

 Pemberton Visitor Centre Inc  $25,000

 Pemberton Visitor Centre Inc  $25,000

 Perth Bushwalkers Club Inc  $15,000
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 Perth Central and East Metro Medicare Local Ltd  $15,000

 Perth Christian Life Centre Inc  $8,500

 Perth Christian Life Centre Inc  $27,500

 Perth Diocesan Trustees - Anglican Parish of Beaconsfield  $121,176

 Perth Diocesan Trustees - Anglican Parish of Bullcreek-Leeming  $15,000

 Perth Diocesan Trustees - Anglican Parish of Gosnells Welfare & Community Services  $15,000

 Perth Diocesan Trustees - Anglican Parish of Wongan Hills - Dalwallinu  $200,182

 Perth Diocesan Trustees - Swanleigh  $2,860

 Perth Fashion Concepts Inc  $87,500

 Perth Fashion Concepts Inc  $87,500

 Perth Hills and Wheatbelt Band Inc  $8,698

 Perth Home Care Services Inc  $2,000

 Perth Inner City Youth Service Inc  $11,000

 Perth International Jazz Festival Inc  $85,000

 Perth Modernian Society Inc  $5,708

 Phen Dhe Ling Tibetan Buddhist Centre Association Inc  $3,000

 Pickering Brook Heritage Group Inc  $7,300

 Pilbara Community Legal Service Inc  $10,000

 Pilgrims Trail Foundation Ltd  $5,786

 Pingelly Volunteer State Emergency Service Unit Inc  $24,000

 Plantagenet Mens Shed Inc  $16,780

 Playgroup By The Bay Inc  $4,466

 Port School Inc  $113,414

 PortCare Inc  $100,840

 Post Polio Network of WA Inc  $17,425

 Pregnancy Assistance Inc  $7,500

 Pride Midwest Inc  $80,000

 Pride Western Australia Inc  $155,000

 Pride Western Australia Inc  $100,000

 Princess Royal Sailing Club  $39,132

 Prison Fellowship Australia  $5,772

 Prison Fellowship Australia  $61,055

 Probus Club of Carine-Duncraig Inc  $991

 Probus Club of Floreat WA Inc  $2,285

 Probus Club of Kalamunda Inc  $1,822

 Probus Club of Victoria Park Inc  $4,576

 Probus Club of Woodlands Inc  $2,096

 Propel Youth Arts WA Inc  $30,000

 Protective Behaviours WA Inc  $54,800

 Puranyangu-Rangka Kerrem (Aboriginal Radio) Aboriginal Corporation  $34,710

 Quairading Tourist and Tidy Town Committee  $5,000

 Quinninup Community Association Inc  $7,580

 Ravensthorpe Historical Society Inc  $16,720

 Ravensthorpe Progress Association Inc  $15,000

 Ravensthorpe Regional Arts Council  $3,300

 Regents Garden Village Lake Joondalup Residents Association  $2,299

 Regional Development Australia - Pilbara Inc  $60,000

 Regional Development Australia Great Southern Western Australia Inc  $20,000

 RSL of Australia WA Branch Inc - Victoria Park Branch  $25,000

 RSL of Australia WA Branch Inc - Victoria Park Branch  $25,000

 RSL of Australia WA Branch Inc - City of Rockingham Sub Branch  $15,000

 RSL of Australia WA Branch Inc - Northampton  $24,252

 RSL of Australia WA Branch Inc  $1,500,000

 RSL of Australia WA Branch Inc - Bicton/Palmyra Sub-Branch  $8,493

 RSL of Australia WA Branch Inc - Cunderdin  $4,900

 RSL of Australia WA Branch Inc - Esperance Sub Branch  $10,000

 RSL of Australia WA Branch Inc - Jurien Bay Sub Branch  $3,534

 RSL of Australia WA Branch Inc - Kalamunda RSL Sub-Branch  $26,000

 RSL of Australia WA Branch Inc - Pensions and Welfare Service  $15,000

 RSL of Australia WA Branch Inc - Scarborough  $1,104

 RSL of Australia WA Branch Inc - Bullsbrook and Districts Sub-Branch  $141,212

 RGE Men's Shed Inc  $7,713

 Richmond Fellowship of Western Australia Inc  $86,634

 Richmond Fellowship of Western Australia Inc  $41,560

 Riding for the Disabled Association of Western Australia  $229,048

 Riverlinks Child Care and Community Centre Inc  $100,756

 Riverview Community Services Inc  $50,000

 Rockingham and Districts Alzheimer's Inc  $2,727

 Rockingham City Pipe Band Inc  $6,343

 Rockingham Volunteer Sea Rescue Group Inc  $87,000

 Rockingham Woodworkers Club Inc  $4,352

 Roebourne Art Group Aboriginal Corporation  $6,921

 Roebuck Bay Working Group Inc  $4,575

 Roman Catholic Archbishop of Perth - Centacare Employment and Training  $18,272

 Roman Catholic Archbishop of Perth - Identitywa  $215,101

 Roman Catholic Archbishop of Perth - Identitywa  $2,500

 Roman Catholic Archbishop of Perth - St Joseph Parish Northam  $10,000

 Roman Catholic Archbishop of Perth - The Shopfront  $15,000

 Roman Catholic Archbishop of Perth- St Mary's Parish Guilford  $11,250

 Roman Catholic Bishop of Broome Derby Parish  $17,759

 Roman Catholic Bishop of Geraldton - Centacare Family Services  $40,000

 Roman Catholic Bishop of Geraldton - St Francis Xavier Cathedral  $651,038

 Rose Centre Complementary Care Group Inc  $7,500

 Rossmoyne Primary School Parents And Citizens' Association Inc  $9,830

 Rotary Club of Applecross Inc  $12,000

 Rotary Club of Ballajura - Malaga Inc  $5,850

 Rotary Club of Bunbury, Western Australia, Inc  $23,148

 Rotary Club of Heirisson Inc  $15,000

 Rotary Club of Karrinyup Inc  $1,678

 Rotary Club of Mandurah Districts Western Australia Inc  $4,263

 Rotary Club of Margaret River Inc  $25,000

 Rotary Club of North Perth Inc  $20,000

 Rotary Club of Perth, Western Australia Inc  $150,000

 Rotary Club of Willetton Inc  $14,000

 Rottnest Foundation Inc  $500,440

 Royal Agricultural Society of Western Australia  $25,000

 Royal Australian Artillery Historical Society of Western Australia Inc  $16,552

 Royal Flying Doctor Service of Australia (Western Operations)  $533,319

 Royal Society of Western Australia  $42,100

 RSL (WA) Retirement and Aged Care Association Inc - Jurien Bay  $140,000

 Ruah Community Services  $3,000

 Ruah Community Services  $25,000

 Sailability WA Inc  $22,189

 Salvation Army (Western Australia) Property Trust - Rockingham  $220,500

 Samaritans Inc  $79,852

 Samson Family History Group Inc  $11,000

 Saving Animals From Euthanasia Inc  $20,000

 Scarborough Beach Association Inc  $15,000

 School Volunteer Program Inc  $98,352

 Scout Association of Australia, Western Australian Branch  $135,138

 Scout Association of Australia, Western Australian Branch  $124,460

 ScreenWest Inc  $7,338,467

 Seacrest Village Social Club  $2,948

 Second Harvest Australia Inc  $80,000

 Secret Harbour Residents Association Inc  $15,000

 Secretariat of National Aboriginal and Islander Child Care Inc  $36,375

 Seniors' Recreation Council of WA Inc  $25,000

 Settlers Lakeside Village Ravenswood Residents' Association Inc  $4,372

 Shelter WA Inc  $13,314

 Shelter WA Inc  $40,000

 Shire of Ashburton  $400,000

 Shire of Augusta-Margaret River  $81,000

 Shire of Augusta-Margaret River  $5,239

 Shire of Augusta-Margaret River  $13,400

 Shire of Beverley  $745,000

 Shire of Boddington  $12,612

 Shire of Boyup Brook  $75,629

 Shire of Bridgetown-Greenbushes  $24,200

 Shire of Bridgetown-Greenbushes  $16,900
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 Shire of Bridgetown-Greenbushes  $3,628

 Shire of Bridgetown-Greenbushes  $15,230

 Shire of Broome  $25,073

 Shire of Broome  $250,000

 Shire of Bruce Rock  $26,200

 Shire of Bruce Rock  $7,890

 Shire of Carnarvon  $30,676

 Shire of Carnarvon - Carnarvon Civic Centre  $45,990

 Shire of Chapman Valley  $12,422

 Shire of Chittering  $19,853

 Shire of Chittering  $20,000

 Shire of Coorow  $35,362

 Shire of Coorow  $20,000

 Shire of Corrigin - Community Resource Centre  $15,308

 Shire of Cranbrook  $16,555

 Shire of Cranbrook - Local Emergency Management Committee  $10,000

 Shire of Cunderdin  $43,834

 Shire of Cunderdin - Men's Shed  $30,000

 Shire of Dalwallinu  $10,000

 Shire of Dandaragan - Jurien Bay Civic Precinct  $73,290

 Shire of Dardanup  $100,000

 Shire of Derby-West Kimberley  $30,000

 Shire of Donnybrook-Balingup  $6,000

 Shire of Dowerin  $29,893

 Shire of Dumbleyung  $321,136

 Shire of Dundas  $20,000

 Shire of Esperance - Esperance Civic Centre  $49,400

 Shire of Exmouth  $3,500,000

 Shire of Gnowangerup  $12,200

 Shire of Goomalling  $10,000

 Shire of Goomalling  $17,900

 Shire of Halls Creek  $71,195

 Shire of Harvey  $100,000

 Shire of Harvey  $350,000

 Shire of Irwin  $12,000

 Shire of Irwin  $19,979

 Shire of Jerramungup  $66,195

 Shire of Kalamunda  $15,000

 Shire of Kalamunda  $20,000

 Shire of Katanning  $20,000

 Shire of Kellerberrin  $498,212

 Shire of Kojonup  $200,000

 Shire of Lake Grace  $20,422

 Shire of Leonora  $10,000

 Shire of Leonora  $229,205

 Shire of Leonora  $193,754

 Shire of Leonora  $1,564,700

 Shire of Leonora  $14,620

 Shire of Leonora  $20,000

 Shire of Manjimup  $11,000

 Shire of Manjimup  $64,281

 Shire of Manjimup  $4,865

 Shire of Manjimup  $1,044,000

 Shire of Manjimup - Home and Community Care  $3,550

 Shire of Merredin  $10,000

 Shire of Merredin - Cummins Theatre  $45,000

 Shire of Merredin - Cummins Theatre  $2,936

 Shire of Mingenew  $36,598

 Shire of Mingenew  $64,000

 Shire of Moora - Moora Performing Arts Centre  $26,388

 Shire of Morawa  $11,000

 Shire of Mount Magnet  $85,600

 Shire of Mount Magnet  $14,000

 Shire of Mukinbudin  $4,500

 Shire of Mundaring  $93,349

 Shire of Mundaring  $80,000

 Shire of Mundaring - Blackboy Hill Commemorative Site  $15,300

 Shire of Murray  $10,000

 Shire of Murray  $10,000

 Shire of Nannup  $25,650

 Shire of Nannup  $56,026

 Shire of Northam  $95,000

 Shire of Northam  $49,766

 Shire of Northampton  $21,147

 Shire of Northampton  $161,500

 Shire of Northampton  $4,000

 Shire of Peppermint Grove  $10,118

 Shire of Perenjori  $20,000

 Shire of Perenjori  $50,000

 Shire of Pingelly  $10,107

 Shire of Plantagenet  $212,000

 Shire of Plantagenet  $37,500

 Shire of Quairading  $9,800

 Shire of Quairading  $2,250

 Shire of Ravensthorpe - Hopetoun Community Recreation Complex  $40,000

 Shire of Serpentine-Jarrahdale  $59,088

 Shire of Serpentine-Jarrahdale  $8,061

 Shire of Serpentine-Jarrahdale - Byford Multipurpose Community Facility  $900,000

 Shire of Tammin  $28,500

 Shire of Three Springs  $23,980

 Shire of Toodyay  $2,875

 Shire of Toodyay  $130,432

 Shire of Trayning  $14,051

 Shire of Waroona  $25,000

 Shire of Westonia  $6,300

 Shire of Westonia  $3,782

 Shire of Wickepin  $30,000

 Shire of Wickepin  $19,071

 Shire of Woodanilling  $6,540

 Shire of Wyalkatchem  $48,262

 Shire of Yilgarn - Yilgarn History Museum, Southern Cross Inc  $12,044

 Sikh Gurdwara, Perth Inc  $156,947

 Silver Chain Group Ltd  $77,000

 Silver Chain Group Ltd - Brookton Saddleback Health Service  $27,600

 Smith Family  $337,806

 SolarisCare Foundation  $53,500

 Sonrise Christian Life Centre Inc  $20,000

 South Coast Baptist College Inc  $102,522

 South Coast Natural Resource Management Inc  $25,000

 South Coastal Women's Health Services Association Inc  $10,000

 South Coastal Women's Health Services Association Inc  $184,844

 South East Regional Centre for Urban Landcare Inc  $30,000

 South East Regional Centre for Urban Landcare Inc  $5,948

 South Lake Ottey Family & Neighbourhood Centre Inc  $45,000

 South Metropolitan Personnel Inc  $20,066

 South Metropolitan Youth Link Inc  $293,000

 South West Associated Radio Modellers Society  $15,000

 South West Catchments Council Inc  $28,994

 South West Corridor Development Foundation Inc  $23,000

 South West Counselling Inc  $5,750

 South West Foodbowl Association Inc  $12,093

 South West Opera Company Inc  $3,686

 South West Refuge Inc  $36,500

 South West Refuge Inc  $216,015

 South West Senior Expo Inc  $2,500

 South West Wanderers C.M.C.A  $3,853

 Southcare Inc  $80,000

 Southern Agcare Inc  $15,000

 Spectrum Theatre  $2,350
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 Spiers Centre Inc  $86,250

 Spina Bifida and Hydrocephalus Association of WA Inc  $15,000

 Spinal Cord Injuries Australia  $26,100

 Spine and Limb Foundation Inc  $3,000

 Spinifex Arts Project Aboriginal Corporation  $59,610

 Spirit of the Streets Choir Inc  $23,920

 St Barbara's Festival Inc  $20,000

 St Ives Mandurah Residents' Association Inc  $15,000

 St John Ambulance Western Australia Ltd  $956,227

 St John Ambulance Western Australia Ltd  $517,448

 St John Ambulance Western Australia Ltd - Carnarvon Sub Centre  $205,000

 St John of God Health Care Inc  $41,720

 St John of God Outreach Services - Horizon House Bunbury  $21,966

 St Patricks Catholic Playgroup  $1,200

 St Patrick's Community Support Centre Ltd  $80,000

 St Patrick's Community Support Centre Ltd  $119,450

 St Patrick's Community Support Centre Ltd  $4,392

 St Vincent De Paul Society WA Inc  $450,000

 St Vincent De Paul Society WA Inc  $800,000

 St. Bartholomew's House Inc  $5,000

 Starick Services Inc  $35,000

 Starick Services Inc  $22,000

 Starick Services Inc - Mary Smith Refuge  $500,000

 Starlight Children's Foundation Australia  $400,000

 Stirling Carols by Candlelight  $12,922

 Stirling Street Arts Centre Management Committee Inc  $29,174

 Stock Road Senior Citizens Club Inc  $3,000

 Stratton Community Association Inc  $14,160

 Stratton Out of School Care Service Inc  $4,622

 Street Law Centre WA Inc  $3,000

 Strut Dance Inc  $12,194

 Sudbury Community House Association  $26,720

 Sun City Care Inc  $10,000

 Superfins WA Inc  $15,000

 Surf Life Saving WA - Yallingup Emergency Services Group Inc  $63,960

 Survivor Foundation Inc  $8,427

 Swahili Radio Association Inc  $10,489

 Swan Bells Foundation Inc  $300,000

 Swan Districts Football Club Inc  $98,150

 Swan Emergency Accommodation  $35,000

 Swan Hills Photographic Society Inc  $6,098

 Swancare Group Inc  $66,905

 Tambellup Agricultural Society Inc  $5,000

 Tammin Economy Shop Cooinda Association T.E.S.C.A. Inc  $5,500

 Tammin Senior Citizens Association Inc  $1,500

 TAPSS Community Care Inc  $100,000

 Teddy Bears Playgroup  $6,475

 Teem Treasure Inc  $30,280

 Teen Challenge WA Inc  $365,867

 Telethon Juvenile Diabetes Family Centre Ltd  $1,000,000

 Temple of Fine Arts Inc  $20,000

 Teranca Mews Residents Association  $5,375

 The Chung Wah Association  $10,000

 Theatre Kimberley Inc  $26,342

 Therapy Focus Inc  $890,431

 Tjarlirli Art Indigenous Corporation  $59,500

 Tjuma Pulka (Media) Aboriginal Corporation  $77,000

 TLC Emergency Welfare Foundation of Western Australia Inc  $13,780

 Tom Price Nameless Festival Inc  $20,000

 Toodyay Festivals Inc  $15,000

 Town of Bassendean  $175,000

 Town of Bassendean - Bassendean Youth Service  $37,258

 Town of Bassendean - Pensioner Guard Cottage Museum  $15,975

 Town of Cambridge  $100,000

 Town of Cambridge  $230,000

 Town of Cambridge  $15,000

 Town of Claremont  $20,000

 Town of East Fremantle  $19,906

 Town of Mosman Park  $9,926

 Town of Port Hedland  $20,000

 Town of Port Hedland - Matt Dann Cultural Centre  $30,000

 Town of Victoria Park  $20,000

 Town of Victoria Park  $10,498

 Track Care WA Inc  $14,258

 Trainingship Cockburn Parents Committee Inc  $12,507

 Treehouse Childcare Centre Inc  $145,583

 Treendale Playgroup  $15,000

 Tuart Hill Community Kindergarten Inc  $5,500

 Uni Camp For Kids Inc  $87,264

 Unit Committee T.S Pilbara Inc  $5,499

 Unit Committee T.S. ANZAC Inc  $14,284

 Unit Committee TS Broome Inc  $9,401

 United Way West Australia Inc  $4,357

 Uniting Church Homes  $107,100

 Uniting Church Homes  $5,000

 Uniting Church in Australia Property Trust (WA) - Finucare  $6,600

 Uniting Church in Australia Property Trust (WA) - Finucare  $50,000

 Uniting Church in Australia Property Trust (WA) - Margaret River Congregation  $25,010

 Uniting Church in Australia Property Trust (WA) - Uniting Aid  $115,000

 Uniting Church in Australia Property Trust (WA) - Uniting Aid  $41,380

 Uniting Church in Australia Property Trust (WA) - Uniting Outreach Mandurah  $13,000

 UnitingCare West  $3,000

 UnitingCare West  $180,000

 University of the Third Age, The University of WA Inc - North Coast Region  $1,750

 University Of The Third Age, The University of WA Inc - Rockingham & Districts  $1,350

 Uralla Wildlife Sanctuary Inc  $11,147

 Uralla Wildlife Sanctuary Inc  $2,683

 Useful Inc  $5,000

 UWA - Perth International Arts Festival  $250,000

 UWA - Perth International Arts Festival  $7,338,467

 Variety WA Inc  $20,000

 Variety WA Inc  $20,000

 Variety WA Inc  $40,000

 Veterans Retreats of Western Australia Inc  $26,260

 Victoria Park Centre for the Arts Inc  $6,860

 Victoria Park Youth Accommodation Inc  $9,000

 Vietnamese Community in Australia / Western Australia Chapter Inc  $12,000

 Village At Wellard Residents Association Inc  $2,469

 Village Social Club  $5,860

 VisAbility Inc  $209,652

 Volunteer Marine Rescue Western Australia Inc  $318,600

 Volunteer South West Inc  $4,000

 WA Air Training Corps Gliding Wing Inc - Cadets  $54,028

 WA Blue Sky Inc  $115,829

 WA Blue Sky Inc  $2,500

 WA Brass Inc  $15,000

 WA Disabled Sports Association  $79,254

 WA Disabled Sports Association  $136,276

 WA Poets Inc  $2,998

 WA Russian Music and Arts Association 'Club Prichal' Inc  $14,499

 Wagin Historical Village Museum Inc  $45,455

 Walpole Volunteer Marine Rescue Inc  $32,470

 Wandering Annual Fair Committee Inc  $1,500

 Wangka Maya Pilbara Aboriginal Language Centre (Aboriginal Corporation)  $16,000

 Wanneroo Joondalup Art Society Inc  $2,668

 Wanneroo Repertory Inc  $14,000

 Wanneroo/Joondalup Orchid Society Inc  $5,203

 Waratah Christian Community Inc  $7,500

 Waratah Support Centre (South West Region) Inc  $14,000
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 Waringarri Arts Aboriginal Corporation  $35,983

 Waroona Agricultural Society Inc  $4,689

 Waroona Community Resource Centre Inc  $3,339

 Waroona Community Resource Centre Inc  $20,000

 Weld Square Primary School River Rangers  $15,000

 West Australian Aboriginal Dance Company  $30,000

 West Australian Association of Polish Women  $38,527

 West Australian Ballet Company  $180,000

 West Australian Football Commission Inc  $19,227

 West Australian Foundation for Deaf Children Inc  $13,800

 West Australian Medieval Alliance Inc  $3,000

 West Australian Men's Gathering Inc  $14,892

 WA Performing Arts Eisteddfod Incorporating City of Bunbury Eisteddfod Inc  $3,000

 West Australian Symphony Orchestra Pty Ltd  $243,080

 West Australian-German Business Association Inc  $20,000

 West Coast Metal Detector Club Inc  $1,831

 West Leederville Residents Association Inc  $5,760

 West Stirling Neighbourhood House Inc  $8,800

 Westcycle Inc  $25,000

 Westcycle Inc  $25,000

 Western Australia Kannada Sangha Inc  $12,000

 Western Australia Multicultural Association Inc  $4,024

 Western Australian Adult Literacy Council Inc  $13,600

 Western Australian AIDS Council Inc  $4,000

 Western Australian Association of the Deaf Inc  $15,000

 Western Australian Council of Social Service Inc (WACOSS)  $157,634

 Western Australian Council of Social Service Inc (WACOSS)  $20,000

 Western Australian Council of Social Service Inc (WACOSS)  $550,000

 Western Australian Council of State School Organisations  $34,759

 Western Australian Deaf Society Inc  $46,926

 Western Australian Genealogical Society  $3,415

 Western Australian Genealogical Society  $20,535

 Western Australian Historical Cycle Club Inc  $10,084

 Western Australian Mens Shed Association Inc  $18,150

 Western Australian Mens Shed Association Inc  $18,000

 Western Australian Opera Company Inc  $250,000

 Western Australian Sports Federation  $25,000

 Western Australian Youth Theatre Company Inc  $13,493

 Western Desert Nganampa Walytja Palyantjaku Tjutaku Aboriginal Corporation  $41,159

 Western Metropolitan Regional Council  $2,222

 Westonia Community Resource Centre Inc  $2,240

 Westonia Community Resource Centre Inc  $12,129

 Wheatbelt Agcare Community Support Services Inc  $10,000

 Whitford Church of Christ Inc  $15,000

 Whitford Church of Christ Inc  $15,000

 Whitford Senior Citizens Club Inc  $1,185

 Whitfords & District Aero Modelling Club Inc  $9,939

 Whitfords Volunteer Sea Rescue Group  $3,038

 Wilderness Society WA Inc  $59,065

 William Langford Community House Inc  $49,500

 Williams Gateway Expo Inc  $15,000

 Windy Harbour Volunteer Marine Rescue Inc  $28,499

 Winun Ngari Aboriginal Corporation  $100,000

 Women United for Development Inc  $15,805

 Women's Council for Domestic and Family Violence Services (WA) Inc  $150,800

 Women's Council for Domestic and Family Violence Services (WA) Inc  $20,000

 Women's Council for Domestic and Family Violence Services (WA) Inc  $10,235

 Women's Health Care Association  $40,000

 Women's Health Care Association  $63,865

 Wongan-Ballidu and District Menshed Inc  $70,000

 Woodlake Playgroup Inc  $1,200

 Workpower Inc  $2,300,000

 World Wide Fund for Nature Australia  $109,587

 Wunan Foundation Inc  $230,000

 Wunan Foundation Inc  $25,000

 Wyalkatchem and Districts Club  $2,388

 Wyalkatchem Men's Shed Inc  $75,106

 Wyndham District High School Bush Ranger Cadet Unit  $15,000

 Wyndham Historical Society Inc  $15,834

 Yadgalah Aboriginal Corporation  $3,460

 Yallingup Steiner School Inc  $1,864

 Yangebup Family Centre Inc  $22,765

 Yarloop Community Resource Centre Inc  $7,000

 Yornup Hall Committee  $5,000

 Youth Affairs Council of Western Australia  $91,474

 Youth Futures WA Inc  $22,474

 Youth Futures WA Inc  $207,572

 Youth Involvement Council Inc  $1,000,000

 Youth Legal Service Inc  $38,000

 Zig Zag Community Arts Inc  $19,834

 Zonta House Women's Refuge Inc  $17,250

 Total $130,846,979
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